
Agenda compiled by: 
Telephone:  
Constitution & Corporate 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
 

Mike Earle 
224 3209 
 
 
 

Scrutiny Support Manager: 
Peter Marrington 
Tel: 3951151 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Committee Rooms 6&7,Civic Hall,Leeds LS1 1UR on 

Tuesday, 6th November, 2007 at 10.00 am* 
*( Pre-Meeting at 9.30am ) 

 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
P Grahame (Chair) - Cross Gates and Whinmoor 

B Anderson - Adel and Wharfedale 

S Bentley - Weetwood 

B Gettings - Morley North 

S Golton - Rothwell 

T Hanley - Bramley and Stanningley 

A Harrison - Garforth and Swillington 

W Hyde - Temple Newsam 

E Minkin - Kirkstall 

R Pryke - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill 

 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
A G E N D A 

 
 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded 
 
 

 

2   
 

  EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 
 
To identify items where resolutions may be moved 
to exclude the public 
 
 

 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
 

 

5     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 9TH OCTOBER 2007 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 9th October 2007. 
 

1 - 6 



 

 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

7   
 

  MINUTES - EXECUTIVE BOARD, 17TH 
OCTOBER 2007 
 
To receive, for information purposes only, the 
attached minutes of the Executive Board meeting 
held on 17th October 2007. 
 

7 - 16 

8   
 

  PERFORMANCE REPORT - QUARTER 2 
2007/08 
 
To receive and consider the attached report of the 
Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement. 
 

17 - 
56 

9   
 

  LEEDS STRATEGIC PLAN 2008 - 2011 
 
To receive and consider the attached report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member Development. 
 

57 - 
66 

10   
 

  CALL-IN ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Further to Minute No. 35, 11th September 2007, to 
receive and consider the attached report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member Development.  
 

67 - 
76 

11   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive and consider the attached report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member Development. 
 

77 - 
96 

12   
 

  DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
Tuesday 11th December 2007 
Tuesday 8th January 2008 
Tuesday 5th February 2008 
Tuesday 11th March 2008 
Tuesday 8th April 2007 
 
All at 10.00am ( Pre-Meetings at 9.30am ) 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY, 9TH OCTOBER, 2007 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor P Grahame in the Chair 

 Councillors B Anderson, S Bentley, 
S Golton, T Hanley, A Harrison, W Hyde, 
E Minkin and R Pryke 

 
APOLOGIES Councillor  B Gettings 

 
 

39 Declaration of Interests  
 

The following Member declarations of interest were made: 
 
Agenda Item 9 (Minute No. 43 refers) – Planning Performance – Councillors 
Golton and Minkin – personal interests in their capacity as Members of Plans 
Panels. 
 
(NB: See also later Minute Nos 44 and 45) 
 

40 Minutes - 11th September 2007 and Matters Arising  
 

The draft minutes of the meeting held on 11th September 2007 were 
submitted for confirmation. 
 
(a) Debt Rescheduling (Minute No 29 refers) 
 Councillor Hanley requested that OSC Members be supplied as soon 

as possible with the additional information requested at the last 
meeting regarding an explanation of the dates that loans were taken 
out, paid off or rescheduled, and how this had led to accumulated 
savings of some £21.8m. The Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development undertook to pursue this. 

 
(b) Work Programme and Draft Terms of Reference for Proposed Inquiries 

(Minute No 37 refers) 
 The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development confirmed that further 

names had been received to join the working group, the purpose of 
which would be to consider terms of reference for an Inquiry into 
ALMOs. The working group now comprised the Chair and Councillors 
Anderson,Bentley,Hanley,Harrison and Pryke. 

  
It was agreed that the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development would 
arrange for information supplied by the Chief Democratic Services Officer to 
Councillor Hanley when he was Labour Whip, relating to the operating costs 
of the Group Offices, to be circulated to all OSC Members. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007 

 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 11th September 2007 
be confirmed as a correct record. 
 

41 Minutes - Executive Board,11th September 2007  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Executive Board meeting held on 11th 
September 2007 be received and noted. 
 

42 Leeds Strategic Plan  
 

Further to Minute No 33, 11th September 2007, the Committee considered a 
report submitted by the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and 
Improvement) relating to the draft strategic outcomes and proposed 
improvement priorities outlined in the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-2011.  The 
Committee also received a presentation on this subject. 
 
Steve Clough, Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement, and Dylan 
Griffiths, Chief Executive’s Department, attended the meeting and responded 
to Members’ queries and comments.  In brief summary, the main issues 
raised were:- 
 

• The need to link the budget process and the allocation of resources to the 
priorities and outcomes identified in the Plan and how this might be 
achieved; 

• The importance of ‘selling’ the plan to the public, not just the Council and 
its partner agencies, and how the public could get involved and feel part of 
the process; 

• The importance of the City’s transport infrastructure seemed to be 
downplayed. The need for greater influence at national level was remarked 
upon, but also the scope for doing relatively small initiatives locally, which 
cumulatively would make an impact; 

• A lack of reference to several issues which Members regarded as vital 
components of such a Strategic Plan was commented upon – pedestrians, 
children (too adult orientated?), tackling obesity and the link to diabetes, 
heart disease and strokes, substance abuse, the impact of refugees and 
asylum seekers on Council services; 

• The role of Members in the process – not merely as so-called ‘Community 
Champions’ but as leaders of change in terms of, for instance, planning 
matters and the design and quality of the built environment 

• Housing – the vast, unmet demand for social housing was commented 
upon.  The view was expressed that this would not be addressed by 
proposals to build 450 so-called ‘affordable’ homes per annum. 

 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That subject to the above broad comments and concerns expressed 

today, the report on the draft strategic outcomes and proposed 
improvement priorities for inclusion in the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-
2011 be received and noted. 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007 

 

(b) That the matter be referred back to OSC at its November meeting for 
further comment, following consideration of the Plan by all other 
Scrutiny Boards in the October cycle of meetings. 

(c) That a further report on the proposed targets and performance 
indicators to support the improvement priorities contained in the Plan 
be submitted to the January OSC meeting. 

 
43 Planning Performance  
 

Further to the Committee’s Inquiry into this area carried out during the 
2006/07 municipal year, culminating in the approval of a final report and 
recommendations at its meeting on 5th March 2007 (Minute No 87 refers), the 
Chief Planning Officer submitted a report updating the Committee on progress 
in implementing those recommendations. 
 
Phil Crabtree,  Chief Planning Officer, and Helen Cerrotti, City Development 
Department, attended the meeting and responded to Members’ queries and 
comments. In brief summary, the main issues discussed were:- 
 

• The Chief Planning Officer was congratulated on the content of the report 
and the progress which was being made to improve planning performance; 

• The Action Plan appended to the report and the make-up of the proposed 
cross-party Members’ and officers Working Group to oversee the process 
and the implementation of the Action Plan. The need for the involvement 
of the Party Whips in establishing this Working Group was emphasised, as 
was the need for OSC to still be involved in the monitoring process;  

• The need for greater consultation with Ward Members regarding what was 
regarded as a ‘significant’ matter which warranted referral to a Plans Panel 
– small, but sensitive, applications could still be regarded as significant at 
local level; 

• The importance of developing a digital model of the City in order that the 
likely impact of planning proposals could be more easily understood by 
Members and the public; 

• The greater emphasis on pre-application presentations, and the 
development of a protocol in this regard, were welcomed; 

• The employment of ‘community planning officers’ at Area Committee level, 
such as in the North West Area, was regarded as a good investment in 
terms of advising local Members, developers and the public; 

• The Government’s perception of Leeds as a Planning Authority, and 
whether or not this was influencing the outcome of appeals against 
planning decisions; 

• Whether the current balance of items referred to Plans Panels and those 
delegated to officers was in need of review? 

• The need to improve the administration of Plans Panel meetings in terms 
of the timing of items, venues, monitoring Members’ comings and goings 
and customer advice and information; 

 
RESOLVED –  

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007 

 

(a) That the report and Action Plan, together with the Committee’s 
comments, be referred to the Plans Panel Members for discussion and 
comment 

(b) That subject to the submission of regular update reports to OSC, the 
proposal to establish a joint cross-party Member and officer working 
group to monitor the Action Plan be endorsed 

(c) That OSC receive a further report in 6 months time. 
 
(NB: Councillor Anderson left the meeting at 12 noon, towards the end of this 
item) 
 

44 Direct Payments  
 

Further to Minute No 9, 4th June 2007 and Minute No 32, 11th September 
2007, the Committee received a briefing on direct payments from Mike Evans, 
Chief Officer - Adult Services, to assist the Committee in reaching a decision 
regarding whether or not to conduct an Inquiry into this issue. 
 
In brief summary, the main issues discussed were: 
 

• An explanation of how the current system of direct benefit payments to the 
public worked, which services the money could be used to purchase and 
why take-up in Leeds was currently low; 

• Police CRB checks in relation to carers employed by recipients of direct 
benefit payments and the monitoring arrangements for private firms 
providing these kind of services; 

• The current Improvement Plan introduced in April 2007 and a recent 
Internal Audit report on the service – OSC to receive this report and the 
Department’s Action Plan in response to the report; 

• The need for the Council to perhaps provide greater support and 
assistance for people wishing to claim direct payments, and the work 
carried out by the Armley Centre for Integrated Living to assist direct 
payment claimants; 

• Whether the payments could be used to pay for adaptations? It was stated 
that more usually the payments were used to purchase pieces of 
equipment, rather than adaptations. 

 
RESOLVED – That the Committee consider the Internal Auditor’s recent 
report, and the Department’s response, before deciding whether any further 
action is required and, if so, whether OSC or the Scrutiny Board (Health and 
Adult Social Care) should carry out an Inquiry. 
 
(NB: 1 Councillors Hanley and Pryke declared personal interests in this item 

in their capacity as members of Bramley Elderly Action and Leeds 
Care and Repair respectively; 

 
 2 Councillor Harrison left the meeting at 12.30 pm at the conclusion of 

this item) 
 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007 

 

45 Scrutiny of the Budget - Financial Health Monitoring 2007/08 - Quarter 1 
Report  

 
The Committee considered the 2007/08 Quarter 1 Financial Monitoring report 
of the Director of Resources, submitted to the Executive Board on 22nd August 
2007. The purpose of this was to ascertain whether any areas required further 
scrutiny. 
 
Doug Meeson, Chief Officer – Financial Management, was present at the 
meeting and responded to Members’ queries and comments.  In brief 
summary, the main issues discussed were: 
 

• The net projected shortfall of £6m at this early stage of the financial year, 
and the projected savings to offset this; 

• The on-going efforts to ensure that OSC’s recommendations regarding the 
budget being linked to achieving the Council’s objectives and priorities are 
realised; 

• Disappointment was expressed at the need for the invocation of penalty 
clauses to the amount of £300,000 in respect of the PFI street lighting 
contract, due to non-compliance with agreed implementation timescales, 
so soon into this important project; 

• The Housing Revenue Account situation, incentive payments to ALMOs in 
relation to the quick reletting of void properties and the redistribution to 
ALMOs of savings generated  through a reduction in disrepair claims and 
bad debt costs in 2006/07. The former, void levels, had been the subject of 
a previous Board Inquiry, and this should be reviewed to ensure that 
ALMOs were reaching agreed targets. It was suggested that perhaps both 
these issues could be picked up as part of OSC’s proposed Inquiry into 
ALMO related areas; 

• The performance in respect of the prompt repayment of undisputed 
invoices. Councillor Hanley requested details of the number of disputed 
invoices be circulated to OSC Members – prompt payment was vital to 
many small local businesses; 

• The Local Authority Business Growth Incentive scheme, which allowed 
local authorities to benefit to a degree from business expansion in their 
area.  The current scheme was due to end in December; 

• In terms of the write-off of bad debts, Mr Meeson accepted the need to 
produce future evidence of a downward trend in this area; 

• The Council’s contingency plans for meeting its commitments under the 
equal pay claims currently being processed, and the Government’s 
agreement to allow local authorities to capitalise the costs and pay it back 
over 25 years. 

 
RESOLVED – That subject to the above comments, the report of the Director 
of Resources be received and noted. 
 
(NB: 1 Councillor Grahame declared a personal interest in respect of the 

discussion of PFI related issues in her capacity as a member of the 
Swardale Swarcliffe Eastwood Residents Association; 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 6th November, 2007 

 

 2 Councillor W Hyde left the meeting at 13.10 at the conclusion of this 
item) 

 
46 Recommendation Tracking  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report providing 
the Committee with an overview regarding the implementation of the 
recommendations of previous Inquiries carried out by Scrutiny Boards and 
highlighting any possible areas of concern (none on this occasion). 
 
A discussion ensued regarding the need to ensure that reports detailing 
progress on implementing Scrutiny Inquiry recommendations, whether by 
internal Departments or partner public sector organisations, gave clear and 
meaningful information. It was acknowledged that for their part, Scrutiny 
Boards should be ensuring that their recommendations were specific, 
measurable, achievable, realistic and time-bound. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

47 Work Programme  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a copy of the 
Committee’s work programme, updated to reflect decisions taken at previous 
meetings, together with a relevant extract from the Council’s Forward Plan of 
Key Decisions for the period 1st October 2007 to 31st January 2008. 
 
In response to Members’ queries  on the Forward Plan, the Head of Scrutiny 
and Member Development undertook to circulate to OSC Members further 
details relating to a future decision regarding lamppost advertising  and further 
information on the proposed formation of the Garforth Schools Trust. 
 
RESOLVED – That subject to the above, and any other changes necessary 
as a result of today’s meeting, the Committee’s work programme be 
approved. 
 

48 Dates and Times of Future Meetings  
 

Tuesday 6th November 2007 
Tuesday 11th December 2007 
Tuesday 8th January 2008 
Tuesday 5th February 2008 
Tuesday 11th March 2008 
Tuesday 8th April 2008 
 
All at 10.00 am (Pre-meetings at 9.30 am) 
 
 
 

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th November, 2007 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 17TH OCTOBER, 2007 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor M Harris in the Chair 

 Councillors A Carter, R Brett, J L Carter, 
R Finnigan, R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter, 
S Smith and K Wakefield  
 
Councillor J Blake – Non-voting Advisory Member 

 
 
 

84 Exclusion of Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on 
the ground that it is likely, in the view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of proceedings, that if members of the public were 
present there would be a disclosure to them of exempt information so 
designated as follows: 
 
(a) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 90 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information as the information relates to the 
financial or business affairs of a third party and of the Council and the 
release of such information would be likely to prejudice the interests of 
both parties. 

 
(b) The annexe to the report referred to in minute 91 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
the information relates to the financial or business affairs of the 
Council.  It is considered that the release of such information could 
prejudice the Council’s commercial interests in relation to the disposal 
of this property or other similar transactions about the nature and level 
of offers which may prove acceptable to the Council.  It is considered 
that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure, much of this 
information will be publicly available from the Land Registry following 
completion of this transaction and consequently the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
this information at this point in time. 

 
(c) The final appendix to the report referred to in minute 101 under the 

terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and (2) and on 
the ground that the public interest in maintaining this appendix as 
exempt outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
because it refers to matters at a preliminary stage which may at some 
future point have a significant impact on certain schools. Disclosure of 
the information at this time could lead to speculation prejudicial to the 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th November, 2007 

 

duty of Education Leeds to secure improvement and increased 
confidence in schools which would be prejudicial to the public interest. 

 
(d) Appendices 1 and 2 to the report referred to in minute 88 under the 

terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the 
grounds that the information relates to the financial or business affairs 
of a particular person and of the Council. This information is not 
publicly available from the statutory registers of information kept in 
respect of certain companies and charities.  It is considered that since 
this information was obtained through inviting offers for the property/ 
land then it is not in the public interest to disclose this information at 
this point in time as this could lead to random competing bids which 
would undermine this method of inviting bids and affect the integrity of 
disposing of property/land by this process. Also it is considered that the 
release of such information would or would be likely to prejudice the 
Council’s commercial interests in relation to other similar transactions 
in that prospective purchasers of other similar properties could obtain 
information about the nature and level of offers which may prove 
acceptable to the Council.  It is considered that whilst there may be 
public interest in disclosure, much of this information will be publicly 
available from the Land Registry following completion of this 
transaction and consequently the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing this information at 
this point in time. 

 
85 Declaration of Interests  

Councillors Blake, Harrand and J Procter declared personal interests in the 
item relating to City Varieties Music Hall (minute 90) as members of the Grand 
Theatre Board of Management. 
 
Councillors Blake and Harrand declared personal interests in the item relating 
to Local Implementation of the National Framework for Continuing NHS Care 
(minute 89) as a PCT member and as a governor of Leeds Mental Health 
Trust respectively. 
 
Councillor Wakefield declared a personal interest in the item relating to 
Secondary and Post 16 Provision in Leeds (minute 101) as a member of the 
Learning and Skills Council and Councillor Finnigan a personal interest in the 
same item as a governor of Joseph Priestley College. 
 

86 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 11th September 2007 
be approved. 
 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

87 Holt Park District Centre and Tinshill Recreation Ground  
Referring to minute 34 of the meeting held on 6th July 2005 the Director of City 
Development submitted a report on public consultation on the Holt Park 
District Centre regeneration proposals, proposed progression of the 

Page 8



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th November, 2007 

 

proposals, issues with regard to the proposed fencing of 2 pitches at Tinshill 
Recreation Ground in association with the new Ralph Thoresby High School, 
including a response to the deputation to Council and seeking endorsement to 
the fencing of the pitches. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the development of regeneration options at Holt Park District 

Centre be progressed on the basis of the inclusion of the former Ralph 
Thoresby High School site within the overall redevelopment area 

(b) That the outcome of public consultation on the proposed regeneration 
of Holt Park District Centre and the fencing of two pitches at Tinshill 
Recreation Ground be noted 

(c) That a 1.8 metre high, steel mesh fence with four gates to the two 
pitches at Tinshill Recreation Ground adjacent to Farrar Lane, be 
procured and erected. 

(d) That a report be brought back to this Board detailing the terms for 
access to the two fenced pitches both for organised sport and general 
public access. 

 
           (Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor 

Wakefield required it to be recorded that he voted against this decision) 
 
LEISURE 
 

88 The Mansion, Roundhay Park - Offers for Redevelopment Opportunity  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the outcome of the 
marketing exercise of the Roundhay Mansion seeking a third party operator 
for the café/restaurant/bar/function rooms at the property. 
 
The report gave detail in relation to the following options: 
 
1 Do nothing 
2 Accept an offer from one of the offerors, subject to agreement on the 

lease 
3 Repeat the marketing exercise for a third party operator 
4 Expend further Council capital on stripping out and providing a shell for 

the commercial element of the development and then repeat the 
marketing exercise for a third party operator 

5 Consider and pursue alternative uses for the Mansion 
6 Consider the remarketing of the opportunity on the basis that the 

Council will make a contribution towards the cost of the initial capital fit 
out works. 

 
Following consideration of appendices 1 and 2 (appendix 2 being circulated at 
the meeting) designated as exempt under Access to Information Procedure 
Rules 10.4(3), which were considered in private at the conclusion of the 
meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the site be remarketed on the basis of option 6 as referred 
to above and as set out in the report, following further investigation of costs of 

Page 9



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th November, 2007 

 

refurbishment and that a further report on offers received be brought to this 
Board at the appropriate time. 
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

89 Local Implementation of the National Framework for Continuing NHS 
Care  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the adoption of the 
new national framework by the Health and Social Care Community in Leeds 
with effect from 1st October 2007. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted and that the formal local adoption of 
the National NHS Continuing Care Policy with effect from 1st October 2007 be 
endorsed. 
 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

90 City Varieties Music Hall  
Further to minute 178 of the meeting held on 9th February 2007 the Director of 
City Development submitted a report on the successful Stage 1 bid to the 
Heritage Lottery Fund for £3,000,000 to assist with funding the refurbishment 
of the City Varieties Music Hall and on proposals to progress the scheme. 
 
Following consideration  of appendix 1 to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was considered in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the successful £3,000,000 Stage 1 bid to the Heritage Lottery 

Fund be noted and that preparation of the Stage 2 application be 
commenced. 

(b) That work on the project be continued during the Stage 2 application 
assessment period. 

(c) That the issues with regard to the acquisition of third party property be 
noted and that agreement be given to the principle of making a 
Compulsory Purchase Order should progress on outstanding matters 
be not satisfactory, subject to a report being brought back to this Board 
should it become necessary for the Council to pursue such a course of 
action. 

(d) That the Leeds Grand Theatre and Opera House Ltd Board of 
Management be invited to commence their fundraising campaign. 

 
(The urgent need to progress the Stage 2 bid to the HLF precluded this 
decision from eligibility for Call In). 
 

91 Otley Civic Centre  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the alternatives 
available to address the future of Otley Civic Centre and offering a proposal 
as to how the City Council could support the Town Council in the 
implementation of the Town Council’s preferred option. 

Page 10



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th November, 2007 

 

 
The report outlined a number of options: 
 
1 To do nothing 
2 To undertake repairs to the external fabric of the Civic Centre 

independent of any action by the Town Council 
3 To progress one of the following options identified in the feasibility 

study: 

• Refurbishment of the existing Civic Centre in its present form 

• Refurbishment and expansion of capacity of the existing Civic 
Centre (the Town Council’s preferred option) 

• Building a new Civic Centre on an, as yet unidentified site 

• Partial conversion and new build of a property at North Parade 

• To split the existing centre and construct a new hall at North 
Parade 

 
Following consideration of the annexe to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was considered in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the Director of City Development make a formal approach to Otley 

Town Council with an offer from the City Council to transfer the 
freehold of the Civic Centre following its refurbishment on the basis of 
the costs of the refurbishment programme being shared by the two 
Councils as set out in the confidential annexe to the submitted report. 

(b) That the Director of City Development report back to this Board with 
the outcome of that approach and, if appropriate, submit a request for a 
fully funded injection into the Capital Programme for the refurbishment 
works. 

(c) That approval be given to the ring-fencing of the capital receipt from 
the disposal of the North Parade site towards the implementation of the 
refurbishment works subject to the Town Council agreeing to share this 
cost as set out in the confidential annexe to the report. 

 
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

92 Creation of the Leeds Award  
The Chief Democratic Services Officer submitted a report on the proposed 
creation of the ‘Leeds Award’ to recognise people who have brought credit to 
the City. 
 
RESOLVED – That the creation of the ‘Leeds Award’ be approved and that 
the administration of the Award be as detailed in the submitted report. 
 

93 A Memorials Policy  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the proposed 
adoption of a policy on honouring citizens of Leeds with a memorial. 
 
 

Page 11



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th November, 2007 

 

RESOLVED – 
(a) That a Memorial Panel as described in paragraph 4.1 of the submitted 

report be established to agree the criteria for honouring Leeds citizens 
with a memorial and to consider applications for memorials. 

(b) That all memorials take the form of a suitable inscription engraved in 
the flagstones of Merrion Gardens. 

(c) That these arrangements should not preclude an alternative memorial 
in the specific circumstances of a given case. 

 
94 Single Managed Fraud Team  

The Director of Resources submitted a report on a proposal to establish a 
single-managed Counter-fraud Service for Leeds in conjunction with Job 
Centre Plus and in relation to the full range of benefits administered by the 
two organisations. 
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given to the establishment of a single 
managed fraud team that will see operational management provided by Job 
Centre Plus and strategic management provided by a Joint Management 
Board. 
 

95 Progress Report on the PPP/PFI Programme in Leeds  
The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report giving a 6 monthly update on 
progress of PPP/PFI project and programmes and the implementation of the 
governance framework. 
 
RESOLVED – That the current status of PPP/PFI projects and programmes 
together with the information on management of attendant risks be noted. 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

96 Burley Lodge Group Repair  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the  
Burley Lodge Group Repair external enveloping scheme intended to extend 
the life of 52 properties by 30 years.  The report further indicated that it was 
also anticipated that 11 miscellaneous ALMO properties within the area would 
also be similarly improved subject to approval by the West North West 
Housing Ltd Board. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the injection into the Capital Programme of £2,311,163 of 

Regional Housing Board funding and £256,959 from owner occupiers 
be approved. 

(b) That Scheme Expenditure to the amount of £2,567,959 be authorised. 
(c) That a report on progress of the scheme be brought to a future meeting 

of this Board. 
 

97 Home Improvements  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on 
progress to help homeowners to improve their homes and on a proposal to 

Page 12



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th November, 2007 

 

spend £1,300,000 government grant for the remaining elements of the 
scheme. 
 
RESOLVED – That expenditure of £1,300,000 of Regional Housing Grant 
funding for this scheme be authorised. 
 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

98 Time for Change White Paper  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report on the significant 
reforms proposed for Looked After Children in the White Paper and on the 
current position in Leeds in terms of both current work and work planned for 
the future in response to this. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report, tabulation of impact assessment and proposed 
future actions be noted. 
 
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

99 Arrangements Post the Abolition of the Schools Organisation 
Committee  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report on 
options available to the Council to decide upon proposals formerly dealt with 
by the School Organisation Committee. 
 
The report presented the options of 
 

• Executive Board to make the decision 

• Executive Board to make the decision following recommendation of an 
Advisory Board 

• An officer to whom the authority has been delegated to make the 
decision or 

• An officer to whom authority has been delegated to make the decision 
following recommendation of an Advisory Board 

 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Executive Board makes decisions on all statutory proposals 

where they have the responsibility to do so as set out in appendix A to 
the report. 

(b) That where there are objections to proposals they be first referred to an 
Advisory  Board for a recommendation to be made to the Executive 
Board. 

(c) That an Advisory Board be set up to advise the authority on proposals 
(d) That the draft Standing Orders at appendix B of the report be adopted 

as the Standing Orders for the Advisory Board. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th November, 2007 

 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

100 Annual Report on the September 2007 Admission Round for Community 
and Controlled Schools  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report giving statistical 
information in relation to the admissions process and highlighting issues 
which need to be addressed for the 2008 admission round. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

101 Transforming Secondary and Post-16 Provision in Leeds  
The Director of Children’s Services and the Chief Executive of Education 
Leeds submitted a joint report on proposed consultation on an approach to 
the transformation of secondary and post-16 provision in Leeds. 
 
A four page appendix, circulated with the agenda as exempt, was circulated at 
the meeting in a revised form which included two pages of open information 
and two pages of exempt information.  In introducing the item the Executive 
Member (Learning) indicated that all references to “The Central Leeds School 
Improvement and Learning Alliance” should be amended to read “The Leeds 
Learning Alliance”. 
 
Following consideration of the two page final appendix to the report 
designated as exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rules 10.4(1) 
and (2), which was considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it 
was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That consultation be undertaken on the following: 

• The Transforming Secondary and Post-16 Provision in Leeds 
paper 

• The Academies in Leeds paper 
(b) That the publication of the Central Leeds School Improvement and 

Learning Alliance prospectus be approved. 
(c) That the progress being made with the Learning and Skills Council 

Review be noted and that a further report be brought to this Board in 
November commenting as part of the formal consultation on the 
Learning and Skills Council preferred way forward. 

(d) That further reports be brought to this Board outlining the outcome of 
consultation and expressions of interest in joining the Alliance and 
sponsoring any Academies in Leeds. 

 
102 Progress of South Leeds High School, October 2007  

The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report summarising the 
recent progress of South Leeds High School. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(a) That the report and the need for continued support for the school be 

noted. 

Page 14



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th November, 2007 

 

(b) That the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) be requested to examine 
the processes whereby Key Stage Four results are initially published 
with a view to ensuring that the level of risk that incorrect results may 
be published are minimised. 

 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  19TH OCTOBER 2007 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 26TH OCTOBER 2007 (5.00 PM) 
 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12 noon on 
Monday 29th October 2007) 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
Report of the Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement 
 
Meeting: Corporate Leadership Team 
 
Date:  Tuesday 6th November 2007 
 
Subject:  Performance Report Quarter 2 2007/08 
 

        
 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report discusses the key performance issues considered to be of corporate significance 
identified for each of the Directorates as at 26th October 2007.  In addition, the report also 
includes a predicted CPA score for 2007/08. 

2 Purpose of the Report 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to present the key areas of under performance at the end of 

Quarter 2 (1st July to 30th Sept 2007). 
 
3 Background Information 
 
3.1 This ‘highlight report’ has been prepared in readiness for the Accountability process, which 

includes the CLT meeting on 30th October 2007, Leader Management Team on 1st November 
2007 and Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 6th November; separate reports will be 
prepared for each of the scrutiny boards in readiness for the November cycle of meetings. 

 
3.2 The issues discussed in this report have been identified because performance in these areas 

impacts upon one or more of the following; the delivery of effective services, the delivery of our 
corporate priorities; our CPA score; or our ability to deliver efficiency savings.  This report is 
supported by detailed PI information.  

 
3.3 Any improvement in assessment scores should potentially have a positive impact on the 

council’s Direction of Travel assessment and overall CPA Star Rating. 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: 
Steve Clough 
Tel:  74582 

Agenda Item 8

Page 17



 2 

4 CPA Performance issues 
 
4.1 The table below summarises our predicted CPA scores for February 2008.  
 
    Level 1 Services Level 2 Services 

 Direction 
of Travel 

Star 
Category 

Corporate 
Assessment 

Use of 
Resources 

Children 
& 
Young 
People 

Social 
Care 
(Adults) 

Benefits Culture 
Service 
Assessment 

Environment 
Service 
Assessment 

Housing 
Service 
Assessment 

CPA 2006 
 

Improving 
Adequately 

3 star 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 

CPA 2007 
(provisional) 

 3 star 3 
 

3 3 3 3 2 3 3 

 
4.2 The CPA 2007 provisional score is based on, the category scores allocated in 2006, and our 

best informed judgement of our performance over the last year.  This information will be 
updated as and when assessment scores are confirmed during 2007/08. Scores highlighted in 
grey have been confirmed. 

 
4.3 The provisional CPA 2007 Service Assessment scores for Culture, Environment and Housing 

are included in each Accountability report.  These are mainly based on 2006/07 year-end 
performance indicator returns, however there are a number of instances where other methods 
are used.   

 
4.4 The Audit Commission have confirmed the PIs which are to be included in the 2007  CPA 

Service Assessments and the thresholds to be used to calculate the scores.  The above scores 
have been updated to reflect this.  The Culture score is still giving us some concern as we 
hover between a 2/3 score. The eventual outcome on this will depend on the results of specific 
PIs, for which we are still waiting.  

 
4.5 At this stage we are unable to make an informed judgement as to our predicted Direction of 

Travel score. 
 
4.6 For a more detailed breakdown of the CPA service assessment scores please see Appendix 1. 
 

5 Scrutiny Board Performance Issues 
5.3 City Development 
5.3.1 Planning Appeals 
Performance against BV 204 (the percentage of appeals allowed against the authority’s decision to 
refuse on planning applications) continues to miss target.  At the end of 2006/07, the result for this 
indicator was 37.4% against a target of 30%.  At the end of quarter 2, 2007/08, performance stood at 
51%, with a  predicted year end result of 40% (against a continuing target of 30%).   The nature of 
the indicator is such that the aim is to reduce the number of appeals allowed, but, as these figures 
indicate, the number of appeals allowed is increasing. 
 
Having identified in 2006/07 that there were performance issues relating to this indicator, various 
measures were taken to improve performance, including the provision of additional training for 
members and officers.   
 
There is an inherent delay in the appeals process, as they are allowed for up to six months after a 
decision has been taken; following this the length of time taken by the Planning Inspectorate to come 
to a final decision can vary from a number of weeks to a number of months, depending on the 
complexity and form of the appeal (it can involve a public inquiry, for example).  Because of this 
potentially protracted timescale, there was an appreciation that there would be a significant time lag 
before the benefits of  training and other improvements would be seen.   
 
Unfortunately, the benefits are still not evident and an urgent review has  begun to examine the 
reasons for our level of performance and to identify improvements in the quality of our submissions.  
The outcome will be reported to Development Scrutiny in January 2008 
 
 

Page 18



 3 

 
5.4 Culture and Leisure 
5.4.1 No significant performance issues to report in quarter two. 
 
5.5 Environment and Neighbourhoods 
5.5.1 Abandoned Vehicles (BV218a and BV218b)  
The council is working in partnership with the Police on abandoned vehicles and a police officer has 
been seconded to the council to work on this project until March 2008. However, in the year to date, 
there have been issues on performance through the unavailability of police resources (sickness and 
retirement) which look set to continue. For this reason, the annual predicted performance has been 
changed to 90%. 
 
It should be noted that prior to these resourcing issues, the partnership with the police was working 
well and the number of days that an abandoned vehicle is on the street has fallen from an average of 
8 days to just 3.5 hours. As this partnership is funded by NRF (which runs out in March 2008), there 
may be an adverse effect on performance in future years.  
 
With regard to part b of this indicator, the council uses a contractor based in Doncaster (Doncaster 
Motor Spares) for the removal of abandoned vehicles. 
 
Performance has deteriorated in the first five months of the year due to the effects of the flooding 
experienced in June and July. The contractor was unable to maintain its level of performance due to 
their premises being flooded and the need to provide assistance to local priorities.  
 
This resulted in a minor number of vehicles being picked up outside the 24 hour time window.  
Although performance is expected to improve over the coming months it is unlikely that the service 
will achieve its year end target. As such, the annual predicted performance figure has been revised to 
86%. 
 
5.3.1 Street Lighting (BV215a and BV215b)  
The Street Lighting Contract started on 1st July 2006 and SEC is the contractor appointed to deliver 
the street lighting PFI on behalf of the council. 
 
The data quality concerns highlighted in the previous report have been eased somewhat. Further 
auditing of the data used to calculate performance show that the quality of data is improving and we 
can have greater confidence in the figures presented. Also, system improvements have been made 
to make the process of calculating this PI easier and further developments are expected, which 
should further improve our confidence in the data provided. As a result, our data quality concerns 
have reduced from ‘significant’ in quarter 1 to ‘some’ in quarter 2. 
 
In terms of maintenance work, the average number of days taken to repair a street lighting fault has 
improved markedly on the previous year. However, performance is still below the target set for the 
year. This is as a result of staff being shifted from maintenance to the core investment programme 
leading to a backlog of maintenance jobs. This has been addressed by the recruitment of additional 
staff. These measures are part of the SEC Improvement Plan and the Plan has been presented to 
and agreed by the council (including CLT and LMT). 
 
In addition, in the first few months of the year, there were still a small number of jobs that had been in 
the system for some time and were only closed off in this quarter. This significantly increased the 
number of days used in the calculation of this PI. This issue has been raised with SEC and they are 
developing processes to improve the management of maintenance work. 
 
The core investment programme continues on target with the achievement of the milestone to install 
8,788 columns within the first year of the project, although the target date was postponed by 10 days 
due to the severe weather experienced in June and July. 
 
The Director of City Services will continue to closely monitor and manage the contract and keep the 
Executive Member for Development and Regeneration and the City Services PFI Board appraised of 
progress. 

Page 19



 4 

 
 
 
5.3.2 Graffiti (BV199b)  
Levels of graffiti have increased compared to the same period last year. An explanation for this is the 
timings of the surveys and the areas surveyed. Both Hyde Park & Woodhouse and Headingly were 
surveyed in the early part of the year. Traditionally, as recognised by ENCAMS, graffiti levels are 
prevalent in areas with a high student population. In order to combat these problems, a hot spot team 
is operational in the inner North West area but the team often find that as quickly as they remove 
graffiti in these areas, it reappears.  
 
However, although our performance has deteriorated, further analysis shows that our performance 
only narrowly fell below an acceptable level. In addition, a task group is in the process of being set up 
with the aim of using the wider DLEQS survey (a more extensive survey which uses multiple 
indicators of cleanliness from which BV199 is derived) to identify issues that need addressing, such 
as this. 
 
It is expected that our score will improve in future surveys but we have adjusted the predicted year 
end result to 8%.  
 
5.3.3 Crime  
In the case of crime, comparisons with the All England top quartiles are not particularly appropriate or 
helpful as we are not comparing like with like.  A better comparison is with core cities, but even then 
local differences tend to distort the picture.  It is better then to look at the reductions in crime 
achieved over time compared with other crime and disorder reduction partnership areas prioritised by 
the Home Office for crime reduction activity (CDRPs). The Police set an ambitious target to reduce 
overall crime levels by 35% between 2003/4 and 2007/8, whereas the Government requirement was 
only a 20% reduction for CRDP areas and, whilst we are unlikely to achieve the 35% reduction 
target, a 27.9% reduction so far (and a predicted year end position of 29.7%) reduction is a 
significant achievement, equivalent to 21,938 fewer offences.  This means we have had the second 
highest reduction out of the 44 priority CDRP areas. 
 
 
5.3.4 Drugs 
We continue to help a significant number of adult drug misusing offenders get out of crime and into 
treatment and through a multi-agency approach ensuring that they get other wrap-around support 
they need.  At the end of August we had 3014 adult drug misusing offenders in treatment and current 
predictions are that this will increase to 3700 by the end of the year which is in line with our target.  At 
the end of August, 79% were in treatment for twelve weeks or more which equals last year’s 
performance and current predictions are that 82% will be retained by the year end, slightly below our 
target of 85%. Taking this approach continues to be cost effective – it is estimated that for every £1 
spent on treatment, at least £9.50 is saved in crime and health costs.   We have also been improving 
our case management and are beginning to make a greater impact on some of the causes as well as 
the symptoms of their offending behaviour.   Users who were already on our caseload but who were 
continuing to commit crimes and record more than three positive drug tests over a three month 
period are elevated to High Crime Causing User status (HCCU) and we provide them with more 
intensive support from designated workers.  By June 2007 we were working with approximately 24 
HCCU clients and analysis of the offending patterns of this client group has shown that there has 
been an 81.7% reduction in arrests for trigger offences compared to the situation in the six months 
prior to them becoming HCCU clients. 
   
5.3.5  Housing Decency 
At the end of quarter two this year, 66% of Council homes met the Decent Homes Standard, and 
ALMOs are working towards achieving 100% decency by the end of 2010/11.  Of the remaining 
capital resources of £365m up to the end of 2010/11, 46% of these resources are available in 
2007/08. However, due to the elemental approach taken by ALMOs to completing decency work, it is 
unlikely that there will be significant increase in the number of properties becoming decent until 
2008/09 and 2009/10. On this basis Leeds’ is currently projecting 75% decency at the end of 
2007/08, 85% at the end of 2008/09, 93% at the end of 2009/10 and 100% at the end of 2010/11.  

Page 20



 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
5.6 Children and Young People 
5.6.1 Update on issues from Quarter 1 – Data Quality and updating performance measures 
In quarter 1, data quality for key indicators was raised a key issue, alongside the need to integrate 
reporting of the wider CYPP dataset. Work has continued on these tasks over the past three months.  
 
Data quality concerns centred on Youth Service indicators. The service is currently implementing its 
new management information system, which will be central to addressing these problems. Further 
work will be undertaken over the next few months to ensure this is making an impact and to address 
wider business processes. The Director of Children’s Services Unit has secured additional resources 
to support this work and will work closely with the service to resolve this issue. 
 
Wider performance measures have now been included in this quarter’s performance reports, as can 
be seen below. At present managing this task across organisational boundaries within the 
partnership can be challenging so further work needs to be undertaken to ensure effective systems 
and support are in place to continue these developments to allow effective information management 
across children’s services. 

 
5.5.2  Be Healthy – Reducing teenage conceptions 
Reducing teenage conceptions is an important local and national target. Research shows poor 
outcomes are likely for both the young parents and their children, reinforcing intergenerational 
deprivation and diminished life chances. Furthermore recent work by UNICEF suggests that teenage 
conception is a good proxy for the overall well-being of young people with high levels associated with 
wider poor outcomes and caused by a lack of support and low aspirations. 

 
Despite earlier encouraging signs, Leeds has made considerably less progress in reducing the 
number of teenage conceptions in the city than has been seen either nationally or in similar areas. 
Due to delays in the figures becoming available the latest figures reflect various problems such as 
weaknesses in local Contraceptive And Sexual Health services seen several years ago.  

 
In response to this priority the Director of Children’s Services Unit has worked with key local partners 
such as the PCT and Education Leeds to reorganise leadership and commissioning for sexual health 
services. Improvements are being made to the collection of use of key data, which will inform more 
targeted work with communities where needs are highest. Early signs for these changes are 
encouraging. 

 
5.5.3  Stay Safe – the number of Looked After Children and Young People 
This is a very significant issue for children and young people as those Looked After generally have 
poor outcomes whilst they are young and have diminished life chances throughout their adult life. 
This is also a significant issue for local services as the high cost of supporting children in care poses 
heavy burdens on staff and resources. 

 
The number of Looked After Children and Young People in Leeds is significantly higher than either 
the average for England or benchmark authorities. This higher level has continued since at least the 
turn of the century but has seen marked rises over the past two years. The recent rise is largely 
attributed to an increase in safeguarding issues and in the marked rise in unaccompanied asylum 
seeking children and young people.  Local research has confirmed that domestic violence, parental 
mental health and parental drug misuse are common features in families where the children become 
looked after. 

 
The short-term response has been to invest in additional social workers and social work assistants in 
2007 in order to ensure that additional demands placed upon services by increasing numbers of 
looked after children are being met appropriately. In total an additional 35 posts have been 
established. In the longer-term the Authority has established a target to reduce the number of looked 

Page 21



 6 

after children in Leeds to the levels of its statistical neighbours within 5 years. It intends to achieve 
this by improving the effectiveness of its support for families of children under 5 years old; developing 
specific programmed support for drug misusing parents and for families with 10-15 year old young 
people through its family resource centres. It also intends to review its early rehabilitation processes. 

 
 

5.5.4   Stay Safe – the timeliness of reviews of Looked After Children and Young People 
The timeliness of reviews for Looked After Children and Young People is a key measure of the 
effectiveness of local care management, and as such is a proxy for how well local children’s services 
are supporting this most vulnerable group.  

 
Local performance against this indicator is poor. In March 2007 only 34% of reviews in Leeds were 
completed to timescale, compared to benchmark averages of 85% or more. As such. OfSTED placed 
Leeds into the lowest category ‘Investigate Urgently’. Since April focused effort within Social Care 
and the additional resources mentioned above have produced improvements, with 63% of reviews 
currently completed to time. However, because of the way this measures works the indicator will 
decline over time, with an expected full year result of 40%, still well within the lowest category. This is 
due to the need to complete all six monthly reviews on time within the year to achieve this measure 
fully, and as such only sustained improvement will see performance rise. 

 
To address this problem Children and Young People’s Social Care and wider partners have agreed 
to commit additional resources and restructure the Independent Reviewing Officer and support 
teams, audit  business processes and agree new arrangements, produce revised guidance and 
support for care management and review teams and finally to implement new ICT and information 
management processes to improve recording, management information and data quality. 

 
5.5.5   Enjoy and Achieve – the proportion of schools below the Key Stage 3 Floor Target 
Achievement of minimum standards in those secondary schools with lowest attainment is a key issue 
because education is vital to improving young people’s life chances and because we need to narrow 
the gap for those young people and communities that at present have the lowest outcomes. This 
measure is important as a mandatory target in the Local Area Agreement and a key focus for the 
government as a proxy for successful support and intervention in those schools facing the most 
serious challenges. 

 
Over recent years learners, schools and Education Leeds have made a big impact on reducing the 
number of secondary schools attaining below national minimum ‘floor targets’ for both Key Stage 3 
and Key Stage 4/GCSE. However this year has seen a decline in performance against e Key Stage 3 
indicator, with provisional results for 2007 suggesting twelve schools have not met the floor target of 
at least 50% of learners achieving Level 5 in English, maths and science. This is well below the 
citywide target of five schools, and means that attaining future years’ targets will be even more 
challenging. 

 
To address this, selected schools have been targeted for intensive support in 2007/08.  The 
allocation of support through the National Strategies consultants programme is being reorganised to 
boost achievement at Key Stage 3, with the development of intensive ‘residencies’ of consultant 
provided sustained support within the schools.   
 
5.5.6   Enjoy and Achieve – secondary school attendance 
Secondary school attendance is a priority for central and local government and key target in the 
Leeds Local Area Agreement. Attendance at school is important not just for learning but also as a 
good indicator for young people being engaged, happy and safe. Conversely, low attendance is 
linked with risky behaviours such as crime, drug and alcohol misuse and teenage conceptions. 

 
Unlike in primary schools, attendance in Leeds secondary schools is below national and comparative 
authorities. In recent years learners, schools, Education Leeds and wider partners have been very 
successful in raising attendance in secondary schools. However, attendance fell in 2005/06, and then 
rose slightly in 2006/07. However, the rise was not as much as achieved nationally and in statistical 
neighbours, therefore the gap in performance has widened. Authorised absence fell in 2006/07 and is 

Page 22



 7 

now lower than in any of the last five years but unauthorised absence has increased. An important 
element of improving attendance will be in reducing the number of persistent absentees (those pupils 
with attendance below 80%). Leeds has a higher rate of these pupils than seen nationally, and these 
young people contribute significantly to attendance rates overall. The 4055 pupils that were 
persistent absentees in 2006/07 contributed 30% of authorised absence and 72% of unauthorised 
absence in the city. Leeds now has 18 secondary schools targeted by DCSF for high levels of 
persistent absence. 

 
In response to this Education Leeds and partners have agreed improvements with the DCSF. This 
will include: focused work with the all targeted schools; increased joint working within Education 
Leeds between the Attendance Strategy Team, National Strategies, School Improvement, supported 
by the School Improvement Partners who will target interventions for these schools. In addition there 
will be a new ‘RAG’ escalation process has been developed to flag up issues on a half termly basis to 
ensure quick collective responses to emerging issues. In the longer term research is underway to 
identify good practice in multi-agency approaches to raising attendance, which will inform a 
Children’s Services Attendance Strategy for joint working in the future. 
 
 
5.7 Health and Adult Social Care 
5.7.1 Direct Payments 
The number of people using direct payments in Leeds is relatively low. This has a number of 
consequences, the most important of which is the probability that there are people in Leeds who 
could be benefiting from using direct payments but are not doing so. The low take up of direct 
payments also results in the department performing badly in respect of key performance indicators 
which contribute to the Council’s overall star rating  
 
Leeds performance for Direct Payments for 2006/07 was 40. This performance was rated in the third 
of five bands by the Department of Health and classed as “Acceptable but room for improvement”. 40 
per 100,000 population amounts to 225 people. The national average for this indicator for 2005/06 
was 84 with a plan to achieve 104 by 2006/07. 
 
The service has set a target for 2007/08 of 95 per 100,000. This will realign Leeds performance with 
that of other authorities and maintain the authority’s performance rating for the indicator which has 
been upwardly revised by CSCI. In 2007/08 a performance of 60 is required to meet the key 
threshold and 90 needed to be ‘acceptable’. 536 people will need to be in receipt of Direct Payments 
by 31st March 2008 to meet the Leeds target. To meet the Key Threshold, the Council need to have 
more than 335 people in receipt of Direct Payments. By 31st September 2007 Leeds had 344 people 
receiving direct payments. This equates to 61.58 per 100,000 population. Current forecasts suggest 
that around 540 people will be receiving support via this means by March 2008.  
 
Leeds has been achieving this transformation in performance through the implementation of a Direct 
Payments Improvement Plan which includes the following elements: 
 
1. Review and update the department’s written direct payments procedures. 
2. Review the direct payments pay rates. 
3. Promote and publicise direct payments in Leeds 
4. Revisit training on direct payments for  assessors/ care managers to raise awareness and improve 
understanding of direct payments 
5. Improve involvement of Direct payments service users  
6. Improve Direct Payments performance management systems.  
7. Improve arrangements for the support of Direct Payments Service Users  
8. Increase the use of direct payments to purchase items of equipment 
9. To revisit promotion of direct payments to people from black and ethnic minority communities 
10. To introduce  service user involvement in the Direct Payments Project Operational Group  
11. Ensure that the option of direct payments is considered at every review 
 
5.8 Resources 
5.8.1 Early Retirements 

Page 23



 8 

Early retirement can be a useful way in which the organisation can manage change. In the past year 
there has been a need to make significant change in parts of the organisation, for example in Jobs 
and Skills following the loss of external contracts, and the facility to offer early retirement has been a 
helpful way of dealing with these situations. In Leeds each decision is taken following the preparation 
of a full business case which will normally demonstrate that financial savings will be achieved through 
the deletion of the retiree's post or through a restructuring exercise. These decisions are subject to 
the agreement of the service Director, the Chief Officer (Human Resources) and the Director of 
Resources. 

 
6 Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers the Quarter 2 performance 
information and highlight any areas for further scrutiny or referral to Scrutiny Boards as appropriate. 
 
 

Page 24



L
e

e
d

s
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

c
il

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

T
w

o
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt

2
0

0
7

/2
0

0
8

Page 25



C
o

n
te

n
ts

G
u
id

a
n
c
e

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

P
o
lic

y
, 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

2
0
 -

 2
4

2
5
 -

 2
6

2
7
 -

 3
0

2

3
 -

 5

6
 -

 1
1

1
2
 -

 1

1

Page 26



A
c

c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e

C
o

lu
m

n

N
o

.
C

o
lu

m
n

 T
it

le
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

lu
m

n

N
o

.
C

o
lu

m
n

 T
it

le
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

C
o

lo
u

r

C
o

d
e

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 u

s
e

 t
h

is
 c

o
lu

m
n

 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 h
o

w
 w

e
ll 

th
e

y
 e

x
p

e
c
t 

to
 d

o
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
y
 

fo
re

c
a

s
t 

th
is

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

e
a

c
h

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 m
a

y
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 e
a

c
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 W

e
 u

s
e

 t
h

is
 f

ig
u

re
 a

s
 o

n
e

 

m
e

th
o

d
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

a
n

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 r
e

d
, 

a
m

b
e

r 
o

r 
g

re
e

n
.

T
h

e
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 c
o

lu
m

n
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 b

a
s
k
e

t 
e

a
c
h

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
b

e
lo

n
g

s
 t

o
. 

 A
 b

a
s
k
e

t 
is

 a
 s

e
t 

o
f 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 u
s
e

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
p

la
n

s
 o

r 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

s
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 o
r 

B
V

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 l
is

te
d

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

ls
 w

e
 

u
s
e

 t
o

 r
e

fe
r 

to
 t

h
e

s
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
b

a
s
k
e

ts
.

T
h

e
 g

re
e

n
 l
ig

h
t 

s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 p
re

d
ic

ts
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r
W

IL
L

 m
e

e
t 

it
s
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 T
h

e
 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 u
s
e

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

is
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t.

C
P

A
 -

 T
h

e
s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

B
V

 -
 W

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

L
K

I 
- 

T
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 l
o

c
a

l 
k
e

y
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

L
e

e
d

s

A
n

 a
m

b
e

r 
tr

a
ff

ic
 l
ig

h
t 

s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 p
re

d
ic

ts
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

m
e

e
t 

it
s
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 s
ti
ll 

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

re
s
u

lt
 i
n

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
. 

T
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 u
s
e

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

is
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t.

C
P

 -
 T

h
e

s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o

w
 w

h
a

t 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 w

e
 a

re
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n

L
A

A
 -

 T
h

e
s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o

w
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t

P
A

F
 -

 W
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 (

C
S

C
I)

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

T
h

e
 r

e
d

 l
ig

h
ts

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 p
re

d
ic

ts
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
W

IL
L

 N
O

T
  

m
e

e
t 

it
s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
t 

th
e

 

e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 u
s
e

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

is
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t.

T
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 p
re

d
ic

ts
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 D

O
 B

E
T

T
E

R
 t

h
a

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
y
 

a
re

 u
s
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 (

c
o

lu
m

n
 9

) 
to

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t.

T
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 p
re

d
ic

ts
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 B

E
 T

H
E

 S
A

M
E

 a
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
y
 

a
re

 u
s
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 (

c
o

lu
m

n
 9

) 
to

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t.

T
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 p
re

d
ic

ts
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 B

E
 W

O
R

S
E

 a
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
y
 a

re
 

u
s
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 (

c
o

lu
m

n
 9

) 
to

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t.

T
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 p
re

d
ic

ts
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 T

O
P

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
a

n
g

e
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 u

s
in

g
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 (

c
o

lu
m

n
 9

) 
to

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t.

T
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 p
re

d
ic

ts
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

ID
D

L
E

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

p
 a

n
d

 b
o

tt
o

m
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
a

n
g

e
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 u

s
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 (

c
o

lu
m

n
 9

) 
to

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 

fo
re

c
a

s
t.

T
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 p
re

d
ic

ts
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

O
T

T
O

M
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
a

n
g

e
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 

u
s
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 (

c
o

lu
m

n
 9

) 
to

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t.

4

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 &

 

M
e

a
s
u

re

T
h

e
 t

o
p

 l
in

e
 i
n

 t
h

is
 c

o
lu

m
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 h

o
w

 o
ft

e
n

 w
e

 c
o

lle
c
t 

th
is

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 e

v
e

ry
 

m
o

n
th

, 
e

v
e

ry
 t

h
re

e
 m

o
n

th
s
 (

q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
) 

o
r 

o
n

c
e

 a
 y

e
a

r 
(a

n
n

u
a

lly
).

 W
e

 o
n

ly
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 (
a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

M
a

rc
h

).
 

T
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 l
in

e
 i
n

 t
h

is
 c

o
lu

m
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 w

h
a

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
 w

e
 u

s
e

 t
o

 c
h

e
c
k
 o

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 

F
o

r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

w
e

 m
ig

h
t 

m
e

a
s
u

re
 t

h
is

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

a
y
s
 o

r 
w

e
e

k
s
 w

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
a

k
e

 t
o

 f
in

is
h

 

s
o

m
e

th
in

g
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 a

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 

In
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
c
a

s
e

, 
w

e
 m

ig
h

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 w

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 w

it
h

in
 f

iv
e

 m
in

u
te

s
.

1
1

a
A

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 B

o
tt

o
m

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 R
a

n
g

e

5

G
o

o
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

T
h

e
 g

o
o

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 c
o

lu
m

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 i
f 

th
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 g
o

 u
p

 o
r 

d
o

w
n

 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

w
e

 

a
re

 d
o

in
g

 w
e

ll.
 F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

if
 t

h
is

 i
s
 s

e
t 

to
 r

is
e

, 
y
o

u
 w

o
u

ld
 e

x
p

e
c
t 

th
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

.

1
3

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 P

o
s
it
io

n

N
o

 C
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
  

th
a

t 
th

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 h
a

s
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

 t
h

e
 d

a
ta

 a
s
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

.
N

o

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

If
 S

o
m

e
 C

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

h
o

s
e

n
, 

th
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 h
a

s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 a
re

 

w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
t 

is
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 a
n

d
 r

e
lia

b
le

. 

S
o

m
e

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

If
 S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
C

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

h
o

s
e

n
, 

th
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 t
h

in
k
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 m
a

y
 

n
o

t 
b

e
 g

o
o

d
 o

r 
th

a
t 

m
a

y
b

e
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
g

o
t 

th
e

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 

d
a

ta
. 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

7
2

0
0

7
/0

8
 T

a
rg

e
t

T
h

is
 c

o
lu

m
n

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

8
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

o
s
it
io

n
T

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

e
a

c
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r.

  
W

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

th
 w

e
 

s
to

p
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

is
 c

o
lu

m
n

.
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

P
re

d
ic

te
d

 F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

1
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

T
it
le

T
h

e
 t

it
le

 c
o

lu
m

n
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
s
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t

h
e

 d
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 C
S

C
I 

s
e

ts
 t

h
e

 d
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

P
A

F
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

1
0

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
s

9

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
h

is
 c

o
m

p
a

re
s
 h

o
w

 w
e

 e
x
p

e
c
t 

to
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r 
c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 W
e

 u
s
e

 t
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

x
p

la
in

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s

3
S

e
rv

ic
e

T
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
o

lu
m

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

e
a

m
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 d

a
ta

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 i
ts

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

c
o

u
n

c
ils

 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 (
k
n

o
w

n
 a

s
 A

ll 
E

n
g

la
n

d
).

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
ls

o
 t

a
k
e

s
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 

1
1

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 T
o

p
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 R
a

n
g

e

2

T
h

is
 c

o
lu

m
n

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
e

 A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 B
o

tt
o

m
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
a

n
g

e
. 

T
h

e
 t

ra
ff

ic
 l
ig

h
t 

in
 c

o
lu

m
n

 1
1

, 
to

 t
h

e
 l
e

ft
 o

f 
th

is
, 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h

e
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 L

e
e

d
s
 p

o
s
it
io

n
.

1
2

C
o

re
 C

it
ie

s
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
T

h
is

 c
o

lu
m

n
 d

e
ta

ils
 t

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 C
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 

T
a

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
u

lt
s

6
2

0
0

6
/0

7
 Y

e
a

r 
E

n
d

T
h

is
 c

o
lu

m
n

 d
is

p
la

y
s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

(3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
7

)

T
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
h

o
u

ld
 e

x
p

la
in

 w
h

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 v
a

ri
e

s
. 

T
h

e
y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
if
 t

h
e

re
 

a
re

 a
n

y
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
s
te

p
s
 t

h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 i
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 i
t.

 T
h

is
 

T
h

is
 c

o
lu

m
n

 d
e

ta
ils

 t
h

e
 L

e
e

d
s
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
ig

h
t 

C
o

re
 C

it
ie

s
. 

T
o

 k
n

o
w

 w
e

 c
a

n
 r

e
ly

 o
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
, 

it
 h

a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 o

f 
g

o
o

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
. 

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 u

s
e

 t
h

is
 

1
4

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 I

s
s
u

e
s

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 a

d
d

 a
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

h
e

re
 t

o
 e

x
p

la
in

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

ir
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 i
s
, 

if
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

y
. 

1

Page 27



A
d

u
lt

 H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

0
7
/0

8
 R

e
s
u

lt
 

to
 D

a
te

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 -

 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

1
0
0
%

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
*

8
0
%

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

d
e
c
lin

e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
*

0
%

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 p
re

d
ic

te
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 c

a
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 e

a
c
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r*

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
1
a

1
2

1
3

1
4

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

B
V

-2
0
1

C
P

-S
S

A
5
1

C
5
1

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 d

ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 1

8
 y

e
a
rs

 o
r 

o
v
e
r 

(a
g
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

is
e
d
 b

y
 a

g
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
)

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

A
d
u
lt
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
4
0

9
5

6
2

9
5

9
9

5
8

7
2

8
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-5
6

C
P

-S
S

A
5
0

D
5
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
it
e
m

s
 o

f 
e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
d
e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 7
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
.

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

A
d
u
lt
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

8
9

8
9

9
0

8
9

9
1

8
2

8
5

3
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
9
5

D
5
5

A
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 (
D

H
) 

w
a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
s
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

8
1
.7

8
5
.0

8
4
.9

8
6
.0

8
3
.5

7
2
.4

7
1
.3

6
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
9
6

D
5
6

A
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 (
D

H
) 

w
a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

7
6
.8

8
5
.0

8
5
.8

8
5
.0

9
1
.5

8
2
.5

8
2
.9

4
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-5
4

C
3
2

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 h
e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 6

5
 

o
r 

o
v
e
r.

 (
P

A
F

 C
3
2
)

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
7
4
.7

0
8
8
.0

0
7
9
.9

0
8
8
.0

0
1
0
0
.1

0
7
2
.2

0
8
7
.9

1
1

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

W
e
 a

re
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

a
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
fe

w
 w

e
e
k
s
. 
P

re
lim

in
a
ry

 c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 s

u
g
g

e
s
t 
th

a
t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
5
7
0
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 A
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

8
9

0

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
  
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
it
s
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
0
7
/0

8
.

L
e
e
d
s
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
8
8
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 i
ts

 c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

g
ro

u
p
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
.

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g
 i
s
 a

t 
th

re
e
 b

lo
b
s
 (

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

).
 G

iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
tr

a
je

c
to

ry
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 r

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
rt

h
 b

a
n
d
 (

g
o
o
d
) 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
fe

w
 w

e
e
k
s
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 m

e
e
t 
o
u
r 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 T

a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

s
a
m

e
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

.

L
e
e
d
s
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
7
5
.1

 i
n
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 8

2
.1

 i
n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g
 i
s
 a

t 
fo

u
r 

b
lo

b
s
 (

g
o
o
d
).

  
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 m
e
t 
o
u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
0
7
/0

8
.

L
e
e
d
s
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
8
7
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 8

9
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 r

a
te

d
  
in

 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
b
a
n
d
 (

v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
) 

b
y
 C

S
C

I.
 T

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
0
7
/0

8
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
rp

a
s
s
e
d
.

L
e
e
d
s
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
8
3
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 8

6
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 R

e
s
u

lt

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 s

u
rp

a
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
k
e
y
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
u
s
e
 o

f 
D

ir
e
c
t 
P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 o

n
 

c
o
u
rs

e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
it
s
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
9
5
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

L
e
e
d
s
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
7
7
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 9

3
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
.

7
0
%

1
6
%

7
1
%

2

Page 28



C
it

y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

0
7
/0

8
 R

e
s
u

lt
 

to
 D

a
te

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 -

 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

7
0
%

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
*

6
0
%

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

d
e
c
lin

e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
*

3
0
%

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 p
re

d
ic

te
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 c

a
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 e

a
c
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r*

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
1
a

1
2

1
3

1
4

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

B
V

-1
7
0
a

a
. 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
is

it
s
/e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
/w

e
b
s
it
e
 h

it
s
 t
o
 m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

M
u
s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d
 

G
a
lle

ri
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
9
4
2
.0

0
9
3
5
.0

0
5
3
9
.0

0
1
0
7
8
.0

0
9
5
8
.0

0
1
3
3

2
0
9
3

8
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
7
0
b

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
th

o
s
e
 v

is
it
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 i
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

M
u
s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d
 

G
a
lle

ri
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
5
3
4
.0

0
5
3
0
.0

0
3
2
9
.0

0
6
5
8
.0

0
5
2
3
.0

0
8
7

1
3
3
0

6
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
7
0
c

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 v
is

it
in

g
 m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d
 g

a
lle

ri
e
s
 i
n
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
g
ro

u
p
s

M
u
s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d
 

G
a
lle

ri
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
2
6
1
5
1
.0

0
2
7
9
0
0
.0

0
8
0
3
5
.0

0
1
6
0
7
0
.0

0
8
1
5
6
.0

0
6
4
1

3
4
4
0
6

5
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 R

e
s
u

lt

T
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

s
a
w

 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fu

ll 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
e
d
 A

rt
 G

a
lle

ry
, 
 t
h
e
 '
s
o
ft
' 
o
p
e
n
in

g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 D
is

c
o
v
e
ry

 C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
f 
T

h
w

a
it
e
 M

ill
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
a
s
ta

ti
n
g
 f
lo

o
d
s
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
. 
 W

o
rk

 o
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 c
o
m

p
le

te
ly

 n
e
w

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
's

 w
e
b
s
it
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 f
ru

it
io

n
. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
w

 w
e
b
s
it
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 c

o
m

e
 o

n
 l
in

e
 i
n
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
. 

 T
h
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

e
g
a
n
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
th

is
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

b
u
t 
n
e
w

 s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
  
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
d
 

a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
. 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
is

it
s
/e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
/w

e
b
s
it
e
 h

it
s
 t
o
 m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 3

5
4
 i
n
 Q

2
.

5
0
%

4
0
%

7
0
%

T
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

h
a
s
 s

e
e
n
 v

is
it
o
rs

 i
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
 b

o
u
n
c
e
 b

a
c
k
. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
o
p
e
n
e
d
 A

rt
 G

a
lle

ry
 i
s
 p

ro
v
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 p

o
p
u
la

r 
a
n
d
 T

h
w

a
it
e
 M

ill
s
 w

a
s
 o

p
e
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

n
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 l
a
rg

e
 e

v
e
n
t 
w

a
s
 l
o
s
t 
in

 J
u
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 f
lo

o
d
 d

a
m

a
g
e
 a

t 
th

e
 

s
it
e
. 
 S

e
v
e
ra

l 
s
it
e
s
 a

ls
o
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 h

ig
h
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
v
is

it
o
rs

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 O

p
e
n
 W

e
e
k
e
n
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

  
 G

iv
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 A

rt
 G

a
lle

ry
 w

a
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

m
u
c
h
 o

f 
q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 3
 a

n
d
 4

 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r,

 i
t 
is

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 i
n
 v

is
it
o
r

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

 G
ro

u
p
 v

is
it
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 D
is

c
o
v
e
ry

 C
e
n
tr

e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 v

is
it
o
r 

fi
g
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 g

ro
w

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

t 
th

is
 s

it
e
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
s

s
tr

o
n
g
ly

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 q

u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.
  
  
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
is

it
s
 i
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
 t
o
 m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 w

a
s
 2

4
4
 i
n
 Q

2
.

S
c
h
o
o
l 
v
is

it
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 l
o
w

 d
u
ri
n
g
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 d

u
e
 t
o
 m

o
s
t 
o
f 
it
 b

e
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
lid

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
s
p
it
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
o
p
e
n
e
d
 A

rt
 G

a
lle

ry
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
s
t 
b
e
g
in

n
in

g
s
 o

f 
a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

t 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 D
is

c
o
v
e
ry

 C
e
n
tr

e
.

V
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 w

e
re

 b
e
in

g
 f
ill

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
 b

u
t 
p
o
s
th

o
ld

e
rs

 w
e
re

 n
o
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
h
a
v
in

g
 n

e
w

 s
ta

ff
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

ill
 r

e
a
lly

 o
n
ly

 s
ta

rt
 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
e
n
 i
n
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
. 
 O

n
c
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
th

e
s
e
 

p
o
s
ts

 w
ill

 e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
  
to

 b
u
ild

 o
n
 i
ts

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
m

a
rk

e
t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 n

e
w

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

ro
a
d
e
n
 i
ts

 a
p
p
e
a
l 
a
n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 i
ts

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 v
is

it
in

g
 m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d
 g

a
lle

ri
e
s
 i
n
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
g
ro

u
p
s
 w

a
s
 2

4
4
0
 i
n
 Q

2
.

3

Page 29



C
it

y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

B
V

-1
0
9
a

C
P

-P
L
5
0

C
P

A
-E

2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t's

 n
e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 a

) 

6
0
%

 o
f 
m

a
jo

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 1

3
 w

e
e
k
s

P
la

n
n
in

g
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

6
1
.0

1
6
0
.0

0
6
6
.1

4
6
3
.0

0
7
4
.9

0
5
7

6
4
.7

3
7

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
0
9
b

C
P

-P
L
5
0
,

C
P

A
-E

2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 b

) 
6
5
%

 o
f 
m

in
o
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 8

 w
e
e
k
s
.

P
la

n
n
in

g
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

6
9
.8

9
6
5
.0

0
7
9
.0

2
7
0
.0

0
8
1
.0

7
6
9

7
5
.3

6
5

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
0
9
c

C
P

A
-E

2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
  
 c

) 
8
0
%

 o
f 
o
th

e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 8
 w

e
e
k
s

P
la

n
n
in

g
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

8
3
.5

8
8
0
.0

0
8
6
.5

6
8
5
.0

0
9
1
.3

9
8
3

8
5
.4

6
7

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-2
0
4

C
P

A
-E

4
2

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
e
a
ls

 a
llo

w
e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 

to
 r

e
fu

s
e
 o

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

P
la

n
n
in

g
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

3
7
.4

0
3
0
.0

0
5
1
.0

0
4
0
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
3
6

2
8
.5

2
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-2
0
5

C
P

-P
L
5
1
 C

P
A

-

E
4
3

Q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t
P

la
n
n
in

g
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

S
e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

1
0
0
.0

0
8
3
.3

0
9
0
.7

8
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
to

 m
a
tc

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t's

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
  
ta

rg
e
ts

.

In
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
5
 o

u
t 
o
f 
6
4
 a

p
e
a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
llo

w
e
d
, 
c
o
n
tr

a
ry

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 t
o
 r

e
fu

s
e
.

T
h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ti
m

e
 d

e
la

y
 i
n
h
e
re

n
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
e
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
ix

 m
o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

a
n
 a

p
p
e
a
l 
to

 b
e
 l
o
d
g
e
d
. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
is

, 
th

e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
ti
m

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

In
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
o
 c

o
m

e
 t
o
 a

 f
in

a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 c

a
n
 v

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
w

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

o
n
th

s
, 
d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 a

n
d

 f
o
rm

 o
f 
th

e
 a

p
p
e
a
l 
(t

h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 i
n
q
u
ir
y
, 
o
r 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

) 
T

h
is

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
h
a
s
 a

 d
ir
e
c
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r;
 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ti
m

e
la

g
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

, 
o
ff
ic

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
fo

re
 t
h
e
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 f
ilt

e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 I
n
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
In

 t
h
e
 m

e
a
n
 t
im

e
 t
h
e
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

lo
s
e

ly

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

o
in

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 e

m
e
rg

e
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
. 
T

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ti
m

e
la

g
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t
a
k
e
 e

ff
e
c
t.

A
n
 u

rg
e
n
t 
re

v
ie

w
 h

a
s
  
b
e
g
u
n
 t
o
 e

x
a
m

in
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
u
r 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 
 T

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
8

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 s

e
t 
a
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 c
la

ri
fy

 w
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 a

s
 r

e
g
a
rd

s
 t

h
e

P
e
n
d
le

to
n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

s
u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
a
 p

re
-d

e
fi
n
e
d
 l
is

t)
. 
 A

 c
h
a
rt

e
r 

fo
r 

m
a
jo

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 d

ra
ft
, 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
, 
fo

c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
c
o
m

p
le

x
 a

n
d
 l
a
rg

e
-s

c
a
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
is

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 b
e
a
ri
n
g
 o

n
 f
u
tu

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.

R
e
s
o
u
rc

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 c

a
n
n
o
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
 p

re
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 f
o
r 

e
v
e
ry

 a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t
y
p
e
 a

n
d
 s

iz
e
 i
n
 a

ll 
fo

rm
s
. 
 T

h
e
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 s
c
a
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
i c

re
v
ie

w
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
. 

If
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 i
s
 u

s
e
d
 t
h
e
 0

6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
 R

e
s
u
lt
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 7

2
.2

%
, 
th

e
s
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
.

T
a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
to

 m
a
tc

h
 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t's

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 ;
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
s
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 m
e
t 
w

h
ils

t 
a
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
, 
e
n
a
b
lin

g
 u

s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 
P

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d

a
n
d
 w

ill
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 m

a
jo

r 
c
a
s
e
w

o
rk

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 s

o
m

e
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
fr

e
e
la

n
c
e
 p

la
n
n
e
rs

, 
o
v
e
rt

im
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

.

T
a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
to

 m
a
tc

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t'
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
  
ta

rg
e
ts

.

4

Page 30



C
it

y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

C
P

-C
U

5
0
b

L
K

I-
S

P
9
c

L
A

A
-E

D
E

2
3
b

V
is

it
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 -

 S
p
o
rt

 &
 A

c
ti
v
e
 

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

S
p
o
rt

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
4
1
5
2
0
7
5
.0

0
4
1
0
0
0
0
0
.0

0
2
0
2
4
5
2
4
.0

0
4
1
0
0
0
0
0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
0
6

C
P

A
-E

2
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 l
a
n
d

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

P
o
lic

y

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
6
.9

2
9
2
.0

0
9
0
.9

4
9
2
.6

3
9
6
.7

4
6
2
.5

2
9
5
.0

5
4

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
6
5

C
P

A
-E

1
6

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
s
 w

it
h
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 

p
e
o
p
le

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

P
o
lic

y

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

7
7
.3

4
8
4
.0

0
7
7
.3

0
8
2
.0

0
9
9
.6

7
5
.6

7
2
.5

4
S

o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
h
e
 2

0
0
6
-0

7
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 J

u
ly

 a
u
d
it
. 
 T

h
e
 2

0
0
7
-0

8
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 a

n
d
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
a
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 s

h
o
w

 a
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
tw

o
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

. 
  
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
re

m
e
d
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 o

n
 s

o
m

e
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
. 

 I
t 
is

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

. 
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
ro

s
s
in

g
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 B

V
1
6
5
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
is

it
s
 i
n
 Q

2
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 w

a
s
 9

2
0
,4

4
4
. 
F

o
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 9
8
2
, 
2
0
6
 v

is
it
s
, 
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
6
.7

%
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 J

o
h
n
 S

m
e
a
to

n
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 5

1
,3

8
2
 v

is
it
s
. 
 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
p
u

w
a
s
 a

ls
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

t 
S

o
u
th

 L
e
e
d
s
 S

p
o
rt

s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 w

it
h
 1

4
, 
6
9
3
 v

is
it
s
 (

th
is

 s
it
e
 w

a
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r)

 a
n
d
 A

ir
e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

e
is

iu
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 w

h
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 5

0
%

 m
o
re

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
p
u
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

w
h
e
n
 i
t's

 p
o
o
l 
w

a
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t.

In
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
4
,1

5
2
,0

7
5
 v

is
it
o
rs

 t
o
 s

p
o
rt

s
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
,9

5
0
,0

0
0
. 
 T

h
is

 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 h
ig

h
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
B

o
d
y
lin

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 g

y
m

 a
n
d
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

fo
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 o

f 
4
,1

0
0
,0

0
0
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r'
s
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
u
t 
lo

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th

e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 t
h
a
t 
B

o
d
y
lin

e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 w

o
u
ld

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
.

F
ig

u
re

s
 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
re

 1
2
3
5
 o

u
t 
o
f 
 1

3
5
8
 b

ro
w

n
fi
e
ld

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 (

g
ro

s
s
) 

 B
ro

w
n
fi
e
ld

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

u
n
 a

t 
a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 U

D
P

 p
o
lic

y
.

S
in

c
e
 m

id
 2

0
0
0
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 p

o
lic

y
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 u
s
e
d
 (

b
ro

w
n
fi
e
ld

) 
s
it
e
s
. 
D

u
ri
n

g
 t
h
is

 t
im

e
, 
a
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
e
m

b
a
rg

o
 o

n
 t
h
e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
 o

f 
p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 u
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 s

it
e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
e
x
c
e
p
t 
in

 o
c
c
a
s
io

n
a
l 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.
  
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 b

ro
w

n
fi
e
ld

 l
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 r

is
e
n
 f
ro

m
 7

4
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
0
-1

 t
o
 9

7
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
6
-7

. 
T

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 a

 l
it
tl
e
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
is

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

n
e
 v

e
ry

 l
a
rg

e
 g

re
e
n
fi
e
ld

 s
it
e
 

(S
h
a
rp

 L
a
n
e
) 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
; 
th

is
 w

ill
 m

o
d
e
ra

te
 b

ro
w

n
fi
e
ld

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 c

o
m

e
. 
M

u
c
h
 m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 l
a
n
d
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 i
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 L

a
n
d
 M

o
n
it
o
rs

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 t
w

ic
e
 a

 y
e
a
r.

5

Page 31



C
it

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

0
7
/0

8
 R

e
s
u

lt
 

to
 D

a
te

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 -

 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

6
5
%

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
*

6
5
%

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

d
e
c
lin

e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
*

2
5
%

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 p
re

d
ic

te
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 c

a
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 e

a
c
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r*

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
1
a

1
2

1
3

1
4

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

B
V

-8
2
a
(i
)

C
P

-R
C

5
0
 C

P
A

-

E
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
b
y
 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
5
.8

3
1
8
.0

7
1
7
.2

0
1
8
.3

0
2
0
.8

7
1
4
.2

5
1
3
.7

5
1

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-8
2
a
(i
i)

C
P

A
-E

6
T

o
ta

l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 

b
y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
5
3
,4

8
6
.0

0
6
1
,4

3
5
.0

0
2
5
,7

3
8
.0

0
6
1
,4

3
5
.0

0
1
5
,1

2
6
.1

0
6
,1

4
0
.1

4
3
2
,3

3
0
.5

8
1

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
0
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 R

e
s
u

lt

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
o
n
ly

, 
a
s
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
ru

n
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

.

L
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 r

e
m

a
in

 f
a
ir
ly

 c
o
n
s
ta

n
t.
 I
n
 A

p
ri
l 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 A

u
g
u
s
t,
 L

e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 1

7
.2

0
%

 o
f 
it
s
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

, 
in

it
ia

l 
in

d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g

ra
te

 o
f 
1
8
.3

0
%

, 
e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
im

b
e
r,

 g
la

s
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
e
le

v
is

io
n
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
s
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
s
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

m
a
ll 

e
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
it
e
m

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

, 
w

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
re

c
y
c
le

.

6
3
%

3
2
%

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
o
n
ly

, 
a
s
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
ru

n
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

.

L
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 r

e
m

a
in

 f
a
ir
ly

 c
o
n
s
ta

n
t.
 I
n
 A

p
ri
l 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 A

u
g
u
s
t,
 L

e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 1

7
.2

0
%

 o
f 
it
s
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

, 
in

it
ia

l 
in

d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g

ra
te

 o
f 
1
8
.3

0
%

, 
e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
im

b
e
r,

 g
la

s
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
e
le

v
is

io
n
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
s
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
s
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

m
a
ll 

e
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
it
e
m

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

, 
w

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
re

c
y
c
le

.

6

Page 32



C
it

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

B
V

-8
2
b
(i
)

C
P

-R
C

5
1
 C

P
A

-

E
6

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 o

r 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
b
y
 a

n
a
e
ro

b
ic

 d
ig

e
s
ti
o
n

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

6
.4

7
7
.3

9
9
.4

6
7
.7

8
1
3
.0

5
3
.5

5
4
.2

2
5

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-8
2
b
(i
i)

T
h
e
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 o

r 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
b
y
 a

n
a
e
ro

b
ic

 d
ig

e
s
ti
o
n

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
2
1
,8

4
5
.0

0
2
5
,1

2
5
.0

0
1
4
,1

5
4
.0

0
2
5
,9

9
3
.0

0
8
,7

7
0
.3

0
1
,8

2
3
.3

1
9
,7

6
7
.0

6
3

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-8
2
c
(i
)

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
c
o
v
e
r 

h
e
a
t,
 p

o
w

e
r 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 s

o
u
rc

e
s

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

0
.5

3
0
.0

2
0
.4

0
0
.4

2
6
.7

2
0
.0

0
2
4
.9

8
5

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-8
2
c
(i
i)

T
o
n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 

re
c
o
v
e
r 

h
e
a
t,
 p

o
w

e
r 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 s

o
u
rc

e
s

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
1
7
7
5
.0

0
7
2
.0

0
6
0
1
.0

0
1
3
8
9
.0

0
1
3
1
7
4
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
3
2
6
5
.7

6
5

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
o
n
ly

, 
a
s
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
ru

n
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

.

T
h
e
 s

lig
h
t 
d
ip

 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 B

V
8
2
a
 a

n
d
 b

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 i
s
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 b

y
 a

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

h
o
 u

s
e
s
 S

O
R

T
 r

e
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
 e

n
e
rg

y
 f
ro

m
 w

a
s
te

.

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
o
n
ly

, 
a
s
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
ru

n
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

.

L
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 
In

 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fi
v
e
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 c

o
m

p
o
s
te

d
 9

.4
6
%

 o
f 
it
s
 w

a
s
te

, 
w

e
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
ts

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
7
.3

9
%

. 
T

h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 a

tt
ri
b
u
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 p

ilo
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
g
a
rd

e
n
 

w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

t 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 s
it
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 w

e
t 
s
u
m

m
e
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 g

ra
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
. 
Y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
te

d
 w

ill
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
re

d
ic

te
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 d
u
e
 t
o
 s

e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 i
t 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
re

a
c
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

.

L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 b

e
h
in

d
 s

o
m

e
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
re

 c
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w

a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
te

d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
w

id
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
g
a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 f
o
o
d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

, 
w

ill
 s

e
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 r

a
te

 r
is

e
 

s
ti
ll 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
rs

.

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
o
n
ly

, 
a
s
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
ru

n
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

.

L
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 
In

 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fi
v
e
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 c

o
m

p
o
s
te

d
 9

.4
6
%

 o
f 
it
s
 w

a
s
te

, 
w

e
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
ts

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
7
.3

9
%

. 
T

h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 a

tt
ri
b
u
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 p

ilo
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
g
a
rd

e
n
 

w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

t 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 s
it
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 w

e
t 
s
u
m

m
e
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 g

ra
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
. 
Y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
te

d
 w

ill
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
re

d
ic

te
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 d
u
e
 t
o
 s

e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 i
t 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
re

a
c
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

.

L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 b

e
h
in

d
 s

o
m

e
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
re

 c
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w

a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
te

d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
w

id
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
g
a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 f
o
o
d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

, 
w

ill
 s

e
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 r

a
te

 r
is

e
 

s
ti
ll 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
rs

.

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
o
n
ly

, 
a
s
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
ru

n
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

.

T
h
e
 s

lig
h
t 
d
ip

 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 B

V
8
2
a
 a

n
d
 b

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 i
s
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 b

y
 a

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

h
o
 u

s
e
s
 S

O
R

T
 r

e
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
 e

n
e
rg

y
 f
ro

m
 w

a
s
te

.

7

Page 33



C
it

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

B
V

-8
2
d
(i
)

C
P

-R
C

5
2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
n
d
fi
lle

d

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

7
7
.0

9
7
4
.5

2
7
2
.9

5
7
3
.5

0
5
9
.4

1
7
7
.4

0
5
5
.3

6
4

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-8
2
d
(i
i)

T
h
e
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

la
n
d
fi
lle

d

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

2
6
0
,4

1
6
.0

0
2
5
3
,3

5
7
.0

0
1
0
9
,1

8
8
.0

0
2
4
5
,5

3
4
.0

0
5
3
,8

9
2
.2

0
1
8
7
,7

6
4
.0

0
1
2
1
,7

6
3
.0

0
6

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-8
4
a

C
P

A
-E

2
6

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
k
ilo

g
ra

m
s
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
 o

f 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

K
G

F
a
ll

4
6
7
.2

4
6
7
.2

1
9
9
.5

4
6
7
.2

3
9
4
.0

4
8
0
.0

4
5
8
.7

4
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-8
4
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

in
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
k
ilo

g
ra

m
s
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

1
.0

8
0
.0

1
-3

.8
0

-0
.9

6
-3

.7
9

1
.0

1
-2

.9
9

5
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-9
1

C
P

A
-E

7
A

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 a

re
a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
d
 

b
y
 a

 k
e
rb

s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

s

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
2
.4

9
5
.0

9
2
.6

9
2
.6

1
0
0
.0

9
3
.5

9
0
.2

4
S

o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
o
n
ly

, 
a
s
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
ru

n
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

.

T
h
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

e
e
n
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

o
n
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 w

ill
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 o

u
r 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 t
a

rg
e
t.
 F

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

il 
p
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

B
V

8
4
a
.

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
n
g
 w

h
y
 s

o
m

e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

 k
e
rb

s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 w

h
a
t 
a
lt
e

rn
a
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
a
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
. 

N
e
v
e
rt

h
e
le

s
s
, 
th

e
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 e
x
te

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

c
it
y
w

id
e
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

i.
e
. 
fo

o
d
 a

n
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

).

W
it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 S

u
p
e
rb

a
s
e
 t
o
 a

 n
e
w

 G
IS

 b
a
s
e
d
 s

y
s
te

m
; 
h
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 i
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

a
s
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
s
.

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
o
n
ly

, 
a
s
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
ru

n
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

.

In
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fi
v
e
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 
to

 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 6

.3
7
%

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 A
s
s
u
m

in
g
 w

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

t 
th

is
 r

a
te

, 
w

e
 a

re
 i
n
 l
in

e
 t
o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 o

u
r 

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 P

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 a

 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
a
ro

u
n
d
 7

3
.5

0
%

. 
T

h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 P
I 
is

 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 o

n
 B

V
P

I 
8
2
a
 a

n
d
 b

.

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
o
n
ly

, 
a
s
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
ru

n
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

.

In
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fi
v
e
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 
to

 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 6

.3
7
%

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 A
s
s
u
m

in
g
 w

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

t 
th

is
 r

a
te

, 
w

e
 a

re
 i
n
 l
in

e
 t
o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 o

u
r 

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 P

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 a

 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
a
ro

u
n
d
 7

3
.5

0
%

. 
T

h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 P
I 
is

 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 o

n
 B

V
P

I 
8
2
a
 a

n
d
 b

.

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
o
n
ly

, 
a
s
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
ru

n
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
k
g
s
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 7

.8
8
 k

g
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
2
7
,1

0
0
 a

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

iv
id

e
 o

u
r 

w
a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 o
u
r 

w
a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 h
a
s
 o

n
ly

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 2

9
3
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n
e
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 

8

Page 34



C
it

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

B
V

-9
1
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 a

re
a
 s

e
rv

e
d
 b

y
 

a
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
tw

o
 r

e
c
y
c
la

b
le

s

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 &

 

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
2
.4

9
5
.0

9
2
.6

9
2
.6

1
0
0
.0

9
0
.1

6
4
.3

3
S

o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
9
9
a

C
P

-S
C

5
0
 C

P
A

-

E
4
  
 L

A
A

-

S
S

C
4

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 (

e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
) 

th
a
t 
is

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 d

e
p
o
s
it
s
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n
d
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
 t
h
a
t 
fa

ll 
b
e
lo

w
 a

n
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
l

S
tr

e
e
t

C
le

a
n
s
in

g

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

1
7
.3

1
6
.0

1
5
.0

1
6
.0

8
.8

2
1
.0

1
8
.1

5
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
9
9
b

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 (

e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
) 

fr
o
m

 w
h
ic

h
 u

n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
g
ra

ff
it
i 
a
re

 v
is

ib
le

S
tr

e
e
t

C
le

a
n
s
in

g

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

6
7

1
1

8
1

6
1
1

6
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
9
9
c

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 (

e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
) 

fr
o
m

 w
h
ic

h
 u

n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n
g
 a

re
 

v
is

ib
le

S
tr

e
e
t

C
le

a
n
s
in

g

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

1
1

2
1

0
2

3
1

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
O

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 d

e
te

ri
o
ra

te
d
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 a

s
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 r
e
ta

il 
a
re

a
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
n
't 

a
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
th

a
t 
fu

tu
re

 s
u
rv

e
y
s
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 w
e
 s

ti
ll 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 o

u
r 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t.

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
lit

te
r 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 
In

 s
p
it
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 b

a
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 r

e
la

te
d
 l
it
te

r 
h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
, 
o
u
r 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 
lit

te
r 

h
a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
a
re

a
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
e
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 

D
e
tr

it
u
s
 l
e
v
e
ls

 h
a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 b

u
t 
th

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

tt
ri
b
u
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u

n
s
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly

 h
e
a
v
y
 r

a
in

fa
ll 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o

 s
h
if
t 
S

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
d
in

g
 c

a
u
s
e
d
. 

W
h
ils

t 
a
t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 
w

e
 a

re
 e

x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
6
%

, 
to

 m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
is

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
m

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 n

o
n
 m

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 m

e
th

o
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

le
a
n
s
in

g
 o

f 
tr

a
ff
ic

 i
s
la

n
d
s
. 

It
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
, 
th

a
t 
th

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 b

y
 a

c
ti
v
e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
p
ri
d
e
 t
e
a
m

s
 (

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 N

R
F

) 
in

 c
le

a
n
in

g
 u

p
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
.

L
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
g
ra

ff
it
i 
h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 A
n
 e

x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 t
im

in
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
e
d
. 
B

o
th

 H
y
d
e
 P

a
rk

 &
 W

o
o
d
h
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
d
in

g
ly

 w
e
re

 s
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 T
ra

d
it
io

n
a
lly

, 

a
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 E

N
C

A
M

S
, 
g
ra

ff
it
i 
le

v
e
ls

 a
re

 p
re

v
a
le

n
t 
in

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h
 a

 h
ig

h
 s

tu
d
e
n
t 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 c

o
m

b
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
, 
a
 h

o
t 
s
p
o
t 
te

a
m

 i
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
in

 t
h
e
 i
n
n
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
a
re

a
 b

u
t 
th

e
 t
e
a
m

 o
ft
e
n
 f
in

d
 t
h
a
t 
a
s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 g

ra
ff
it
i

in
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
, 
it
 r

e
a
p
p
e
a
rs

. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
te

ri
o
ra

te
d
, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
e
s
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
o
u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
ly

 n
a
rr

o
w

ly
 f
e
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 a

n
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
l.
 T

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
th

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

p
la

n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o
n
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 g

ra
ff
it
i 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
te

a
m

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
a
 t
a
s
k
 g

ro
u
p
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 s

e
t 
u
p
 w

it
h
 t
h
e

 a
im

 o
f 
u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

D
L
E

Q
S

 s
u
rv

e
y
 (

a
 m

o
re

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 u

s
e
s
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 o

f 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 

B
V

1
9
9
 i
s
 d

e
ri
v
e
d
) 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
is

.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
is

 b
e
lie

v
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

a
t 
o
u
r 

s
c
o
re

 w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
 t
o
 8

%
.

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
n
g
 w

h
y
 s

o
m

e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

 k
e
rb

s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 w

h
a
t 
a
lt
e

rn
a
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
a
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
. 

N
e
v
e
rt

h
e
le

s
s
, 
th

e
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 e
x
te

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

c
it
y
w

id
e
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

i.
e
. 
fo

o
d
 a

n
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

).

W
it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 S

u
p
e
rb

a
s
e
 t
o
 a

 n
e
w

 G
IS

 b
a
s
e
d
 s

y
s
te

m
; 
h
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 i
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

a
s
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
s
.

9

Page 35



C
it

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

B
V

-1
9
9
d

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 

fl
y
 t
ip

p
in

g

S
tr

e
e
t

C
le

a
n
s
in

g

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

L
e
v
e
l

F
a
ll

3
2

1
2

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-2
1
8
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
 o

f 
a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 

w
it
h
in

 2
4
 h

o
u
rs

 o
f 
n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

S
tr

e
e
t

C
le

a
n
s
in

g

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
2
.5

4
9
2
.5

0
9
0
.3

2
9
0
.0

0
9
6
.6

4
7
3
.0

0
7
5
.9

3
3

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-2
1
8
b

L
A

A
-S

S
C

5
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
4
 h

o
u
rs

 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 p

o
in

t 
a
t 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 l
e
g
a
lly

 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

v
e
h
ic

le

S
tr

e
e
t

C
le

a
n
s
in

g

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
2
.1

7
9
0
.0

0
7
9
.3

5
8
6
.0

0
9
5
.0

0
6
1
.1

1
7
4
.2

2
5

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

O
u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
g
a
in

 r
a
te

d
 a

s
 `

v
e
ry

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
' (

th
e
 b

e
s
t 
ra

ti
n
g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

).
 T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

b
y
 1

1
6
2
, 
w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

is
e
n

b
y
 2

5
2
8
.

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
jo

b
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 s
ti
ll 

`p
e
n
d
in

g
'. 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 o

n
 a

b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 a

n
d
 a

 p
o
lic

e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 

to
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 t
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
.

In
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

, 
th

e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 u

n
a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
o
lic

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 (

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t)

. 
F

o
r 

th
is

 r
e
a
s
o
n
, 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
re

d
ic

te
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 9

0
%

.

It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
s
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p

o
lic

e
 w

a
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

e
ll 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a

y
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 a

b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
 i
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
h
a
s
 f
a
lle

n
 f
ro

m
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
8
 d

a
y
s
 t
o
 j
u
s
t 
3
.5

 h
o
u
rs

. 
T

h
is

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o

a
s
s
is

te
d
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

p
o
rt

s
 o

f 
a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 b

y
 1

2
%

 o
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 A
s
 t
h
is

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 f
u

n
d
e
d
 b

y
 N

R
F

 (
w

h
ic

h
 r

u
n
s
 o

u
t 
in

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
),

 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

n
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

. 

In
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
, 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 t
h
e
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 'p

e
n
d
in

g
 j
o
b
s
' 
w

it
h
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
lly

 b
o
o
k
e
d
 f
o
r 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

u
s
e
s
 a

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 D

o
n
c
a
s
te

r 
(D

o
n
c
a
s
te

r 
M

o
to

r 
S

p
a
re

s
) 

fo
r 

th
e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 
a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
te

ri
o
ra

te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fi
v
e
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 f
lo

o
d
in

g
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 a

n
d
 J

u
ly

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

a
s
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 i
ts

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
lo

o
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 m
in

o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
e
h
ic

le
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ic
k
e
d
 u

p
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t
h
e
 2

4
 h

o
u
r 

ti
m

e
 w

in
d
o
w

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
o
 s

e
t 
th

is
 i
n
 c

o
n
te

x
t,
 t

h
e
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 t
im

e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 2

4
 h

o
u
r 

d
e
a
d
lin

e
 w

a
s
 1

.5
 h

o
u
rs

. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 

m
o
n
th

s
 i
t 
is

 u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 i
ts

 y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
re

d
ic

te
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ig

u
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 t
o
 8

6
%

.

1
0

Page 36



C
it

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

B
V

-2
1
5
a

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r

e
p
a
ir
 a

 s
tr

e
e
t 
lig

h
ti
n
g
 f
a
u
lt
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

S
tr

e
e
t 
L
ig

h
ti
n
g

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

D
a
y
s

F
a
ll

1
2
.1

1
5
.0

0
5
.8

8
5
.8

8
3
.4

3
6
.6

9
5
.0

3
7

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-2
1
5
b

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r

e
p
a
ir
 a

 s
tr

e
e
t 
lig

h
ti
n
g
 f
a
u
lt
 w

h
e
re

 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im

e
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
a
 D

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 

O
p
e
ra

to
r 

(D
N

O
)

S
tr

e
e
t 
L
ig

h
ti
n
g

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

D
a
y
s

F
a
ll

2
7
.8

7
1
4
.0

0
2
2
.6

5
2
2
.6

5
1
4
.0

3
3
3
.7

7
2
8
.7

1
1

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r

e
p
a
ir
 a

 s
tr

e
e
t 
lig

h
ti
n
g
 f
a
u
lt
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 m

a
rk

e
d
ly

 o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 b

e
in

g
 s

h
if
te

d
 f
ro

m
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 a

 b
a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 j
o
b
s
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 S

E
C

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 C

L
T

 a
n
d
 L

M
T

).

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
in

 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fe

w
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 s
ti
ll 

a
 s

m
a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
jo

b
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 t

im
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 o
n
ly

 c
lo

s
e
d
 o

ff
 i
n
 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 T
h
is

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 P

I.

In
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

a
u
d
it
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
 t
h
e
s
e
 P

I’
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

e
 c

a
n
 h

a
v
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
p
u
tt
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 

a
n
 i
s
s
u
e
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 
O

th
e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
a
lc

u
la

ti
n
g
 t
h
is

 P
I 
e
a
s
ie

r 
a
n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u
ld

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 
o
u
r 

d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
ro

m
 ‘
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t’
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 t
o
 ‘
s
o
m

e
’ 
in

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 S

E
C

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 Y

E
D

L
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
w

o
rk

 t
ic

k
e
ts

 a
re

 p
a
s
s
e
d
 b

a
c
k
. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

s
o
m

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
, 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 (

a
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

E
C

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
).

 

In
it
ia

l 
in

d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

o
n
't 

b
e
 m

e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
re

d
ic

te
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

.

In
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
, 
a
u
d
it
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
 w

it
h
 B

V
2
1
5
a
, 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 r

a
ti
n
g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 `

s
o
m

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
¿

.

1
1

Page 37



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

0
7
/0

8
 R

e
s
u

lt
 

to
 D

a
te

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 -

 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

5
8
%

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
*

7
7
%

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

d
e
c
lin

e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
*

1
4
%

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 p
re

d
ic

te
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 c

a
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 e

a
c
h

 

q
u

a
rt

e
r*

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
1
a

1
2

1
3

1
4

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

C
Y

P
-B

M
E

4
T

h
e
 r

a
ti
o
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 B
la

c
k
 c

o
h
o
rt

 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

1
.9

0
1
.6

0
1
.5

0
1
.5

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
Y

P
-E

c
W

7
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 o
ff
e
r 

o
f 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

8
.0

0
2
4
.0

0
4
0
.0

0
4
0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
Y

P
-E

c
W

8
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 o
ff
e
r 

o
f 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

1
8
.0

0
2
3
.0

0
6
4
.0

0
6
4
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r'
s
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 P

ilo
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
t 
B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b
b
e
a
n
 p

u
p
ils

 t
h
is

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 A

re
a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

s
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
  
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

s
 v

e
ry

 f
a
v
o
u
ra

b
ly

 w
it
h
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
rs

, 
b
e
in

g
 a

h
e
a
d
 i
n
 4

 o
f 
6
 c

a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
.

L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
fo

r 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 f
u
ll 

c
o
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

n
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

. 
L
e
e
d
s
 a

ls
o
 c

o
m

p
a
re

s
 v

e
ry

 f
a
v
o
u
ra

b
ly

 w
it
h
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
rs

, 
b
e
in

g
 a

h
e
a
d
 i
n
 4

 o
f 
6
 c

a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
.

4
4
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 R

e
s
u

lt

6
1
%

2
9
%

1
2

Page 38



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

B
V

-2
2
1
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 1

3
-1

9
 g

a
in

in
g
 a

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 y

o
u
th

 w
o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

4
8

5
4

1
4

5
1

5
9

2
9

4
7

6
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-2
2
1
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 1

3
-1

9
 g

a
in

in
g
 a

n
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 1

3
-1

9
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 y

o
u
th

 w
o
rk

'.

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

2
2

3
0

4
3
0

2
5

1
0

1
6

1
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-E
Y

5
0
a

L
K

I-
E

Y
3
a

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

c
a
re

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
d
 

a
ft
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
lu

b
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
a
re

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 w

o
rk

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
1
7
2
4
.0

0
2
1
4
0
.0

0
1
1
9
9
.0

0
2
1
4
0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-E
Y

5
0
b

L
K

I-
E

Y
3
b

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

c
a
re

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
d
 

a
ft
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
lu

b
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
a
re

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 w

o
rk

 b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

r 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
.

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
4
7
0
.0

0
5
8
3
.0

0
3
0
3
.0

0
6
0
0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-E
Y

5
1
a

L
K

I-
E

Y
2
a

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
la

c
e
s
 i
n
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 c
e
n
tr

e
s

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
1
7
9
6
.0

0
2
2
3
1
.0

0
1
6
7
1
.0

0
2
2
3
5
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-E
Y

5
2

L
K

I-
E

Y
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 F

F
IP

 (
F

u
lly

 F
le

x
ib

le
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
)

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
6
0
.0

0
2
7
.9

0
6
0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-Y
S

5
0

L
K

I-
Y

S
1

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
re

a
c
h
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 
1
3
-1

9
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 (

a
g
a
in

s
t 
a
 

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 o
f 
2
5
%

)

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

4
7
.2

0
2
5
.0

0
8
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 g
a
th

e
re

d
 v

ia
 a

 m
a
n
u
a
l 
c
o
u
n
t 
fr

o
m

 v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
th

e
 y

o
u
th

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 D

E
A

M
S

  
D

 o
f 
E

 s
y
s
te

m
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 s

o
m

e
 d

u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 
 D

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 u
n
ti
l 
n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w

s
 M

IS
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

N
e
w

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 d

e
fi
n
in

g
 w

h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu

te
s
 a

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
o
u
t 
to

 a
ll 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 b
u
t 
e
m

b
e
d
d
in

g
 t
h
is

 a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 l
o
w

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 e

it
h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

r 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

c
o
n
fu

s
io

n
 a

s
 t
o
 w

h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu

te
s
 a

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
. 

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 w
a
s
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 m
a
n
u
a
l 
c
o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 s

o
m

e
 d

u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 v

e
ri
fi
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 s
o
 u

n
ti
l 
n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 M
IS

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 f
ig

u
re

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 t
h
re

e
 m

o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
 J

u
n
e
 t
o
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

A
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 Q

3
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 w
h
ic

h
 i
n
fo

rm
s
 t
h
e
 P

I 
is

 r
o
b
u
s
t.

A
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 T

e
a
m

, 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 f
ig

u
re

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 r
e
tu

rn
 f
o
r 

J
u
n
e
, 
J
u
ly

 a
n
d
 A

u
g
u
s
t.
  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 Q

3
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
/ 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 m

o
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
d
a
ta

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 O

F
S

T
E

D
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 p

la
c
e
s
. 
�

�
T

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
is

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 m

e
t 
if
 n

o
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ts

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 u

p
 t
a
k
e
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 
1
3
6
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 n

u
rs

e
ry

 c
la

s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 A

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

a
p
p
ly

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 f
u
n
d
in

g
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
fo

rm
s
 t
h
e
 P

I,
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
e
a
rl
y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r.

T
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 m
o
re

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
, 
a
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
re

a
c
h
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 
 I
n
s
te

a
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
c
h
 f
ig

u
re

 w
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rm

 Y
o
u
th

B
a
s
e
, 
th

e
 n

e
w

 M
IS

 s
y
s
te

m
. 
T

h
e
 Q

2
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 l
o
w

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 b
a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 y

e
t 
to

 b
e
 e

n
te

re
d
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
. 
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
o
n
ly

 u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

B
a
s
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
w

 n
o
 d

u
p
lic

a
te

 c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
.

1
3

Page 39



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

L
K

I-
Y

S
2

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 
1
3
-1

9
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 y

o
u
th

 

w
o
rk

 (
a
g
a
in

s
t 
a
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 o
f 
1
5
%

)

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

2
5
.0

1
5
.0

2
.0

1
5
.0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-4
3
a

C
Y

P
P

-B
e
H

1
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 

is
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 a

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 1
8
 

w
e
e
k
s
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
p
e
c
ia

l 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
) 

(E
n
g
la

n
d
) 

(C
o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
o
n
) 

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 2

0
0
1

S
E

N
 a

n
d
 

S
c
h
o
o
l

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

M
o
n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

1
0
0
.0

9
7
.0

1
0
0
.0

1
0
0
.0

1
0
0
.0

9
5
.7

9
0
.2

5
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-4
3
b

C
Y

P
P

-B
e
H

1
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 

is
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 a

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 1
8
 

w
e
e
k
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 'e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
' s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
p
e
c
ia

l 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
) 

(E
n
g
la

n
d
) 

(C
o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
o
n
) 

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 2

0
0
1

S
E

N
 a

n
d
 

S
c
h
o
o
l

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

M
o
n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

8
8
.4

0
8
3
.9

0
8
6
.0

0
9
0
.3

0
9
5
.4

0
7
2
.5

0
7
9
.3

6
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-4
5

C
Y

P
P

-P
o
C

8

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
o
ta

l 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

S
E

N
 a

n
d
 

S
c
h
o
o
l

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
F

a
ll

9
.2

0
7
.8

0
9
.2

0
9
.2

0
7
.2

6
8
.3

0
9
.5

1
2

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-4
6

C
Y

P
-P

o
C

9
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
o
ta

l 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

.

S
E

N
 a

n
d
 

S
c
h
o
o
l

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
F

a
ll

5
.7

0
4
.7

0
5
.2

0
5
.2

0
5
.1

3
5
.9

8
6
.0

1
1

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
Y

P
-P

O
C

5

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

7
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fi
x
e
d
 t
e
rm

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

u
p
ils

S
E

N
 a

n
d
 

S
c
h
o
o
l

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

6
8
.1

0
3
9
.0

0
6
0
.1

5
6
0
.1

5
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 o

f 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 a
t 
1
0
0
%

 a
n
d
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
In

c
lu

d
e
s
 2

6
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
.

F
o
r 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
, 
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
. 
 T

h
is

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 t
im

e
 t

o
 f
ilt

e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 T

h
is

 f
a
c
to

r,
 c

o
u
p
le

d
 w

it
h
  
th

e
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
o
w

 Q
2
 f
ig

u
re

.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

tw
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 I
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 4

4
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 c

o
n
s
ta

n
t 
s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
6
. 
In

 2
0
0
6
/0

7
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 1
5
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 1

1
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 d

id
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

in
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

th
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
w

 1
8
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 b

y
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 d
e
fi
n
e
d
. 
In

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 D

C
F

S
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 p

la
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
a
k
in

g
 a

 m
o
re

 h
o
lis

ti
c
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
in

fl
u
e
n
c
e
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
a
llo

w
in

g
 q

u
ic

k
e
r 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
.

C
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d
 a

n
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
6
, 
b
u
t 
n
o
t 
to

 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
le

v
e
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
. 
T

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 a
 n

e
w

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 c

a
lle

d
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
, 
w

h
e
re

 a
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 t
a
rg

e
t 

th
e
 1

8
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
. 
A

n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 (

th
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
).

 L
in

k
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 A

re
a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

s
 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 w

it
h
in

 w
e
d
g
e
s
 o

n
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ily
 h

o
lid

a
y
s
. 
T

h
e
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 T

e
a
m

 w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
, 
th

e
re

b
y
 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 n

e
e
d
.

T
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
fi
x
e
d
-t

e
rm

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 v
e
ry

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 L

P
S

A
2
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

ra
n
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
, 
e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

e
a
rl
ie

r 
id

e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 i
s
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
. 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 H

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 a
n
d
 A

re
a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

s
.

1
4

Page 40



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

C
Y

P
-P

O
C

6

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

6
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

S
E

N
 a

n
d
 

S
c
h
o
o
l

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

8
4
.0

0
7
0
.0

0
6
5
.0

0
6
5
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
8
1
a

C
Y

P
-E

n
A

1
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 

te
s
t 
in

  
E

n
g
lis

h

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

7
0
.0

0
7
4
.0

0
7
1
.0

0
7
1
.0

0
7
7
.0

0
6
9
.0

0
6
3
.3

8
2

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
8
1
b

C
Y

P
-E

n
A

1
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 

te
s
t 
in

 M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

7
5
.0

0
7
4
.0

0
7
3
.0

0
7
3
.0

0
7
7
.0

0
7
0
.0

0
6
3
.8

2
1

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
8
1
c

C
Y

P
-E

n
A

1
9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 

te
s
t 
in

 S
c
ie

n
c
e

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

6
9
.0

0
7
2
.0

0
6
9
.0

0
6
9
.0

0
7
4
.0

0
6
4

5
8
.2

4
1

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
8
1
d

C
Y

P
-E

n
A

2
0

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 

te
s
t 
in

 I
C

T

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

6
8

7
2

7
0

7
0

7
4

6
3
.2

3
5
9
.5

7
2

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
9
4
a

C
Y

P
-E

N
A

2
1

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
1
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 i
n
 K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

: 
E

n
g
lis

h

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

3
2

3
3

3
2

3
2

2
9

2
3

2
1

1
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
9
4
b

C
Y

P
P

-E
n
A

2
2

%
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 M
a
th

s
S

c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

3
3

3
4

3
0

3
0

3
2

2
7

2
6
.0

1
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
A

ll 
re

s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
lin

e
d
 s

in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r,

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 d

e
c
lin

e
d
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 b

y
 l
e
s
s
e
r 

a
m

o
u
n
ts

 t
h
a
n
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 2
%

 p
o
in

ts
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
s
e
.

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 f
a
ll 

in
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
6
 t
o
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r'
s
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

lo
s
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 A

re
a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 H

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

. 
E

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
id

e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

.

A
ll 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
E

n
g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

S
3
 h

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
th

re
e
 y

e
a
rs

, 
w

h
ils

t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
tr

e
n
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 t
o
 2

0
0
5
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
ft
e
r 

a
 d

ro
p
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
p
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 h
a
s
 

c
lo

s
e
d
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
th

re
e
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

a
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
 a

t 
th

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
e
e
n
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
. 
In

 2
0
0
7
/0

8
 t
h
e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

) 
is

 b
e
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 b

o
o
s
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

.

A
ll 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 u
p
 t
o
 2

0
0
6
, 
2
0
0
7
 s

a
w

 a
 f
a
ll 

in
 m

a
th

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 L

e
e

d
s
, 
it
s
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
 T

h
is

 d
ro

p
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 a

t 
2
%

, 
a
n

d

th
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

id
e
n
in

g
 t
o
 3

%
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
is

 s
ti
ll 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
in

 m
a
th

s
 a

t 
K

S
3
 s

e
e

n
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
. 
In

 2
0
0
7
/0

8
 t
h
e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

) 
is

 b
e
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 b

o
o
s
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

.

A
ll 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
S

c
ie

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 s

e
e
n
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
b
u
t 
th

e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

lo
w

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
. 
 L

e
e
d
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 2

0
0
6
 l
e
v
e
ls

, 
w

it
h
 S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 a

 m
in

im
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
  
N

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

, 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
%

, 
th

e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 L

e
e
d
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 n

o
w

 s
ta

n
d
in

g
 a

t 
4
%

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
v
e
rs

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 t
re

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h
e

 g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 L

e
e
d
s
' 
a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 n

a
rr

o
w

in
g
. 
 I
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 t
h
e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

) 
is

 b
e
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 b

o
o
s
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

. 
T

h
is

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 b

e
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

fo
r 

K
S

3
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
t 
in

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 i
n
c
re

m
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

R
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
ly

 o
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
o
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
. 
F

o
r 

2
0
0
7
 t
h
is

 i
s
 5

2
2
0
 p

u
p
ils

 o
u
t 
o
f 
8
2
1
0
 (

6
4
%

) 
T

h
e
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 s
h
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 f
ro

m
 n

e
x
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 t
h
e
n
 b

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.

A
ll 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 b

y
 1

%
 p

o
in

t 
fo

r 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
. 
L
e
e
d
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 

m
a
rg

in
a
lly

 b
e
h
in

d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
ls

.

1
5

Page 41



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

B
V

-3
8

C
Y

P
-E

n
A

1
3

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 f
iv

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 A

*-
C

 

o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t.

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

5
2
.2

5
6
.5

5
5
.7

5
5
.7

5
8
.3

4
9
.4

4
7
.1

4
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-3
9

C
Y

P
-E

n
A

1
4

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 f
iv

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
a
t 

g
ra

d
e
s
 A

*-
G

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
.

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

8
5
.0

8
9
.0

8
6
.1

8
6
.1

9
0
.8

8
5
.9

8
1
.8

2
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-4
0

C
Y

P
-E

n
A

1
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s

te
s
t.

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

7
6
.0

8
0
.0

7
7
.0

7
7
.0

7
7
.4

7
2
.1

7
0
.1

1
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-4
1

C
Y

P
-E

n
A

1
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 E
n
g
lis

h
 

te
s
t.

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

7
9
.0

7
9
.0

8
0
.0

8
0
.0

8
1
.2

7
6

7
2
.8

1
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-S
I5

0

C
Y

P
-B

e
H

7

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

1
1

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 w
h
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
2
 

h
o
u
rs

 o
f 
P

E
/ 
S

p
o
rt

 e
a
c
h
 w

e
e
k

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

8
3
.0

0
8
5
.0

0
8
6
.0

0
8
6
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-S
I5

1
E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
re

a
c
h
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
g
e
 (

u
p
 t
o
 5

 y
e
a
rs

 o
ld

) 
is

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 (

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
7
)

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

Y
e
s
/N

o
R

is
e

N
o

N
.A

.
S

e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

S
e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
Y

P
-B

e
H

6

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

1
2

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

4
6
.0

0
5
0
.0

0
6
2
.0

0
6
2
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
ll 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
K

S
2
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

is
e
n
 b

y
 1

%
 f
ro

m
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 r
is

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

ir
ro

re
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 a
n
d
 L

e
e
d
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t.
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

n
s
if
y
in

g
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 s

tr
o
n
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
E

n
g
lis

h
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

is
e
n
 b

y
 7

.1
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 1

.4
%

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

L
e
e
d
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
8
4
%

 a
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
a
re

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
.

2
0
0
7
-0

8
 t
a
rg

e
t 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 a

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

P
S

A
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t.
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 L

P
S

A
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
e
a
m

 i
s
 n

o
w

 h
ig

h
ly

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 t
o
 S

O
A

 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 n

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 a

n
d
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
is

s
u
e
 o

f 
q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
P

S
H

E
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 S

R
E

 a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o
n
.

A
ll 

K
S

4
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
P

u
p
il-

le
v
e
l 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
re

tu
rn

s
 t
o
 f
in

a
lis

e
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 P
I.
 N

o
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 y
e
t 
fo

r 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
tr

e
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

. 
T

h
e
 h

e
a
d
lin

e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 a

t 
5
+

 g
ra

d
e
s
 A

*-
C

 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

g
a
in

 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
6
 b

y
 3

.5
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 a

lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t
h
is

 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 p

u
t 
in

to
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
w

it
h
o
u
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
r 

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
 g

a
p
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 L

P
S

A
 

ta
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 h

a
lv

e
d
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

is
 t
a
rg

e
t 
m

o
re

 r
e
a
lis

ti
c
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.

A
ll 

K
S

4
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
P

u
p
il-

le
v
e
l 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
re

tu
rn

s
 t
o
 f
in

a
lis

e
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 P
I.
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 P
I 
s
h
o
w

s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 2

0
0
6
, 
b
u
t 
re

m
a
in

s
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

tr
o
n
g
ly

 c
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
lo

w
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

N
E

E
T

.

A
ll 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
K

S
2
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

is
e
n
 b

y
 1

%
 f
ro

m
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 r
is

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

ir
ro

re
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 a
n
d
 L

e
e
d
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t.
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

n
s
if
y
in

g
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
v
e
 

m
a
d
e
 s

tr
o
n
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
w

it
h
 m

a
th

s
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

is
e
n
 b

y
 6

.6
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.

1
6

Page 42



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

C
Y

P
-E

N
a
1
1
b

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 f
iv

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 A

* 
- 

C
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t,
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 M

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
lis

h

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

4
0
.0

0
4
6
.0

0
4
2
.1

0
4
2
.1

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
Y

P
-E

c
W

2

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

1
9

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
6
-1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 N
O

T
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

N
E

E
T

)

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
F

a
ll

8
.8

0
8
.4

0
S

e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

S
e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
Y

P
-E

c
W

5

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

it
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
2
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

6
3
.0

0
6
4
.0

0
S

e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

S
e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
Y

P
-E

c
W

6

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

it
h
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

4
1
.0

0
4
5
.0

0
S

e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

S
e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
Y

P
-E

n
A

1
1
c

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

2
2

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 A

* 
- 

G
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t.

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

8
7
.0

0
8
8
.0

0
8
8
.0

0
8
8
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
Y

P
-E

n
A

1
1
d

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

n
y
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

.

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

9
6
.0

0
9
7
.0

0
9
6
.3

0
9
6
.3

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
Y

P
-E

n
A

6
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 s
c
o
re

d
 2

 o
r 

b
e
tt
e
r 

b
y
 O

fS
T

E
D

 

fo
r 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
.

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

5
9
.0

0
6
3
.0

0
1
0
0
.0

0
6
4
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
Y

P
P

-E
c
W

1

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

2
1

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 y

e
a
r 

1
1
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 N
O

T
 i
n
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 (

N
E

E
T

)

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
F

a
ll

8
.2

0
7
.1

0
S

e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

S
e
e

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
ll 

K
S

4
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
P

u
p
il-

le
v
e
l 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
re

tu
rn

s
 t
o
 f
in

a
lis

e
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 P
I.
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 P
I 
s
h
o
w

s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 2

0
0
6
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

tr
o
n
g
ly

 c
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1

4
-1

9

p
la

n
n
e
d
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
lo

w
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

N
E

E
T

. 
T

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
to

r 
to

 c
o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
v
a
lu

e
-a

d
d
e
d
 s

c
o
re

s
, 
a
n
d
 n

e
w

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 
le

v
e
ls

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
is

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

.

A
ll 

K
S

4
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
P

u
p
il-

le
v
e
l 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
re

tu
rn

s
 t
o
 f
in

a
lis

e
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 P
I.
 N

o
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 y
e
t 
fo

r 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
tr

e
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

. 
T

h
is

 P
I 
is

 s
tr

o
n
g
ly

re
la

te
d
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
, 
s
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is

 P
I,
 a

s
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 N

E
E

T
.

T
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 v

o
la

ti
le

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
. 
 T

h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

tw
o
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 o

n
ly

 5
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
, 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 1

0
0
, 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

h
o
le

 y
e
a
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

s
. 
T

h
is

 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
t 
re

fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
re

la
te

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
's

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
.

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 P
I 
is

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
8

A
ll 

K
S

4
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
. 
P

u
p
il-

le
v
e
l 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
re

tu
rn

s
 t
o
 f
in

a
lis

e
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 P
I.
 T

h
e
 5

+
A

*-
C

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
w

o
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 g
e
tt
in

g
 5

 g
o
o
d
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 g

e
tt
in

g
 5

 g
o
o
d
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

m
a
lle

r 
in

 L
e
e
d
s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

A
s
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 k
e
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
, 
m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

.

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 P
I 
is

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
8
.

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 P
I 
is

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
8
.

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 P
I 
is

 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
8

1
7

Page 43



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

L
K

I-
N

R
2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 

3
0
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 A

* 
to

 C

S
c
h
o
o
l

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
lly

n
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

5
.0

0
3
.0

0
2
.0

0
2
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
6
1

C
P

-C
F

5
4

A
4

T
h
e
 r

a
ti
o
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 w

e
re

 l
o
o
k
e
d

a
ft
e
r 

o
n
 1

s
t 
A

p
ri
l 
in

 t
h
e
ir
 1

7
th

 y
e
a
r 

(a
g
e
 1

6
) 

w
h
o
 w

e
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9
.

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

0
.8

7
0
.9

0
0
.8

8
0
.9

0
0
.9

1
0
.6

5
1

4
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
6
2

C
P

-C
F

5
5
  
L
A

A
-

C
Y

P
1
3

C
2
0

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

re
g
u
la

rl
y
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
8

1
0
0

9
9

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

9
9
.2

3
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
6
3

C
P

-C
F

5
6

C
2
3

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 c

e
a
s
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

y
e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ra
n
ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
n
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

r 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 

g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
r,

 a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
t 
3
1
s
t 
M

a
rc

h
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 u

n
a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 a

s
y
lu

m
 

s
e
e
k
e
rs

) 
w

h
o
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

6
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
n
 t
h
a
t 

d
a
y
.

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

7
.9

8
.0

6
.4

6
.7

9
.5

5
.6

7
5

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-5
0

C
P

-C
F

5
3
  
L
A

A
-

C
Y

P
1
3

A
2

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 a
g
e
d
 1

6
 o

r 
o
v
e
r 

w
it
h
 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 G

C
S

E
 a

t 
G

ra
d
e
 A

* 
- 

G
 o

r 
a
 G

N
V

Q
.

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

5
5

6
0

6
0

6
0

5
9

4
6

5
1

2
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-C
F

5
1

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

1
4

E
n
s
u
re

 1
5
%

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

b
y
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
o
f 
5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 A

* 
to

 C

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

6
.0

0
1
5
.0

0
7
.8

0
7
.8

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fl
o
o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
8
 i
s
 n

o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
b
e
lo

w
 3

0
%

. 
A

ll 
K

S
4
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
Q

3
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

g
g
re

g
a
te

d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
re

tu
rn

s
. 
P

u
p
il-

le
v
e
l 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
re

tu
rn

s
 t
o
 f
in

a
lis

e
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

P
I.
 N

o
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 y
e
t 
fo

r 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
tr

e
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

. 
C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e

 o
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
is

 t
o
 o

n
ly

 2
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
fr

o
m

 7
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
it
s
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
rs

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
s
 t
h

is

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
rs

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 d

e
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
g
is

te
r.

 A
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
O

6
-0

7
 L

e
e
d
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 r

a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
b
a
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
. 
L
e
e
d
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 r

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

3
 b

lo
b
 b

a
n
d
in

g
 (

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

).
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
w

 t
o
o
 g

re
a
t 
a
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
g
is

te
r.

 T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 i
ts

 p
ra

c
ti
s
e
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

o
re

 c
le

a
rl
y
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
h
a
n
g
e
).

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
it
s
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
rs

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
s
 t
h

is

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
rs

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
.

N
.A

.

L
e
e
d
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

2
0
0
6
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
fa

ile
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t 
it
 h

a
d
 s

e
t 
it
s
e
lf
. 
 I
n
 2

0
0
7
 4

%
 o

f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 g
o
ld

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 
5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
. 
 S

o
m

e
 

e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
re

s
u
lt
s
 w

e
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 w

it
h
 3

 p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 9

 A
* 

- 
C

s
 a

n
d
 o

n
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
u
p
il 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 1

2
 A

* 
- 

C
.

1
8

Page 44



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
0
th

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 Y

e
a
r -

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

Q
u
a
lit

y

Is
s
u
e
s

C
P

-C
F

5
7

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 c

o
m

in
g
 i
n
to

 c
a
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

3
8
7
.0

0
2
5
4
.0

0
1
6
2
.0

0
3
5
0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
K

I-
S

S
1

A
3

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

w
h
o
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
g
is

te
re

d
.

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
2
.9

0
1
2
.5

0
1
7
.3

0
1
2
.5

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
K

I-
S

S
2
9

C
6
4

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

o
re

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 

3
5
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

5
7
.8

0
7
5
.0

0
7
0
.0

0
8
0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
K

I-
S

S
3
2

C
6
3

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t
h
e
ir
 

v
ie

w
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 a

s
 a

 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 h

a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
t 
M

a
rc

h
 3

1
s
t 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 f
o
u
r 

w
e
e
k
s
.

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

7
4
.6

0
8
5
.0

0
7
3
.0

0
8
0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
K

I-
S

S
3
4

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 7
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

7
3
.0

0
8
0
.0

0
7
9
.0

0
8
0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-C
S

P
5
2
b

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

in
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 

5
-1

9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 -

 S
&

A
R

S
p
o
rt

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
1
0
3
1
0
5
0
.0

0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
.0

0
5
2
4
2
5
1
.0

0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
e
e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
re

p
o
rt

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 d

e
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
g
is

te
r.

 A
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
O

6
-0

7
 L

e
e
d
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 r

a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
b
a
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
. 
L
e
e
d
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 r

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

3
 b

lo
b
 b

a
n
d
in

g
 (

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

).
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
w

 t
o
o
 g

re
a
t 
a
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
g
is

te
r.

 T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 i
ts

 p
ra

c
ti
s
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

o
re

 c
le

a
rl
y
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
h
a

n
g
e
.

N
o
 r

o
o
m

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
la

c
e
n
c
y
 b

u
t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

o
o
r 

fi
rs

t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 w

h
e
n
 i
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 l
o
n
g
 h

o
lid

a
y
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 
I 
a
m

 u
n
c
le

a
r 

a
s
 t
o
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 'c

le
a
n
e
d
 u

p
' t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 a

re
a
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 s

o
 a

m
 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 t
h
e
 A

re
a
/T

e
a
m

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
s
.

T
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
ju

n
io

r 
v
is

it
s
 f
o
r 

Q
2
 0

7
/0

8
 w

a
s
 2

4
7
, 
6
5
4
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 2
1
2
,0

8
8
 v

is
it
s
. 
 T

h
is

 e
q
u
a
te

s
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
6
.8

%
 o

n
 0

6
/0

7
 f
ig

u
re

s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 t
h
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
J
o
h
n
 S

m
e
a
to

n
 

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
p
u
t 
is

 a
ls

o
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

t 
S

o
u
th

 L
e
e
d
s
 S

p
o
rt

s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 A

ir
e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

e
s
iu

re
 C

e
n
tr

e
.

O
n
 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 t
o
 b

e
 t
o
p
 b

a
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 T
a
rg

e
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 m

e
t.
 T

h
is

 s
ig

n
if
ie

s
 v

e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 d

e
s
e
rv

e
 s

o
m

e
 c

re
d
it
. 
It
 i
s
 c

ru
c
ia

l 
w

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t
h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 o

v
e
r 

5
0
%

, 
fr

o
m

 4
9
%

 t
o
 7

5
%

. 
F

ig
u
re

s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 0

7
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
A

u
g
u
s
t 
0
7
 h

a
v
e
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
d
ro

p
 t
o
 7

2
.5

%
. 
T

h
e
 O

fS
T

E
D

 r
a
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 

th
is

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 o

f 
5
 b

a
n
d
s
. 
F

o
re

c
a
s
t 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 i
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 8

0
%

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 3

rd
 o

fS
T

E
D

 b
a
n
d
, 
('
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

')
.

1
9

Page 45



E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

0
7

/0
8

 R
e

s
u

lt
 

to
 D

a
te

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 a
c

h
ie

v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
t 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 -

 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 P

re
d

ic
a

te
d

 F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 
R

e
s
u

lt
6

4
%

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 s
h

o
w

in
g

 a
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 P

re
d

ic
a

te
d

 F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 
R

e
s
u

lt
*

7
9

%

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 s
h

o
w

in
g

 a
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r 
d

e
c
lin

e
 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 P

re
d

ic
a

te
d

 F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 
R

e
s
u

lt
*

1
8

%

P
le

a
s

e
 n

o
te

 p
re

d
ic

te
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 c

a
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 e
a

c
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r*

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

1
a

1
2

1
3

1
4

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t

P
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r -

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m

Q
u

a
rt

ile

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r -

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta

Q
u

a
lit

y

Is
s
u

e
s

B
V

-1
2

6

D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 b

u
rg

la
ri
e

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

2
5

.4
2

2
.3

1
2

.3
2

4
.7

6
.4

1
3

.7
2

7
.5

4
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
2

7
 a

V
io

le
n

t 
c
ri
m

e
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r,

 1
0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

2
3

.8
2

2
.9

1
1

.3
2

2
.5

1
2

.5
2

2
.9

3
3

.5
3

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
2

7
 b

R
o

b
b

e
ri
e

s
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r,

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

a
re

a
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

2
.3

2
.2

1
.0

2
.3

0
.3

1
.3

3
.9

3
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 R
e

s
u

lt

5
4

%

6
8

%

2
4

%

Y
T

D
=

3
9

9
0

 d
o

w
n

 2
.3

%
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 9
6

 f
e

w
e

r 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
tt

ri
b

u
te

d
, 

in
 p

a
rt

, 
to

 t
h

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 P

ro
b

a
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

Y
T

D
=

8
1

3
7

 d
o

w
n

 1
2

.4
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 1
1

5
0

 f
e

w
e

r 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
. 

V
io

le
n

t 
c
ri
m

e
 i
s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
, 

ill
u

s
tr

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
o

lic
e

 p
o

lic
y
 f

o
r 

e
a

rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

lo
w

 l
e

v
e

l 
v
io

le
n

c
e

 e
s
c
a

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 m

o
re

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
 a

tt
a

c
k
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f

th
e

 T
a

c
k
lin

g
 V

io
le

n
t 

C
ri
m

e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

.

Y
T

D
=

7
5

6
 u

p
 6

.2
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 4
4

 m
o

re
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

ri
m

e
 R

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

n
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
ro

b
b

e
ri
e

s
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
.

T
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

, 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 H
o

m
e

 O
ff

ic
e

 c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

u
le

s
, 

to
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 a
n

 o
ff

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

ro
b

b
e

ry
 i
s
 n

o
w

 w
id

e
r 

th
a

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
n

d
 a

s
 a

 c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 P

o
lic

e
 n

o
w

 r
e

c
o

rd
 m

o
re

 o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 a

s
 r

o
b

b
e

ry
 a

n
d

 f
e

w
e

r 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 a

s
 t

h
e

ft
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

. 
In

 

a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

th
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 t

re
n

d
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
o

b
b

e
ri
e

s
 (

m
o

b
ile

 p
h

o
n

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
o

rt
a

b
le

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 g

o
o

d
s
).

  
T

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 o
n

 e
m

b
e

d
d

in
g

 a
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 p

o
lic

y
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

a
 Y

o
u

th
 

C
ri
m

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

2
0

Page 46



E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t

P
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r -

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m

Q
u

a
rt

ile

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r -

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta

Q
u

a
lit

y

Is
s
u

e
s

B
V

-1
2

8

V
e

h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

1
7

.3
1

6
.5

7
.1

1
4

.7
7

.3
1

4
.6

2
5

.3
2

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
7

4

C
P

-C
S

1
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ra
c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 p
e

r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

1
8

3
.5

1
2

5
6

.9
4

7
2

.1
2

4
0

.1
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
.0

0
S

o
m

e

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
7

5

C
P

A
-H

1
9

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ra

c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
re

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
a

fe
ty

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
3

.9
7

9
8

.0
0

9
7

.4
9

7
.0

1
0

0
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

8
4

.8
0

2
S

o
m

e

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-2
2

5
A

c
ti
o

n
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 (
D

V
) 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 

o
f 

L
A

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
D

V
 a

n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

D
V

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
a

fe
ty

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

0
.0

0
0

0
0

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-C
S

5
0

L
A

A
-S

S
C

8

P
S

A
1

R
e

d
u

c
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
ri
m

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 b

y
 3

5
%

 b
y
 2

0
0

8
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
a

fe
ty

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

-2
3

.6
0

-3
5

.0
0

-2
7

.9
0

-2
9

.7
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-2
1

7

C
P

-E
N

5
1

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

 t
im

e
.

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l

H
e

a
lt
h

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
9

9
0

1
0

0
9

0
1

0
0

8
3

8
2

2
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
K

I-
E

H
8

C
P

A
-H

1
8

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
h

o
m

e
s
 v

a
c
a

n
t 

fo
r 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 6

 m
o

n
th

s
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l

H
e

a
lt
h

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

2
.3

9
2

.6
9

2
.4

3
2

.5
5

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o

m
e

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
8

3
b

C
P

A
-H

1
5

T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 l
e

n
g

th
 o

f 
s
ta

y
 i
n

 h
o

s
te

l 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 o

r 
a

 p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
w

o
m

a
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

u
n

in
te

n
ti
o

n
a

lly
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 n
e

e
d

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

S
e

rv
ic

e

M
o

n
th

ly

W
e

e
k
s

F
a

ll
0

0
0

0
0

1
7

8
1

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
e

n
tr

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
e

t 
a

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 9

0
%

 p
o

llu
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
, 

w
h

ic
h

 L
e

e
d

s
 a

d
o

p
ts

 a
s
 i
ts

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 C

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

e
 a

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
c
t 

to
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 w
e

ll 
a

g
a

in
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r,

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 Q

3
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 d

e
m

a
n

d
in

g
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 

a
n

d
 t

y
p

e
s
 o

f 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
T

h
e

re
fo

re
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 p

re
d

ic
ti
o

n
 i
s
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 a
t 

9
0

%

Y
T

D
=

5
1

1
5

 d
o

w
n

 1
5

.8
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 9
6

1
 f

e
w

e
r 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
. 

T
h

e
ft

 o
f 

M
o

to
r 

V
e

h
ic

le
=

1
4

4
4

 -
1

7
.2

%
 (

3
0

0
 f

e
w

e
r 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
) 

T
h

e
ft

 f
ro

m
 M

o
to

r 
V

e
h

ic
le

=
3

6
7

1
 -

1
5

.3
%

 (
6

6
1

 f
e

w
e

r 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
).

N
O

T
 A

 F
U

L
L

 R
E

T
U

R
N

 -
 Y

T
D

 (
A

p
ri
l-
S

e
p

t)
 C

E
D

=
8

7
, 

C
it
y
S

=
6

8
, 

C
o

rp
S

=
0

, 
D

e
v
=

4
, 

L
&

L
=

9
, 

N
&

H
=

3
, 

S
S

=
1

, 
W

e
s
t 

N
o

rt
h

 H
o

m
e

s
=

2
0

, 
E

a
s
t 

N
o

rt
h

 H
o

m
e

s
=

4
6

, 
A

ir
e

 V
a

lle
y
 H

o
m

e
s
=

2
, 

D
e

p
t.

u
n

k
n

o
w

n
=

4
  

T
o

ta
l 
o

f 
2

4
4

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
.

L
a

s
t 

u
p

d
a

te
 f

ro
m

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 (

Q
1

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
) 

s
h

o
w

e
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 f

ro
m

 j
u

s
t 

4
0

%
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 -
 2

9
7

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
. 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
te

rm
 t

im
e

s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 Q

u
a

rt
e

rs
.

N
O

T
 A

 F
U

L
L

 R
E

T
U

R
N

 -
 L

a
s
t 

u
p

d
a

te
 f

ro
m

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 (

Q
1

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
) 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 -
 2

9
7

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 2

8
3

 (
9

5
.3

%
) 

re
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

is
 w

a
s
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 o
f 

o
n

ly
 4

0
%

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
.

A
ll 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 -

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
2

0
0

6
/0

7

Y
T

D
=

-2
7

.9
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 0

3
/0

4
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

, 
e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 2
1

,9
3

8
. 

 D
o

w
n

 1
1

.4
%

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r,
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 3
4

0
1

 f
e

w
e

r 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
. 

C
ri
m

in
a

l 
d

a
m

a
g

e
 i
s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
re

m
is

e
s
. 

 V
io

le
n

t 
c
ri
m

e
 i
s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
, 

p
a

rt
ia

lly
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 T

a
c
k
lin

g
 V

io
le

n
t 

C
ri
m

e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 
S

a
fe

r 
L

e
e

d
s
  

s
e

t 
a

n
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t 
o

f 
-2

7
.5

%
 f

o
r 

0
7

/0
8

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 f
a

ili
n

g
 s

tu
d

e
n

t 
m

a
rk

e
t 

in
 N

W
 L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 e

m
p

ty
 'i

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t' 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 i
n

 n
e

w
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

. 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
lo

n
g

 t
e

rm
 e

m
p

ty
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

re
a

s
 o

f 
lo

w
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 h

a
s
 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

m
p

ty
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
n

 E
m

p
ty

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

.

N
o

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 m

e
e

ts
 t

h
e

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
h

o
s
te

l 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
. 

  
N

o
 p

la
n

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 n

e
w

 o
r 

re
c
o

n
fi
g

u
re

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
m

e
e

ts
 t

h
e

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
.

2
1

Page 47



E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t

P
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r -

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m

Q
u

a
rt

ile

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r -

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta

Q
u

a
lit

y

Is
s
u

e
s

B
V

-2
1

3

C
P

A
-H

2
4

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 (

p
e

r 
th

o
u

s
a

n
d

) 
w

h
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
 

a
s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
, 

w
h

o
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
d

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

(s
),

 a
n

d
 f

o
r 

w
h

o
m

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
s
e

w
o

rk
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 t

h
e

ir
 s

it
u

a
ti
o

n
.

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

S
e

rv
ic

e

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

1
3

1
4

5
1

5
5

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-H
A

S
5

0
R

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
, 

a
s
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

S
e

rv
ic

e

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
F

a
ll

5
.3

0
5

.2
3

1
.0

6
5

.0
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
8

4
a

C
P

-H
M

5
1

C
P

A
-H

1

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o

m
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 n
o

n
-d

e
c
e

n
t 

a
t 

1
s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
0

7
.

H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

3
9

3
3

3
6

3
4

1
6

4
7

5
6

3
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
8

4
b

C
P

A
-H

2
T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

n
o

n
-d

e
c
e

n
t 

L
A

 h
o

m
e

s
 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 n
o

t 
d

e
c
e

n
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 1
s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

7
 a

n
d

 1
s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

8

H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

1
4

.1
4

0
.0

4
.3

2
6

.5
2

8
.3

4
.1

9
.6

3
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-2
1

2

C
P

A
-H

8
A

v
e

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 r

e
-l
e

t 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o

u
s
in

g
.

H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

D
a

y
s

F
a

ll
4

1
3

2
3

3
3

4
2

9
.0

5
1

5
9

5
S

o
m

e

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

In
 Q

1
 a

 9
.5

%
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

tr
a

ig
h

t 
L

in
e

 P
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 f

ig
u

re
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

w
a

s
 o

b
s
e

rv
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 c

o
rr

e
s
p

o
n

d
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 1

0
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
n

g
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
s
h

if
t 

to
w

a
rd

s
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

. 
In

 Q
2

 t
h

e
 f

ig
u

re
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 2

0
%

. 
A

 S
tr

a
ig

h
t 

L
in

e
 P

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 b
y
 2

0
%

 a
t 

a
ro

u
n

d
 3

.6
2

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 s

h
if
t 

to
w

a
rd

s
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s
 c

o
u

p
le

d
 w

it
h

 a
 s

tr
in

g
e

n
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 

a
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

 c
ri
te

ri
a

 h
a

s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 t

h
is

 r
e

s
u

lt
 t

o
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 H

N
G

 S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
R

e
le

a
s
e

 h
a

s
 s

h
o

w
n

 t
h

a
t 

L
e

e
d

s
 h

a
s
 t

h
e

 3
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

a
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
th

e
 7

 c
o

re
 c

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

Q
2

. 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 A
s
s
u

re
d

 S
h

o
rt

h
o

ld
 T

e
n

a
n

c
ie

s
, 

S
a

n
c
tu

a
ry

 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 A
rc

h
w

a
y
 /

 Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

 m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
s
.

C
P

-H
A

S
5

0
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
s
 t

h
a

t 
s
ta

te
d

 i
n

 L
K

I-
H

A
S

4
 e

x
c
e

p
t 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 r
a

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
a

s
e

s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
. 

F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 

3
4

4
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 i
n

 S
e

p
t 

tr
a

n
s
la

te
s
 t

o
 1

.0
6

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 p
e

r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r.

 (
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
/ 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
(3

2
,0

2
7

))
*1

0
0

 =
 1

.0
6

 f
o

r 
Q

2
. 

A
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

lie
d

, 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
p

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
5

.0
0

.

S
lo

w
 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 d

u
e

 t
o

 A
L

M
O

 R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 A

L
M

O
s
  

ta
k
in

g
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

0
7

/0
8

. 
 A

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r,
 i
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
m

o
s
t 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
t 

is
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

A
t 

th
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
, 

A
L

M
O

s
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 u

p
d

a
te

s
 o

n
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
. 

S
e

e
 c

o
v
e

r 
re

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

a
 b

ro
a

d
e

r 
e

x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

e
c
e

n
c
y
.

1
 A

p
ri
l 
0

7
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 d
ip

p
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 Q

1
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
3

4
.9

7
. 

 C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 a

n
a

ly
s
in

g
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

r 
d

a
ta

 e
rr

o
r.

 D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 K
P

M
G

 (
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

r)
 h

a
v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

a
t a

in
to

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 d
e

c
e

n
c
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
. 

S
e

e
 c

o
v
e

r 
re

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

a
 b

ro
a

d
e

r 
e

x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

e
c
e

n
c
y
.

It
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
, 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 a
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 0
6

/0
7

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
. 

 I
s
s
u

e
s
 r

a
is

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 B
V

2
1

2
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

  
A

L
M

O
s
 a

n
d

 d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
a

k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
u

d
it
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 

in
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
a

ta
 q

u
a

lit
y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
.

2
2

Page 48



E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t

P
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r -

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m

Q
u

a
rt

ile

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r -

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta

Q
u

a
lit

y

Is
s
u

e
s

B
V

-6
3

C
P

-H
M

5
2

L
A

A
-H

C
O

P
2

1

E
n

e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 -

 t
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 S

A
P

 r
a

ti
n

g
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
w

n
e

d
 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s

H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

6
5

6
7

6
6

6
7

6
9

.0
6

3
6

2
4

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-6
6

a

C
P

A
-H

6
R

e
n

t 
c
o

lle
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
re

n
ts

 o
w

e
d

 

o
n

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
(H

R
A

) 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
.

H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

9
6

.6
9

9
7

.0
0

9
5

.6
1

9
6

.7
0

9
8

.6
9

7
.0

7
9

5
.4

2
3

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-6
6

b
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 w
it
h

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 s

e
v
e

n
 w

e
e

k
s
 

o
f 

(g
ro

s
s
) 

re
n

t 
a

rr
e

a
rs

 a
s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

te
n

a
n

ts
.

H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

7
.2

9
7

.0
0

6
.7

9
7

.0
0

4
.1

8
.5

3
1

0
.4

0
1

.0
0

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-6
6

c
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 i
n

 a
rr

e
a

rs
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 h
a

d
 

N
o

ti
c
e

s
 S

e
e

k
in

g
 P

o
s
s
e

s
s
io

n
 s

e
rv

e
d

H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

2
4

.9
3

2
3

.5
0

9
.8

5
2

0
.0

0
1

7
.1

3
5

.1
8

3
3

.1
6

3
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-6
6

d
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 e
v
ic

te
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
re

n
t 

a
rr

e
a

rs
.

H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

0
.2

9
0

.2
6

0
.1

4
0

.2
8

0
.2

1
1

1
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
K

I-
H

M
A

4

C
P

A
-H

5
T

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 n

o
n

-u
rg

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
p

a
ir
s

H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

D
a

y
s

F
a

ll
1

2
.7

0
1

1
.0

0
1

0
.0

0
1

1
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
K

I-
H

M
A

7

C
P

A
-H

4
T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

u
rg

e
n

t 
re

p
a

ir
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

ti
m

e
 l
im

it
s

H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

9
6

.7
2

9
7

.3
5

9
7

.8
6

9
7

.3
5

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

N
.A

.

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
e

v
ic

ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

ls
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 r

e
a

c
h

e
d

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

rr
e

a
rs

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 B

V
6

6
a

.

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
o

 S
A

P
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
a

r 
fu

tu
re

 w
h

e
re

b
y
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 s

c
a

le
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 f
ro

m
 1

-1
2

0
 t

o
 a

 s
c
a

le
 o

f 
1

-1
0

0
. 

 W
h

e
n

 t
h

is
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 c

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 f
u

lly
  

it
 w

ill
 s

e
e

 m
a

n
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 l
o

o
s
in

g
 4

 t
o

 5
 S

A
P

 p
o

in
ts

. 
T

o
 o

ff
 s

e
t 

th
is

 

im
p

e
n

d
in

g
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 s
h

if
t 

B
V

6
3

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
is

 n
e

w
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 n

o
w

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
a

c
t 

la
te

r 
in

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r.
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 i
s
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 b

y
 d

ir
e

c
t 

d
e

b
it
 c

y
c
le

s
, 

a
n

d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

w
e

e
k
 w

a
s
 9

6
.2

2
%

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 C

P
A

 l
o

w
e

r 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a

n
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

(9
6

.6
9

).
 A

 B
V

6
6

a
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
a

n
d

lo
rd

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 A
L

M
O

s
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 

a
n

d
 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 a
 m

o
n

th
ly

 b
a

s
is

. 
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 L

a
n

d
lo

rd
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 m
e

t 
w

it
h

 A
L

M
O

 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

s
lo

w
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
."

 C
P

A
 M

id
 t

h
re

s
h

o
ld

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

. 
C

P
A

 U
p

p
e

r 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

. 
C

P
A

 U
p

p
e

r 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
.

2
3

Page 49



E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
7
/0

8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t

P
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r -

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m

Q
u

a
rt

ile

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r -

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta

Q
u

a
lit

y

Is
s
u

e
s

B
V

-6
4

C
P

-P
S

H
2

C
P

A
-H

2
3

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 i
n

to
 

o
c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
d

e
m

o
lis

h
e

d
 a

s
 a

 d
ir
e

c
t 

re
s
u

lt
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

P
ri
v
a

te
 S

e
c
to

r 

H
o

u
s
in

g

S
tr

a
te

g
y

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

2
3

7
7

.0
0

1
5

0
0

.0
0

1
4

9
0

.0
0

2
4

0
0

.0
0

7
6

.5
7

4
9

8
.8

8
1

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
S

-E
3

2

T
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
, 

v
is

it
s
 t

o
 h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
T

ra
d

in
g

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
0

0
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

2
8

.2
0

1
0

0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
S

-E
3

3
a

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 -

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 

p
re

m
is

e
s

T
ra

d
in

g

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
0

0
.0

0
9

5
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

9
5

.0
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
S

-E
3

3
b

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 -

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 m

e
d

iu
m

 r
is

k
 

p
re

m
is

e
s

T
ra

d
in

g

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

1
0

0
.0

0
9

5
.0

0
9

8
.9

0
9

5
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
S

-E
3

3
c

T
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 -

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 -
 l
o

w
 r

is
k
 

p
re

m
is

e
s

T
ra

d
in

g

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
7

.1
0

9
5

.0
0

1
0

0
.0

0
9

5
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
o

s
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

in
fr

in
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 P

re
m

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

b
a

c
k
 i
n

to
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
v
is

it
s
 o

r 
w

h
e

re
 p

ro
s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 a

re
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 w

e
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 l
o

w
. 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

s
e

c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

a
s
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 v

is
it
s
 t

o
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
1

 n
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

. 
A

s
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 w

ill
 a

ll 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 v
is

it
e

d
 b

y
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 v
is

it
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 

a
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

8
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

9
5

%
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
.

T
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
o

s
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

in
fr

in
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 P

re
m

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

b
a

c
k
 i
n

to
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
v
is

it
s
 o

r 
w

h
e

re
 p

ro
s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 a

re
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 w

e
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 l
o

w
. 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

s
e

c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

a
s
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 v

is
it
s
 t

o
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
1

 n
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

. 
A

s
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 w

ill
 a

ll 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 v
is

it
e

d
 b

y
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 v
is

it
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 

a
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

8
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

9
5

%
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
.

T
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
o

s
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

in
fr

in
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 P

re
m

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

b
a

c
k
 i
n

to
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
v
is

it
s
 o

r 
w

h
e

re
 p

ro
s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 a

re
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 w

e
re

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 l
o

w
. 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

s
e

c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

a
s
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 v

is
it
s
 t

o
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
1

 n
o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

. 
A

s
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 w

ill
 a

ll 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 v
is

it
e

d
 b

y
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 v
is

it
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 

a
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

8
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

9
5

%
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
.

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 j
o

in
tl
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 h
a

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 
C

P
A

 U
p

p
e

r 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

.

H
ig

h
 r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 u

s
in

g
 a

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
c
h

e
m

a
. 

T
h

e
 t

o
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 f

ig
u

re
, 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 1

0
0

%
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

2
 q

u
a

rt
e

rs
 1

9
%

 a
n

d
 2

8
.2

%
 o

f 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 w

e
re

 v
is

it
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

ti
m

e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 a
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 t

o
 r

e
v
is

it
 n

o
n

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 (

s
e

e
 b

e
lo

w
).

 C
P

A
 U

p
p

e
r 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
.

2
4

Page 50



P
o

li
c

y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
0

7
/0

8

0
7

/0
8

 R
e

s
u

lt
 

to
 D

a
te

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 a
c

h
ie

v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
t 

y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 -

 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 P

re
d

ic
a

te
d

 F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 
R

e
s
u

lt
1

0
0

%

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 s
h

o
w

in
g

 a
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 P

re
d

ic
a

te
d

 F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 
R

e
s
u

lt
*

1
0

0
%

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 s
h

o
w

in
g

 a
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r 
d

e
c
lin

e
 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 P

re
d

ic
a

te
d

 F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 
R

e
s
u

lt
*

0
%

P
le

a
s

e
 n

o
te

 p
re

d
ic

te
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 c

a
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 e
a

c
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r*

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

1
a

1
2

1
3

1
4

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o

o
d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t

P
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m

Q
u

a
rt

ile

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta

Q
u

a
lit

y

Is
s
u

e
s

C
P

-A
S

5
1

a
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
p
u

b
lic

 t
e
le

p
h

o
n
e
 c

a
lls

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

th
a
t 

a
re

 

a
n

s
w

e
re

d
 (

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
c
e
n

tr
e

)

C
u

s
to

m
e
r

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
9

2
.0

0
9

4
.0

0
9

2
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-A
S

5
1

b
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
p
u

b
lic

 t
e
le

p
h

o
n
e
 c

a
lls

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

th
a
t 

a
re

 

a
n

s
w

e
re

d
 (

o
th

e
r 

h
ig

h
 v

o
lu

m
e
 t
e
le

p
h

o
n
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
ts

)

C
u

s
to

m
e
r

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
e

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
e

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-A
S

5
1

c
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
p
u

b
lic

 t
e
le

p
h

o
n
e
 c

a
lls

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

th
a
t 

a
re

 

a
n

s
w

e
re

d

C
u

s
to

m
e
r

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

8
5

9
2

.0
0

S
e

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
e

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
0

%

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 R
e

s
u

lt

T
h

e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
 h

a
n
d
le

s
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 8

0
%

 o
f 

c
a
lls

 t
o
 m

a
in

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h
e

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
tc

h
e

s
 b

e
s
t 

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
a

lls
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
, 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 9

4
%

, 
c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 n

o
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
 l
in

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

n
s
w

e
ri
n

g
 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 5

0
%

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 c

a
lls

. 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
.

6
3

%

3
8

%

A
 p

ro
b

le
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 E

ri
c
s
s
o
n
 t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

h
e
re

b
y
 d

a
ta

 p
e
rt

a
in

in
g
 t

o
 'f

a
ile

d
/a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

' c
a

ll 
re

c
o

rd
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

b
e

in
g

 c
a

p
tu

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
a

ll 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
. 

 A
s
 f

a
r 

a
s
 w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 a
s
c
e

rt
a

in
 t

h
is

 p
ro

b
le

m
 w

a
s
 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 E

ri
c
s
s
o
n

 s
o
ft
w

a
re

 u
p
g
ra

d
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 l
a
te

 J
u
ly

. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

b
le

m
 m

e
a
n
s
 a

n
y
 c

a
ll 

th
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
h

o
w

n
 a

s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 o
r 

b
u

s
y
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 c
a

p
tu

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
a

ll 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 g
iv

e
s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
re

s
s
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
e
a

c
h

 c
a

ll 
o

ff
e

re
d

 

w
a
s
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
. 
 W

e
 a

re
 p

re
s
e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
r 

to
 r

e
in

s
ta

te
 f

u
ll 

d
a
ta

 c
a
p
tu

re
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 r

e
tr

o
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 o

f 
 f

a
ile

d
/a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 c
a

ll 
d

a
ta

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
.

A
 p

ro
b

le
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 E

ri
c
s
s
o
n
 t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

h
e
re

b
y
 d

a
ta

 p
e
rt

a
in

in
g
 t

o
 'f

a
ile

d
/a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

' c
a

ll 
re

c
o

rd
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

b
e

in
g

 c
a

p
tu

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
a

ll 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
. 

 A
s
 f

a
r 

a
s
 w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 a
s
c
e

rt
a

in
 t

h
is

 p
ro

b
le

m
 w

a
s
 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 E

ri
c
s
s
o
n

 s
o
ft
w

a
re

 u
p
g
ra

d
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 l
a
te

 J
u
ly

. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

b
le

m
 m

e
a
n
s
 a

n
y
 c

a
ll 

th
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
h

o
w

n
 a

s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 o
r 

b
u

s
y
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 c
a

p
tu

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
a

ll 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 g
iv

e
s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
re

s
s
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
e
a

c
h

 c
a

ll 
o

ff
e

re
d

 

w
a
s
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
. 
 W

e
 a

re
 p

re
s
e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
r 

to
 r

e
in

s
ta

te
 f

u
ll 

d
a
ta

 c
a
p
tu

re
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 r

e
tr

o
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 o

f 
 f

a
ile

d
/a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 c
a

ll 
d

a
ta

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
.

2
5

Page 51



P
o

li
c

y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
0

7
/0

8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o

o
d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t

P
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m

Q
u

a
rt

ile

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta

Q
u

a
lit

y

Is
s
u

e
s

C
P

-A
S

5
2

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
e
n

q
u
ir
ie

s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

(i
n

 p
e
rs

o
n
 a

n
d
 b

y
 

te
le

p
h

o
n
e
) 

th
a
t 
a

re
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

 a
t 
fi
rs

t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

(F
P

O
C

)

C
u

s
to

m
e
r

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

8
5

.0
0

8
0

.0
0

8
7

.0
0

8
7

.0
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o

m
e

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-A
S

5
3

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
p
u

b
lic

 t
e
le

p
h

o
n
e
 c

a
lls

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

th
a
t 

a
re

 

h
a

n
d
le

d
 b

y
 a

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
c
e
n

tr
e

C
u

s
to

m
e
r

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

6
7

.0
0

8
0

.0
0

8
0

.0
0

8
0

.0
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o

m
e

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
P

-A
S

5
4

V
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
tr

a
n
s
a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e

lf
-s

e
rv

ic
e

C
u

s
to

m
e
r

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
3

1
7

9
5

4
.0

0
3

4
9

7
4

9
.0

0
1

3
0

7
7

4
.0

0
4

9
0

,9
5

0
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
o

r 
R

e
g
is

tr
a
rs

 a
n

d
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 c

a
ll 

d
a
ta

, 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

s
 J

u
ly

, 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

a
n

d
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 i
s
s
u

e
 c

a
u

s
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 a

 r
e

c
e

n
t 

E
ri
c
s
s
o

n
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 h

a
d

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
t 

o
f 

o
v
e

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
s
e

 

lin
e
s
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
a

lly
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h

is
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 a
ff

e
c
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 s
p
lit

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
 l
in

e
s
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

n
lin

e
 c

o
m

p
lim

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
ig

u
re

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

u
s
p
e
c
te

d
 u

n
d

e
r-

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 t

ru
e

 f
ig

u
re

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
s
u

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

a
s
s
e

d
 t

o
 I

T
.

A
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

u
b

s
ta

tu
s
 f

ie
ld

 i
n
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 

L
e
e
d
s
 o

n
 1

5
th

 A
u
g
u

s
t 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
c
c
u

ra
c
y
 o

f 
F

ir
s
t 

P
o

in
t 

o
f 

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

d
a

ta
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
lie

d
 r

e
tr

o
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

W
e

 b
e

lie
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
m

e
th

o
d

 n
o

w
 

m
o

re
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 a
c
tu

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

F
ro

m
 1

s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0
0
8
, 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e

 u
s
 t

o
 r

e
p
o

rt
 o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 n

e
w

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
(d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 s

ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
) 

m
e

a
s
u

ri
n

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
`a

v
o

id
a

b
le

 c
o

n
ta

c
t'.

2
6

Page 52



R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
0

7
/0

8

0
7
/0

8
 R

e
s
u

lt
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 -

 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

7
6
%

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
*

7
5
%

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

d
e
c
lin

e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 P

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 F

u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
*

2
0
%

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 p
re

d
ic

te
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 c

a
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 e

a
c
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
r*

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1

0
1

1
1

1
a

1
2

1
3

1
4

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t

P
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m

Q
u

a
rt

ile

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

B
V

-7
6

b
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fr
a

u
d

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
to

rs
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 c

a
s
e

lo
a

d
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

0
.2

5
0

.2
3

0
.2

4
0

.2
4

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-7
6

c
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

(H
B

/C
T

B
) 

fr
a

u
d

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r,

 p
e

r 

1
,0

0
0

 c
a

s
e

lo
a

d

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
b

e
r

R
is

e
3

0
.8

9
2

9
.0

0
3

1
.3

8
2

9
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-7
6

d
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

(H
B

/C
T

B
) 

p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
a

n
c
ti
o

n
s
, 

p
e

r 
y
e

a
r,

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 c

a
s
e

lo
a

d
, 

in
 t

h
e

 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

M
o

n
th

ly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l
R

is
e

4
.2

6
4

.3
0

5
.9

7
4

.3
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-7
8

a

S
p

e
e

d
 o

f 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
: 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

 f
o

r 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 n

e
w

 c
la

im
s

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

M
o

n
th

ly

D
a

y
s

F
a

ll
3

1
.0

0
2

8
.0

0
2

7
.2

5
2

8
.0

0
7

8
.0

0
6

8
.0

0
6

9
.0

0
3

.0
0

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 R

e
s
u

lt

L
e

e
d

s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 J

o
b

c
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 a

re
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
in

g
le

-m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 c

o
u

n
te

r 
fr

a
u

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 a
lle

g
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
u

ll 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 t
w

o
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
.

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
re

c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t

h
e

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
o

v
e

rl
a

p
 i
n

 c
a

s
e

w
o

rk
 t

h
a

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
is

ts
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 t
w

o
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 h

is
to

ry
 o

f 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

 I
m

p
o

rt
a

n
tl
y
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
re

c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t

h
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 

s
in

g
le

-m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 t

e
a

m
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 f
ra

u
d

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
, 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
 o

f 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f

o
r 

s
im

ila
r 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

fr
a

u
d

s
, 

th
e

 s
c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
s
h

a
ri
n

g
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 f

o
r 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 f

ra
u

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 i
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

.

T
h

e
 d

a
y
-t

o
-d

a
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
c
o

u
n

te
r-

fr
a

u
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
e

a
d

 b
y
 J

o
b

c
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 b
e

in
g

 o
v
e

rs
e

e
n

 b
y
 a

 J
o

in
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

B
o

a
rd

 c
o

n
s
is

ti
n

g
 o

f 
s
e

n
io

r 
L

C
C

 a
n

d
 J

o
b

c
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e

 J
o

in
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

B
o

a
rd

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
e

n
io

r 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 l
e

a
d

 o
n

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
-l
e

v
e

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
.

7
1
%

1
9
%

5
5
%

L
B

S
 a

re
 s

if
ti
n

g
 o

u
t 

m
o

re
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

e
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 n
o

 p
ro

o
f 

o
f 

fr
a

u
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
fo

c
u

s
 o

n
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 f

ra
u

d
 i
s
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

. 
 T

h
e

 c
a

s
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
d

o
 n

o
t 

g
e

t 
in

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 w

ill
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

 l
o

o
k
e

d
 i
n

to
 t

h
o

ro
u

g
h

ly
 b

u
t 

th
e

s
e

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
c
o

u
n

t 
to

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
is

 B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
  

T
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 a

re
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 r

a
te

 f
o

r 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s
.

W
h

e
re

 w
e

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 m
o

re
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 7

6
c
  

th
e

n
 t

h
is

 a
ls

o
 m

e
a

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 m
o

re
 s

a
n

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
a

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

s
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e

lo
a

d
. 

 S
tr

e
a

m
lin

in
g

 t
h

e
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 m

e
a

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
in

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 c

lo
s
e

d
 q

u
ic

k
e

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
m

o
re

 c
a

s
e

s
 c

o
m

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 f

o
r 

a
 s

a
n

c
ti
o

n
.

N
.A

.

2
7

Page 53



R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
0

7
/0

8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t

P
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m

Q
u

a
rt

ile

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

B
V

-7
8

b
T

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 t

im
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

w
ri
tt

e
n

 n
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 a

 c
la

im
a

n
t's

 c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 

a
 n

e
w

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

M
o

n
th

ly

D
a

y
s

F
a

ll
2

3
.9

1
6

.0
1

7
.7

1
6

.0
9

.1
1

8
.8

2
2

.0
7

.0
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-7
9

a
A

c
c
u

ra
c
y
 o

f 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
: 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 f

o
r 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 

c
a

lc
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
b

e
n

e
fi
t 

d
u

e
 w

a
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
c
a

s
e

s
 

c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 p

o
s
t-

d
e

c
is

io
n

.

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
9

.0
9

8
.6

9
9

.2
9

8
.6

9
9

.0
9

6
.6

9
8

.3
5

.0
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-7
9

b
i

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
c
o

v
e

re
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

p
e

ri
o

d
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 o
n

 a
s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

H
B

 d
e

e
m

e
d

 

re
c
o

v
e

ra
b

le
 o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
ri
o

d

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

7
2

.6
8

7
3

.5
0

7
5

.2
4

7
3

.5
0

7
9

.3
9

5
8

.9
8

5
8

.2
3

1
.0

0
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-7
9

b
ii

H
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
c
o

v
e

re
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 a

s
 a

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

e
b

t 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
t 

th
e

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 p

lu
s
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

H
B

 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

3
3

.1
7

3
3

.2
0

2
0

.5
9

3
3

.2
0

3
9

.6
9

2
7

.3
5

2
9

.9
9

4
.0

0
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-7
9

b
iii

H
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 o
ff

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 a

s
 a

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

d
e

b
t 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 

a
t 

th
e

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 p

lu
s
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

M
o

n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

7
.1

7
7

.0
0

4
.6

8
8

.5
0

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
0

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
n

o
n

-d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 d

u
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 a

n
d

 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

9
8

.5
8

9
8

.6
0

6
1

.2
1

9
8

.6
0

9
9

.2
6

9
8

.1
0

9
7

.7
8

4
.0

0
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-9
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 d

u
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

re
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 a

n
d

 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

9
6

.3
8

9
6

.5
0

5
5

.9
0

9
6

.5
0

9
8

.4
0

9
6

.3
9

9
4

.0
2

1
.0

0
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-8
T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

in
v
o

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
g

o
o

d
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 

w
e

re
 p

a
id

 b
y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 w
it
h

in
 3

0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
s
u

c
h

 i
n

v
o

ic
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

.

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

M
o

n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

9
1

.6
5

9
2

.0
0

9
1

.6
0

9
2

.0
0

9
6

.7
1

8
9

.2
4

9
0

.3
2

4
.0

0
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
O

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
ta

rg
e

t.
 C

re
d

it
o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 f

ro
m

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 s

h
a

re
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 C

e
n

tr
e

. 
T

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
d

 l
it
tl
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 i
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
w

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 w

ill
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
a

rg
e

t.

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

- 
th

is
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t,

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

ro
-a

c
ti
v
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 g
ro

w
in

g
 m

o
m

e
n

tu
m

 o
f 

d
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 o
n

-g
o

in
g

 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t.

T
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
is

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

u
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 l
a

rg
e

r 
v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

d
e

b
ts

 b
e

in
g

 w
ri
tt

e
n

 o
ff

 a
s
 u

n
re

c
o

v
e

ra
b

le
 a

ft
e

r 
b

e
in

g
 p

a
s
s
e

d
 t

o
 o

u
ts

id
e

 d
e

b
t 

c
o

lle
c
to

rs
 w

h
e

re
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 w

e
re

 r
e

tu
rn

e
d

 u
n

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 

(F
e

b
/M

a
rc

h
 0

7
) 

a
n

d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
tu

a
lly

 f
a

lle
n

 i
n

to
 0

7
/0

8
 f

o
r 

w
ri
te

 o
ff

. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 w
ri
tt

e
n

 o
ff

 a
 l
a

rg
e

r 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 a

s
 n

o
n

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ra
b

le
 b

y
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 r

a
is

e
d

 (
a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 c

o
u

n
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 P
I)

.

N
.A

.

N
.A

.

D
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 A
p

ri
l 
u

p
ra

ti
n

g
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 a
n

d
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 t
re

n
d

 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
m

o
re

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 o

f 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r.

  
F

u
rt

h
e

rm
o

re
, 

s
in

c
e

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

4
 t

h
e

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
a

d
d

re
s
s
e

s
. 

 I
n

 a
n

y
 c

a
s
e

 o
f 

a
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 m

is
s
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 v

e
ri
fy

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
h

is
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 g
a

th
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 c
it
iz

e
n

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 c

a
n

 b
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

d
. 

 T
h

e
 r

u
le

s
 

p
re

s
c
ri
b

e
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

it
iz

e
n

 h
a

s
 o

n
e

 m
o

n
th

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
is

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
.

N
.A

.

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

- 
th

is
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

a
s
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t,

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

ro
-a

c
ti
v
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 g
ro

w
in

g
 m

o
m

e
n

tu
m

 o
f 

d
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 o
n

-g
o

in
g

 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
t.

2
8

Page 54



R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
0

7
/0

8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t

P
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m

Q
u

a
rt

ile

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

C
P

-F
S

5
0

L
K

I-
F

3
A

c
h

ie
v
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n

 2
.5

%
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r
C

o
rp

o
ra

te

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

£
m

R
is

e
2

2
.2

0
1

7
.9

3
S

e
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
e

e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
1

a

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 w
o

m
e

n
H

R
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%
R

is
e

3
6

.4
7

3
8

.0
0

3
7

.6
3

3
7

.6
3

4
2

.4
5

2
2

.2
2

4
2

.3
8

8
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
1

b
T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

to
p

 5
%

 o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 b
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
H

R
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%
R

is
e

5
.7

5
6

.0
0

6
.1

1
6

.1
1

4
.3

3
0

6
.3

9
4

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
1

c
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 (
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
)

H
R

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

3
.6

0
4

.0
0

3
.7

7
3

.7
7

4
.8

3
0

.0
0

2
.9

8
2

.0
0

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
2

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 l
o

s
t 

to
 s

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

H
R

M
o

n
th

ly

D
a

y
s

F
a

ll
1

2
.0

0
1

1
.5

0
4

.3
8

1
0

.8
0

8
.3

4
1

0
.9

4
1

1
.0

7
8

.0
0

S
o

m
e

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
4

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 r

e
ti
ri
n

g
 e

a
rl
y
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
ll-

h
e

a
lt
h

 

re
ti
re

m
e

n
ts

) 
a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
w

o
rk

 f
o

rc
e

.
H

R
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%
F

a
ll

2
.2

1
1

.5
0

0
.8

4
1

.6
8

0
.1

7
0

.7
8

0
.5

6
8

.0
0

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 i
s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

o
r 

1
7

th
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
to

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
 f

o
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
o

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
is

 1
5

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

th
e

re
fo

re
 f

in
a

l 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 u

n
ti
l 
th

is
 

d
a

te
.

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

m
a

d
e

 f
ro

m
 Q

1
. 

 I
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 w

ill
 r

e
a

c
h

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
Q

4
. 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
y
 g

iv
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

s
 n

e
w

 p
o

s
ts

 a
re

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 f

ill
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

c
o

h
o

rt
.

W
h

ils
t 

th
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 (
0

.0
4

%
) 

s
in

c
e

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r1

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 s

ti
ll 

a
b

o
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 B

V
P

I.
  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
y
 g

iv
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

s
 n

e
w

 p
o

s
ts

 a
re

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 f

ill
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

c
o

h
o

rt
.

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 m
o

d
e

s
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 s
ti
ll 

b
e

lo
w

 t
a

rg
e

t.
  

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

s
ti
ll 

a
c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
a

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 g

iv
e

s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

t 
th

is
 l
e

v
e

l.

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 2

0
h

 o
f 

e
a

c
h

 m
o

n
th

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 t

h
e

 2
6

th
 O

c
to

b
e

r.
  

F
o

r 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
tw

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
s
 o

n
ly

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
J
u

ly
 a

n
d

 A
u

g
u

s
t,

 t
h

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

tw
o

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

th
re

e
.

E
a

rl
y
 r

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 a

 u
s
e

fu
l 
w

a
y
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 c

a
n

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
In

 t
h

e
 p

a
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

th
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 i
n

 J
o

b
s
 a

n
d

 S
k
ill

s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 ,
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

fa
c
ili

ty
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
e

a
rl
y
 r

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 h
e

lp
fu

l 
w

a
y
 o

f 
d

e
a

lin
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

In
 L

e
e

d
s
 e

a
c
h

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 i
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 f
u

ll 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 n
o

rm
a

lly
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 d
e

le
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

ti
re

e
's

 p
o

s
t 

o
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

h
e

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 t

h
e

 C
h

ie
f 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
(H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
.

2
9

Page 55



R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
0

7
/0

8

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

&

M
e

a
s
u

re

G
o

o
d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
a

rg
e

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t

P
o

s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
0

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

0
7

P
re

d
ic

te
d

F
u

ll 
Y

e
a

r 

R
e

s
u

lt

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 Y
e

a
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

T
re

n
d

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

T
o

p
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

 

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

B
o

tt
o

m

Q
u

a
rt

ile

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d
 d

a
ta

)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

C
o

re
 C

it
y
 

p
o

s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o

p

8
 =

 B
o

tt
o

m

(B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Y
e

a
r-

E
n

d

d
a

ta
)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Is
s
u

e
s

B
V

-1
5

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 r

e
ti
ri
n

g
 o

n
 g

ro
u

n
d

s
 o

f 
ill

-h
e

a
lt
h

 a
s
 a

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

H
R

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

0
.3

1
0

.3
0

0
.0

9
0

.1
8

0
.1

0
.3

7
0

.3
1

4
N

o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
6

a
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 d

e
c
la

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 D

D
A

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 

d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 a

s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
H

R
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%
R

is
e

3
.1

6
3

.5
0

3
.1

6
3

.1
6

3
.8

9
1

.8
6

3
.2

9
5

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
V

-1
7

a
M

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

ta
ff

 a
s
 a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

H
R

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

7
.0

0
7

.5
0

7
.4

4
7

.4
4

4
.8

0
.9

9
.9

9
5

N
o

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
a

rg
e

t 
b

e
in

g
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 D

C
L

G
 a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

o
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 a
 n

e
w

 2
 t

ie
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
0

8
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

 n
e

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e

tt
in

g
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 l
e

s
s
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 i
ll 

h
e

a
lt
h

 r
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t.

  
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 p

ro
b

a
b

ly
 b

e
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 i
ll 

h
e

a
lt
h

 r
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t

a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
.

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 s
in

c
e

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 w
e

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t.

  
T

h
e

 n
e

w
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
e

lp
 u

s
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
y
 Q

4
.

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

s
in

c
e

 Q
1

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
0

7
/0

8
 i
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
Q

4
.

3
0

Page 56



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date:  6th November 2007 
 
Subject: Consultation on Strategic Outcomes and Improvements Priorities for the 
  Leeds Strategic Plan – Comments from Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

        
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1      At its meeting on 11 September 2007 Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed that 

overall feedback to the draft strategic outcomes and improvement priorities to be 
included in the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 would be sought from Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and relevant Scrutiny Committees should be invited to provide 
feedback on the draft strategic outcomes and improvement priorities proposed for the 
Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 -11 with particular reference to their portfolio area. 

 
1.2 Discussion on the draft strategic outcomes and improvement priorities to be included 

in the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 took place in the October cycle of meetings and 
the Scrutiny Boards are now in a position to offer their initial observations.  These are 
attached as Appendix 1.  

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The Committee is requested to  
 

(i) Agree the comments presented as Appendix one and submit as Scrutiny’s 
initial observations on the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11. 

 
(ii) Note that a number of Scrutiny Boards have stated that they be given the 

opportunity to make further comment on the draft and to see whether their 
comments have been taken into account. 

 

(iii) Note that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will have a further 
opportunity to consider and comment on the proposed indicators and targets 
to support the improvement priorities to be included in the Leeds Strategic 
Plan at its meeting on 8 January 2008. 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: P N Marrington 
 
Tel: 39 51151  

Agenda Item 9

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Statement on  
Consultation on strategic outcomes and improvement priorities for the Leeds Strategic 

Plan - November 2007 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Statement of  
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Consultation on Strategic 
Outcomes and 

Improvements Priorities 
for the Leeds Strategic 

Plan 

Page 59



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Statement on  
Consultation on strategic outcomes and improvement priorities for the Leeds Strategic 

Plan - November 2007 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

 

Introduction  

Introduction 
 
1 At its meeting on 11 September 

2007 Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee agreed that overall 
feedback to the draft strategic 
outcomes and improvement 
priorities to be included in the 
Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 
would be sought from Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.  
Scrutiny Boards would also be 
invited to provide feedback on 
the draft strategic outcomes and 
improvement priorities proposed 
for the Leeds Strategic Plan 
2008 -11 with particular 
reference to their portfolio area. 

 

2  Discussion on the draft strategic 
outcomes and improvement 
priorities to be included in the 
Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 
took place in the October cycle 
of meetings.  This statement 
provides the Scrutiny Boards’ 
initial observations.   

 
3 A number of Scrutiny Boards 

have stated that they wish to 
make further comment on the 
draft and to see whether their 
comments have been taken into 
account. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4 The Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee will have a further 
opportunity to consider and 
comment on the proposed 
indicators and targets to support 
the improvement priorities to be 
included in the Leeds Strategic 
Plan at its meeting on 8 January 
2008. 

 
 
 
 

Page 60



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Statement on  
Consultation on strategic outcomes and improvement priorities for the Leeds Strategic 

Plan - November 2007 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
1 Members would wish to make an 

initial general comment.  A key 
recommendation made by 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee last year was in 
relation to Corporate Planning 
and budget setting. 

 
2 It is the view of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee that budget 
making should be within a 
strong, policy-led rather than 
finance-led, corporate planning 
framework, which draws on other 
processes within the council, i.e. 
corporate planning and 
performance management 
arrangements.  Best practice 
guidance from the Audit 
Commission advises that policy 
led budgeting is the route to 
ensuring that financial resources 
are directed towards 
organisational goals 

 
3 It is acknowledged that the 

Council has not yet fully 
achieved synergy between 
budget setting and strategic 
planning.  However Members 
would strongly recommend that 
this takes place. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Recommendation 1 
 
That budget making should be 
within a strong, policy-led rather 
than finance-led, corporate planning 
framework, which draws on other 
processes within the council, i.e. 
corporate planning and 
performance management 
arrangements. 

 
 
4 In terms of the draft Plan, 

Members were anxious that it 
was a relevant and accessible 
document which would engage 
not just the Council and its 
partners but also the general 
public.  Members stressed the 
need therefore for the ambitions 
within the Plan to be 
appropriately disseminated to the 
people of Leeds.  This would 
include the use of plain English 
and the removal of jargon. This 
concern was raised by a number 
of Scrutiny Boards.  

 
5 Scrutiny Board (Resources) has 

recommended that the Youth 
Council be consulted on the 
Plan. 

 

Recommendation 2 
 
That the Youth Council be 
consulted on the strategic 
outcomes and priorities. 

 

Page 61



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Statement on  
Consultation on strategic outcomes and improvement priorities for the Leeds Strategic 

Plan - November 2007 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

6 Members are aware that a 
document of this type needs to 
be robust in describing objectives 
however Members were anxious 
that the delivery of the objectives 
should not be overly prescriptive 
and that service deliverers 
should be given freedom to 
exercise local discretion. 

 

7 Members are aware that the Plan 
rightly focuses on the highest of 
priorities.  It is acknowledged 
therefore that this will result in 
some service areas or priorities 
not being explicitly mentioned in 
the Plan.  (Yet still significant in 
terms of service delivery.)  
However that said, Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee along with 
other Scrutiny Boards have 
identified areas they feel are 
important enough to warrant 
mention in the Plan. 

 
8 One such area is transport.  

Members feel that the 
importance of transport has been 
played down in the document.   A 
discussion was held on the 
importance of attracting big 
money schemes but also the 
need to carry out local initiatives 
which cumulatively would make 
an impact.  Particular mention 
was made about the need for the 
Plan to place more emphasis on 
the introduction of more local 
park and ride schemes within 
Leeds to encourage the use of 
public transport.  This was also 
mentioned by Scrutiny Board 

(Resources).  There was also a 
general consensus that the Plan 
did not emphasise the need to 
ensure appropriate and safe 
pedestrian facilities.  Mention 
was also made of the need to 
raise the profile of cycle paths in 
the Plan. 

 
9 Health and Adult Social Care 

Members firmly believe there is a 
correlation between good 
transport and good health, 
particularly in terms of accessing 
services. 

 
10 Overview and Scrutiny Members 

believe there is a lack of 
reference to several issues which 
Members regarded as vital 
components of a Plan of such 
strategic importance.  

 
11 Generally there was a feeling 

that the Plan was too adult 
orientated and more references 
should be made to children and 
the role of the family in reducing 
and combating a number of 
social problems.  

 
12 There was no mention of 

substance abuse which was an 
omission.  This was also 
mentioned by Scrutiny Board 
(City Development) 

 
13 Explicit links should be made 

between diabetes, heart disease 
and strokes and childhood 
obesity (The latter was also 

Page 62



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Statement on  
Consultation on strategic outcomes and improvement priorities for the Leeds Strategic 

Plan - November 2007 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

discussed at Scrutiny Board (City 
Services) 

 
14 Objectives should be set around 

the impact of refugees and 
asylum seekers on Council 
services. 

 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s 
Services) 
 
15 The Scrutiny Board recognised 

the strong links between the 
priorities set out in the Children 
and Young People’s Plan and 
the draft strategic outcomes, 
whilst acknowledging that in the 
context of the strategic plan most 
of the outcomes were applicable 
to the general population of 
Leeds rather than children and 
young people specifically. 

 
16 This was seen to reflect the 

hierarchical nature of the 
planning framework, and the 
respective positions of the two 
plans within that hierarchy. 

 
17 Members stressed that they were 

particularly interested in the more 
detailed targets and measures 
showing how these outcomes 
would be achieved. 

 
18 In terms of specific observations, 

the Board made the following 
comments: 

 
19 The ‘Every Child Matters’ agenda 

is so important and so widely 

recognised that consideration 
should be given to finding some 
way of referencing it explicitly in 
the Plan. (This is notwithstanding 
the Board’s recognition that the 
aims of Every Child Matters are 
consistent with the draft strategic 
outcomes and improvement 
priorities.) 

Recommendation 3 

That the ‘Every Child Matters’ 
agenda is explicitly referenced in 
the Plan. 

20 The Board asked that 
consideration be given to a 
specific reference to improved 
outcomes for Looked After 
Children, possibly under the 
health and wellbeing theme 
relating to assessment and care 
management. 

Recommendation 4 

That consideration be given to a 
specific reference to improved 
outcomes for Looked After 
Children. 

21 Learning is a route to cultural 
wellbeing, through better 
understanding of both one’s own 
culture and the diverse cultures 
that make up the city. Members 
felt that this should be reflected 
in the draft strategic outcomes 
and improvement priorities. 

Page 63



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Statement on  
Consultation on strategic outcomes and improvement priorities for the Leeds Strategic 

Plan - November 2007 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

Recommendation 5 

That the importance of learning as a 
route to cultural wellbeing is 
reflected in the Plan 

22 The Board was disappointed that 
there was no mention of the 
private sector’s impact on the 
environment. Members felt that 
the draft plan should take a 
broader focus, recognising the 
need for the behaviour of all 
sectors to change in order to 
improve the city’s environment. 

Recommendation 6 

That the Plan recognises the need 
for the behaviour of all sectors to 
change in order to improve the 
city’s environment. 

 
23 The Board decided that it wished 

to see the revised draft of the 
Plan, in order to see how its 
comments had been taken into 
account. This will be scheduled 
for the January 2008 meeting of 
the Scrutiny Board. 

 
 
Scrutiny Board (Health and Adult 
Social Care)  
 

24 Whilst supportive of the Plan, 
Members of the Board cautioned 
against assuming that all 
departments within the Council 
understood or championed 
‘corporate’ priorities, primarily 

due to their own day to day 
service pressures.  Members 
acknowledged therefore the 
importance of the ‘One Council’ 
approach to working. 

 
25 The Board recognised that many 

of the activities proposed within 
the Plan had significant resource 
implications, for example 
“increasing the proportion of 
vulnerable adults helped to live 
at home”. It was acknowledged 
that funding such priorities would 
be a challenge particularly with 
the latest settlement and 
increased Gershon efficiency 
requirements.  This latter point 
was also made by Scrutiny 
Board (Resources).  Members 
also acknowledged that whilst 
some of the themes can be 
easily measured (i.e. numbers of 
teenage pregnancies) others 
can’t (“promoting emotional 
wellbeing for all”) 

 
26 Following a review of the 

priorities Members made a 
number of specific comments 
and recommendations. In 
relation to improving 
psychological and mental health 
services for “children, young 
people and families” Members 
felt that older people had been 
left out.  It was the view of the 
Board that this needed to be 
amended. 

 
 

Page 64



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Statement on  
Consultation on strategic outcomes and improvement priorities for the Leeds Strategic 

Plan - November 2007 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

Recommendation 7 
 
That older people are included  in 
psychological and mental health 
services 

 
27 Members also noted that 

loneliness wasn’t acknowledged 
in the Plan.  This was seen as an 
omission as loneliness is a huge 
problem for some people and 
has significant influence on a 
person’s mental health. 

 

Recommendation 8 
 
That the Plan acknowledges the 
impact loneliness has on 
individuals and the need to address 
this in service planning. 

 
28 The Board notes that there is 

currently no specific mention of 
carers (within families) yet this 
group of people save the City 
Council and partners thousands 
of pounds by looking after their 
relatives.  This needs to be 
acknowledged and the carers 
supported. 

 
 

Recommendation 9 
 
That the plan acknowledges and 
supports carers 

 
29 In terms of implementation 

Members are of the view that the 
priorities and outcomes in the 
Plan should be somehow 

indexed so that reports, 
decisions and actions 
undertaken can be cross 
referenced, providing an audit 
trail of focused activity. 

 

Recommendation 10 
 

That the priorities and outcomes in 
the Plan be indexed so that reports, 
decisions, actions etc can be cross 
referenced providing an audit trail 
of focused activity. 

 

 

Scrutiny Board (Culture and 
Leisure) 

 
30 The Board made the overall 

comment that the benefits of the 
strategic plan must include the 
whole of Leeds and not just 
concentrate on the centre.  (This 
view reflects the Council’s 
Mission Statement).  This was 
echoed by Scrutiny Board (City 
Services) who held a full 
discussion on the allocation of 
resources within the City. 

 
 
Scrutiny Board (Resources) 
 
31 In addition to the observations 

and recommendations made by 
this Board highlighted in 
paragraphs 5, 8 and 25,  
Members noted that no mention 
was made in the Strategic Plan 
to the new Business Plan 

Page 65



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Statement on  
Consultation on strategic outcomes and improvement priorities for the Leeds Strategic 

Plan - November 2007 scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 

Comments and 

Recommendations 

2008/2011.  This was considered 
an omission. 

 

Recommendation 11 
 

That the Strategic Plan makes cross 
reference to the new Business Plan 
2008/2011. 

 

Scrutiny Board (City Development) 
 
32 In addition to the observations 

highlighted in paragraphs 12, 13 
and 30,  Members of the Board 
made a general comment about 
the need to ensure that progress 
on meeting the Strategic Plan is 
robust and uses quantative as 
well as qualitative information to 
make progress judgements.  

 
33 The importance of reducing 

worklessness and the need to 
ensure it remains a high priority 
was acknowledged by the Board.  

 
Scrutiny Board (Environment and 
Neighbourhoods) 
 
34. The strategic importance of 

green spaces within the city, 
linking in to a number of 
Strategic Outcomes including the 
quality of the environment.  
Members of the Board felt that 
more emphasis could be placed 
on preserving the current green 
spaces and proposals for 
extending this provision. 

 
35. Members of the Board also 

wished to see an emphasis on 

literacy and numeracy skills for 
primary school children. 

 
36. Relating to the Narrowing the 

Gap principle, Members felt that 
the regeneration work achieved 
and being planned should be 
promoted at a strategic level.  
Members acknowledged that 
projects were being undertaken, 
but wished to see this being 
emphasised. 

 
37. The Board was concerned that 

the ageing demographic should 
be reflected at a strategic level.  
Members recognised that this is 
an issue that in time will affect 
the provision of a wide range of 
services, particularly in terms of 
care.  Members felt that the 
Strategic Plan should generally 
reflect the challenges of an 
ageing population, particularly 
where different parts of the city 
are likely to be more affected.  
Members felt that risk 
management and service 
planning needed to focus on this 
issue at the most strategic level. 

 

Recommendation 12 
 

That the Strategic Plan emphasises 
the importance of regeneration 
activities 

 

Recommendation 13 
 

That the Strategic Plan takes into 
account the ageing demographic 

Page 66



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date: 6th November 2007 
 
Subject: Proposed amendments to the Call In Guidance Notes within the Council’s 
   Constitution 
 

        
 
 
1.0  Introduction 
 

1.1  Recently Members have raised a number of issues regarding the Call In 
arrangements.  A discussion was held in this Committee in September regarding 
which Members could trigger a Call In.  The Committee resolved to maintain the 
current arrangements of two members sitting on Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
from two different political groups.   

 
1.2 Another issue has concerned the level of justification required from the individual 

signatories when a decision is called in.   
 

1.3 There are two possible approaches that can be taken by Members seeking to call in 
a decision:  that the process in making the decision is suspected to be flawed in 
some way (i.e some information overlooked, consultation not as thorough as 
required, other options not fully considered etc.); or that there is disagreement with 
the decision per se, though the process can be shown to be rigorously followed. 

 
1.4 The current procedure for Call In as described in the Constitution  (22.7 footnote 35 

pages 251) allows justification for calling in a decision on any grounds, including 
procedural issues.  This does not preclude disagreement with the decision per se. 

 
1.5        The impact of providing for call in on any grounds can be seen in the following 

hypothetical scenarios: 
 
 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: P N Marrington
  

Tel: 39 51151 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 67



A political group fundamentally disagrees with the use of external companies to 
provide the Council’s core business.  The Executive is of the opposite view and are 
making a series of decisions in line with Council policy of using external providers 
where this is seen as beneficial.  The political group wishes to call in decisions of this 
nature simply because they disagree with the political philosophy and wish to disrupt 
such decisions wherever possible.  Under current arrangements, it can be argued that 
this is within the Constitutional rules 

 

An individual Councillor has a long running campaign against car use of any kind.  
The Call In process is used by this Councillor (with the co-operation of other 
Councillors as signatories) to disrupt any decisions that go against this particular 
campaign, such as parking schemes and road improvements.  These decisions may 
be reasonable and correct against all other criteria; however, currently they can be 
called in as part of a single issue agenda of one or a small number of Councillors.   

 
1.6 The question is whether this is intentionally how the Authority wishes to organise its 

Call In process (allowing Call In for any reason including general disagreement with 
the policy or political standpoint it supports) or whether the Authority wishes to be 
more explicitly in accord with what is cited as best practice. 

 
 
2.0      Best Practice 
 
2.1 Whilst the Local Government Act 2000 does not spell out the precise detail of how 

Local Authorities should make provision for Call In, there have been subsequent 
publications from the Government that identify what is considered good practice.  In 
particular, ‘Strengthening Local Democracy – Making the Most of the Constitution’ 
July 2003, includes a discussion about the justification provided when a decision is 
called in: 

 
“There are authorities in which no reasons are required from a councillor wishing to 
invoke the call in procedure.  This is not good practice.  It allows trivial issues or 
personal crusades to take up the time of scrutiny panels and to inappropriately delay 
decision-making.  It is important that those wishing to invoke call in should be required 
to indicate why they are challenging the executive decision.  A disagreement per se 
is not an adequate reason.  There should be a requirement to identify evidence 
that has not been taken into account or viable options that have not been 
considered.  The arbiter of such applications should be the monitoring officer.  In the 
case of uncertainty, the benefit of the doubt should be given to the applicant.”   
Page 31 

 
2.2 Derby City Council (a four star authority) makes explicit reference to the criteria  by   

which a decision may be called in: 
 

Call-in should only be used in exceptional circumstances. These are where 
members of the Council are of the opinion that the Council Cabinet did not take the 
decision in accordance with the principles set out in Article 13 (Decision Making), 
namely, 

 
a.  proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired 
outcome) 
  
b.  due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers 
  

Page 68



c.  respect for human rights  
  
d.  a presumption in favour of openness 
  
e. clarity of aims and desired outcomes 
  
f. a record of what options were considered and giving the reasons for the decision. 
 
 or where relevant issues do not appear to have been taken into consideration. 
[……………..] 
The written notice must specify which principle in Rule OS33 has allegedly been 

infringed 
 
2.3 It is recommended that the Scrutiny Call In process should be amended to reflect the 

best practice cited above; that justification is required from the applicant over and 
above disagreement with the decision per se.  The following change to the relevant 
Scrutiny Guidance Note is proposed: 

 

• Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules Guidance Note 3 paragraph 5.2 and  5.3 to include 
reference to the requirement for justification relating to process and the manner in 
which the decision was taken as set out in Article 13 of the Constitution and the role of 
the Proper Officer in ensuring adequate justification is given.  

  
The proposed amended Guidance Note is attached at appendix 1. 

 
2.4  If Overview and Scrutiny Committee agree to the above changes, the consequential 

changes to the Constitution will be made by the Assistant Chief Executive 
(Corporate Governance) under delegated powers. 

 
3.0         Recommendation 
 
3.1  Members are requested to consider  the proposed amendment to the Scrutiny 

Board Procedure Rules Guidance Note 3 in relation to Call In and, if mindful to do 
so, agree the attached revised Guidance Note. 
  

 
 
 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



 
            
          Appendix1 

 
GUIDANCE NOTE 3 

 
CALLING IN OF DECISIONS  

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Local Government Act 2000 requires that Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees be given the power to recommend that a decision made but not 
implemented, be reconsidered.  The Act gives local authorities considerable 
discretion over the detailed operation of such a “Call In” mechanism.  

 
1.2 This guidance note defines the decisions which will be eligible for Calling In 

together with details of the allied procedures which are to be followed. 
 
2.0 GENERAL 
 
2.1 The Council’s Scrutiny Boards have wide ranging powers enabling them to 

review decisions which have been taken and implemented by the Executive, 
and to generate reports and recommendations on the basis of “lessons 
learned”. 

 
2.2 In addition the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been 

allocated the power to Call In a range of decisions prior to implementation 
and, where it considers it appropriate, to recommend that particular decisions 
be reconsidered.  If the Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers that a 
decision falls outside the agreed Budget and Policy Framework, (and this view 
is endorsed by the Council’s Monitoring Officer or Section 151 Officer as 
appropriate) Overview and Scrutiny Committee may refer that decision to 
Council for consideration. 

 
2.3 The Calling In of a decision will inevitably give rise to a period of delay before 

the decision can be implemented; in the interests of efficiency, therefore, it is 
envisaged that  the mechanism will be used sparingly. 

 
 
3.0 DECISIONS AVAILABLE FOR CALLING IN 
 
3.1 The following decisions are available for Calling In: 

 

• All decisions of the Executive Board taken on or after 13th February 2002 
and all decisions taken by Area Committees. 
 

• All Key Decisions taken by Officers and published on or after 13th February 
2002. 

 

Page 71



• All Major Decisions taken by Officers and published on or after 13th 
February 2002. 

 
3.2 A Key Decision is as defined in Article 13 of the Constitution. 
 
3.3 A Major Decision is as defined in the guidance notes to the Officer Delegation 

Scheme contained within Part 3 of the Constitution. 
 
3.4 In accordance with the general arrangements relating to Scrutiny Boards, 

decisions made under regulatory arrangements are not eligible for Calling In. 
 
3.5 The Calling In mechanism does not extend to decisions taken by Joint 

Committees. 
 
 
4.0 EXCEPTIONS 
 
4.1 The decision taker may declare a decision as being exempt from Calling In if 

they consider that any delay would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the 
public’s interests; or where the decision has been the subject of a previous 
Call In. 

 
4.2 Records of decisions taken will indicate where a decision has been declared 

exempt from Calling In. 
 
4.3 Where a decision has been declared exempt on the grounds that any delay 

would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public’s interests, records of the 
decision will indicate: 

 

• what the implications would be if the decision were to be delayed by the 
operation of the Calling In mechanism; and 
 

• why the decision could not have been taken earlier so as to have been 
eligible for Calling In. 

 
4.4 Where a decision has been declared exempt on the grounds that it has 

previously been the subject of a Call In records of the decision will indicate: 
 

• the date on which the original decision was taken; and 
 

• the outcome of the Calling In. 
 
4.5 There will be no appeal mechanism against a decision to exempt a decision 

from Calling In.  However, where it considers appropriate, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee may submit reports and recommendations arising from 
the exemption from Calling In of individual decisions. 

 
4.6 To avoid abuses of the provisions for exemption, it is incumbent upon officers 

to place great emphasis on forward planning, for example by reporting 
decisions at as early a stage as is practicable, by advance consultation and by 

Page 72



ensuring that decisions are scheduled well in advance within the Executive’s 
forward programme of Key Decisions.  

 
4.7 In addition, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may request periodic audits 

of the exemption arrangements. 
 
 
 
5.0 OPERATION OF THE CALLING IN MECHANISM 
 
5.1 To initiate a Call In, a request must be submitted to the Proper Officer1 by 5 

p.m. of the fifth working day after a decision has been published. 
 
5.2 The request must be made on a pro forma and be signed by two Members of 

the Overview and Scrutiny Committee representing two political groups.  An 
Elected Member who is not a member of a political group may be a signatory 
but co-opted members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may not sign 
a Call In request. 

 
 All requests must detail on the pro forma why in the opinion of the 

signatories  the decision was not taken in accordance with the 
principles set out in Article 13 (Decision Making) (Principles of Decision 
Making) 

 
5.3 Upon receipt of a request for a Call In, the Proper Officer will ensure that 

sufficient reason has been given in accordance with the above.  If the 
criteria are met the Proper Officer will immediately notify the decision taker 
and, for officer decisions, arrange for the Corporate Information System to 
indicate that the decision is the subject of a Call In.  In addition the Proper 
Officer will, by noon on the sixth day following publication of the decision, 
deliver to the decision taker, written confirmation which will be receipted by an 
authorised contact within the Department.  Any decisions which have not been 
the subject of a Call In may then be implemented.   

 
5.4 Also upon receipt of the request, the Proper Officer will, in consultation with 

the Chair, convene a special meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, to take place within seven days of the Call In request being 
received. 

 
5.5 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will consider the notification, review 

the background papers and may question the relevant parties before 
determining whether it wishes to refer the decision back for reconsideration. 

 
5.6 Any decisions which have been subject to scrutiny and do not require further 

consideration by the decision taker will be released for implementation. 
 

                                            
1
 This Officer is the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development. 

Page 73



5.7 If any decisions are to be referred back for consideration, then a report will be 
prepared to the relevant decision making body within three days of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting. 

 
5.8 A revised record of the decision, indicating the outcome of decision taker’s 

further deliberations, will be published on the Corporate Information System.  
 
5.9 The Call In mechanism may only be used once in relation to any particular 

decision. 
 
 
6.0 ANNUAL REPORTS TO COUNCIL 
 
6.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is required to submit an Annual Report 

to Council.  These reports will include details of the operation of the Call In 
arrangements. 

 
 
 
 
7.0 ADMINISTRATION 
 
7.1 The detailed operation of the Call In mechanism is as described in the 

following appendices to this document: 

- Appendix A Call In of Executive Board Decisions (Protocols and 
Conventions) 
 
- Appendix B Call In of Executive Board Decisions (flow diagram) 
 
- Appendix C Call In of Director Delegated Decisions (Protocols and 
Conventions) 
 
 - Appendix D Call In of Director Delegated Decisions (flow diagram) 

- Appendix E Call In of Area Committee Decisions (Protocols and 
Conventions) 

- Appendix F Call In of Area Committee Decisions (flow diagram) 

7.2 In order to work efficiently, the proposed Calling In mechanism requires strict 
discipline with regard to administration and, in particular: 

• The prompt publication of Key and Major Decisions by officers (normally 
within two days). 

• The prompt publication of Executive Board minutes (again, normally within 
two days). 

• The prompt publication of Area Committee decisions notifications. 

 

Page 74



7.3 In addition, Departments will maintain a  list of authorised contacts [within 
Departments] in order to ensure that information with regard to decisions 
which have/have not been Called In can be communicated effectively.  

 
7.4 Three broadly similar procedures are documented; one relates to decisions of 

Executive Board, one which relates to decisions of Area Committees ( both of 
which are taken within a fixed cycle of meetings) and one relating to Key 
decisions and Major Decisions by officers (which are not).  

 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date:  6th November 2007 
 
Subject: Overview and Scrutiny Committee –  Work Programme  
  
 

        
 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The attached appendices provide Members with a copy of the Committee’s current 

Work Programme (Appendix 1)  and the Forward Plan of Key Decisions (Appendix 2). 
  
1.2 The Forward Plan of Key Decisions covers the period 1st November 2007 to 29th 

February 2008. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 The Committee is requested to; 

 
(i) Receive and make any changes to the attached Work Programme following 

decisions made at today’s meeting. 
 
(ii) Receive and note the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 

 
 
 
 

   

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: P N Marrington 
 
Tel: 39 51151  

Agenda Item 11

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 -
  
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
  
- 
O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
0
0
7
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

it
e
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 6

T
H
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
ill
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 a
ll 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
th
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m
a
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 

a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
. 

P
M
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

 
 

 

C
a
ll
 I
n
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 N
o
te
s
 

 
 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

T
o
 f
o
rm
u
la
te
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

fr
o
m
 a
ll 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
s
 

 
D
P
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 1
1
th
  
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

 
T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
p
o
rt
. 
 

 
P
M
 

D
is
a
b
il
it
y
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 

    

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 h
a
s
  
b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
 T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

e
n
d
o
rs
e
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

a
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

P
M
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
in
g
 

 
T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m
a
d
e
 

in
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 

 
M
S
R
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
M
ig
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 S
e
s
s
io
n
 1
 

 
R
P
 

Page 79



O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 -
  
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
  
- 
O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
0
0
7
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

fa
m
il
ie
s
 

   M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 8

th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
M
ig
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m
il
ie
s
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 S
e
s
s
io
n
 2
 

 
R
P
 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

T
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 

 
D
P
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 5

T
H
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
ill
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 a
ll 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
th
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m
a
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 

a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
. 

P
M
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

 
T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
p
o
rt
. 
 

 
P
M
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
in
g
  

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
s
 w
ill
 t
ra
c
k
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
ra
c
k
e
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 

th
o
s
e
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 ‘
N
a
rr
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

G
a
p
’ 
re
p
o
rt
. 

 

M
S
R
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
M
ig
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m
il
ie
s
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 S
e
s
s
io
n
 3
 

 
R
P
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 1
1
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
 

Page 80



O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 -
  
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
  
- 
O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
0
0
7
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

 
 

  
P
M
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
in
g
 

 
T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m
a
d
e
 

in
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 

 

 
M
S
R
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
M
ig
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m
il
ie
s
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 S
e
s
s
io
n
 4
 

 
R
P
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 8

T
H
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

P
M
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 –
 R
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
M
ig
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m
il
ie
s
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

 
R
P
 

 
 

 
 

U
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 I
te
m
s
 

 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 

 
 

 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
s
 

 
W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 

D
a
te
s
 o
f 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

A
L
M
O
 W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

T
o
 b
e
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 81



O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 -
  
W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
  
- 
O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
0
0
7
 

K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 82



L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

 
F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 O

F
 K

E
Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 
F

o
r 

th
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 1

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
 t
o

 2
9

 F
e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 

 

K
e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
H

R
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 H
R

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

  

1
/1

1
/0

7
 

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 T

u
s
 a

n
d

 
in

te
rn

a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 
 

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 A

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
L

o
n

g
 T

e
rm

 C
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

H
ir
e

 o
f 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

a
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 l
o

n
g
 t

e
rm

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
 h

ir
e

 o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
  

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

1
/1

1
/0

7
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

  

T
e
n

d
e

r 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 A

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 S

p
o

t 
h

ir
e

 o
f 

V
e

h
ic

le
s
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
D

ri
v
e

rs
 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

a
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

p
o
t 

h
ir
e

 o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
d

ri
v
e

rs
. 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

1
/1

1
/0

7
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

  

T
e
n

d
e

r 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

Page 83



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 M
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

R
e

q
u

e
s
t 

to
 w

a
iv

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 R

u
le

s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

R
u

le
s
 1

0
, 
1

1
 a

n
d

 1
2
 a

n
d
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
h

e
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

S
e

c
to

r 
M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

1
 y

e
a

r 
fr

o
m

 1
s
t  

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

 t
o
 3

1
s
t  M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

0
9

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
o
n

 t
o
 

e
x
te

n
d

 f
o

r 
a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

6
 

m
o

n
th

s
 i
f 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

8
/1

1
/0

7
 

   

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
- 

A
d
u

lt
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

- 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

's
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
 

N
e

tw
o

rk
s
 

R
e

q
u

e
s
t 

to
 w

a
iv

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 
P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 R

u
le

s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

R
u

le
s
 1

0
, 
1

1
 a

n
d

 1
2
 a

n
d
 

e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
’s

 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 f
o

r 
1

 y
e

a
r 

fr
o
m

 
1

s
t  A

p
ri
l 
2
0

0
8
 t

o
 3

1
s
t  M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

0
9

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
o
n

 t
o
 

e
x
te

n
d

 f
o

r 
a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

6
 

m
o

n
th

s
 i
f 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

A
d

u
lt
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

8
/1

1
/0

7
 

   

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 -

 A
d
u

lt
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

Page 84



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

L
e

e
d

s
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a
n

g
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

ra
ft

 o
f 

th
e

 
L

e
e
d

s
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a
n

g
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
4

/1
1

/0
7
 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

ra
ft

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 

fo
c
u

s
 o

n
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

w
it
h

 a
 s

ta
k
e

 i
n
 c

lim
a

te
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
, 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

 
s
e

c
to

r 
a
n

d
 3

rd
 s

e
c
to

r.
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 b

ri
e
fi
n

g
s
 w

ill
 

b
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
. 
T

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 
a

n
d

 A
b

o
u

t 
L

e
e
d

s
. 

   

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

H
o

rs
e

fa
ir
, 
W

e
th

e
rb

y
 

P
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 k

n
o

w
n

 a
s
 

‘P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
to

 H
o

rs
e
fa

ir
, 
W

e
th

e
rb

y
’.
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
4

/1
1

/0
7
 

P
u

b
lic

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

a
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
6

. 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
. 
  

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

B
e

e
s
to

n
 H

ill
 a

n
d

 H
o

lb
e
c
k
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

F
I 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 

T
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 O
u

tl
in

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
a

s
e

 t
o
 C

L
G

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

 :
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
) 

 

1
4

/1
1

/0
7
 

W
a
rd

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
, 

A
ir
e

 
V

a
lle

y
 H

o
m

e
s
 L

e
e
d

s
, 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 (

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
) 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 

 

Page 85



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

H
e

a
d

in
g
le

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 B
o
a
rd

 
a
re

 a
s
k
e
d
: 
i.
 t

o
 a

d
v
is

e
 i
f 

th
e

y
 

w
is

h
 t
o

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t 

fr
o
m

 
H

e
a
d

in
g

le
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
T

ru
s
t 

(H
D

T
) 

to
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 a

n
 i
n
-p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 
g
ra

n
t 
a

 l
o

n
g
-l

e
a
s
e

h
o
ld

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
a
t 

n
il 

p
re

m
iu

m
 a

n
d
 a

t 
a
 p

e
p

p
e

rc
o
rn

 
re

n
t 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e

 T
ru

s
t 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 b

y
 3

0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
8

 
th

a
t 

it
’s

 f
u
ll 

fu
n
d

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 T

ru
s
t 
a
g
re

e
in

g
 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 o

n
 a

ll 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 
fo

r 
d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 H

e
a
d
in

g
le

y
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
 f

o
r 

a
 p

e
ri
o
d
 

o
f 

2
5
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 

ii.
 t

o
 a

d
v
is

e
 i
f 

th
e

y
 w

is
h
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
p
t 

th
e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
fr

o
m

 H
D

T
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 T

ru
s
t’
s
 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

A
s
s
e
t 
T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
F

u
n
d
 a

n
d
, 

if
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 d
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 T

ru
s
t:
 

iii
. 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h

e
 T

ru
s
t 
b
e
in

g
 a

b
le

 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
t’
s
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 o
p

e
n
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 H

E
A

R
T

 c
e
n
tr

e
 t

o
 

in
s
tr

u
c
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
t 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
im

e
, 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 

o
f 

th
e
 H

e
a
d
in

g
le

y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
) 

 

1
4

/1
1

/0
7
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

–
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

  
  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

Page 86



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

A
re

a
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e
v
ie

w
 

T
o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
re

a
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 
1

0
 A

re
a

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
) 

 

1
4

/1
1

/0
7
 

A
ll 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 w
o

rk
 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 

 

Page 87



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

F
o

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 G
a

rf
o
rt

h
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 T

ru
s
t 

T
o
 n

o
te

 t
h

e
 f
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 G

a
rf

o
rt

h
 S

c
h
o

o
ls

 T
ru

s
t 

a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

s
s
e

ts
 

fr
o
m

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

to
 T

ru
s
t 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
) 

 

1
4

/1
1

/0
7
 

T
h

e
s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
u

rs
u
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e
d

, 
le

d
 b

y
 

G
a

rf
o

rt
h

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e

. 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

c
h

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
ta

tu
s
 a

n
d

 
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ru
s
t,

 a
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 w
it
h

(a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

o
th

e
rs

) 
lo

c
a

l 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

/e
d
u

c
a
ti
o
n

a
l 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
, 

th
e

 l
o

c
a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
D

io
c
e

s
a

n
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
, 
s
ta

ff
 ,

 u
n

io
n

s
, 

L
C

C
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a

rd
, 
L

o
c
a

l 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
P

a
rl

ia
m

e
n

t.
 R

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 
fe

d
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 w

e
re

 o
v
e

rw
h

e
lm

in
g

ly
 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
ils

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

m
a

d
e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 u

p
o
n

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t.
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
e

t 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n
 

L
e

e
d
s
 C

a
p
it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 B
o

a
rd

 
a

n
d

 L
C

C
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
B

o
a

rd
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
. 

T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
ils

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 
L

e
g

a
l 
te

a
m

 a
n

d
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t.
  

  
  

 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
f 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 

 

Page 88



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

T
ri
n

it
y
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
T

o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
o
f 

th
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
is

 s
it
e

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
4

/1
1

/0
7
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

(D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t)

 
  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

F
o

u
n

ta
in

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
to

 b
e

 r
e

q
u
e

s
te

d
 

to
 r

in
g
fe

n
c
e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

 
g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 f

ro
m

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

la
n

d
 s

a
le

s
, 
fo

r 
re

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

t 
F

o
u

n
ta

in
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
) 

 

1
4

/1
1

/0
7
 

   

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
f 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 

 

T
e

rr
y
 Y

o
ra

th
 H

o
u

s
e

 
T

h
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
m

e
th

o
d

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

t 
T

e
rr

y
 Y

o
ra

th
 H

o
u

s
e
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
A

d
u

lt
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

) 
 

1
4

/1
1

/0
7
 

K
e

y
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 

c
a

re
rs

, 
R

e
s
p

it
e
 c

a
re

 
u

s
e

rs
 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

Page 89



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

B
e

e
s
to

n
 G

ro
u

p
 R

e
p

a
ir
 

(p
h

a
s
e

 4
) 

T
o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

je
c
ti
o
n

 
in

to
 t
h

e
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

o
f 

£
2

.0
9

9
m

 o
f 

R
e

g
io

n
a
l 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 m

o
n

e
y
 a

n
d

 
£

2
3
3

.3
k
 f

ro
m

 o
w

n
e

r 
o

c
c
u

p
ie

rs
 a

n
d
 t

o
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
a

m
o
u

n
t 
o
f 

£
2

.3
3
3

m
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
) 

 

1
4

/1
1

/0
7
 

   

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 

 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 

H
o

lb
e
c
k
, 

P
h

a
s
e
 3

 
A

u
th

o
ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 t

o
 t
h

e
 a

m
o
u

n
t 

o
f 

£
2

m
. 
A

u
th

o
ri
s
e

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 

to
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

 a
c
q
u

is
it
io

n
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
e

rt
ie

s
 b

y
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
) 

 

1
4

/1
1

/0
7
 

   

T
h
e

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

t 
to

 b
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 
to

 t
h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
e

r 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 a

g
e

n
d
a

 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

o
 C

o
s
t 

in
 E

x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
£
5

,0
0

0
 f
o

r 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

1
0

/1
2

/0
7
 

E
a

c
h

 e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 i
n
 

th
e

ir
 w

a
rd

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

Page 90



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

P
h

a
s
e
 T

w
o

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 i
n

 G
ip

to
n

 
O

b
ta

in
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o

 i
n

c
u

r 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

 :
 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
) 

 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

F
u

ll 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 g

o
in

g
 o

n
 f
o

r 
2

 y
e

a
rs

 
  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

O
tl
e

y
 -

 H
e

a
v
y
 G

o
o

d
s
 

V
e

h
ic

le
 T

ra
ff

ic
 

T
o
 s

e
e

k
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

r 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

H
G

V
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 O
tl
e

y
 

a
re

a
. 

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

W
a
rd

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
, 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n

g
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

T
o

w
n

 a
n
d

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 

P
a

rk
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 
P

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

T
o
 n

o
te

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

T
o

w
n

 a
n
d

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 

P
a

rk
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 
P

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 S

tu
d

y
, 

a
n

d
 t
o
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
p

a
rk

in
g
 s

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
re

p
o

rt
. 

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

N
o

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
c
e

n
tr

e
s
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 

in
 t

h
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
b

y
 E

le
c
te

d
 

M
e

m
b
e

rs
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

s
ta

g
e

. 
  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

Page 91



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

L
e

e
d

s
 S

p
o

rt
s
 T

ru
s
t 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
to

 p
ro

c
e
e

d
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 L

e
e
d

s
 S

p
o

rt
s
 T

ru
s
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
o
f 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

A
c
ti
v
e

 R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
L

e
is

u
re

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 a
n

d
 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
g
ro

u
p

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 -

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 s
ta

ff
; 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
; 

th
e

 
U

n
io

n
s
; 

th
e

 
g
e

n
e

ra
l 
p

u
b

lic
; 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 L

C
C

 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
/ 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

H
o

m
e

 E
n
e

rg
y
 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 A

c
t 
1

1
th

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

r 
re

le
a

s
e

 t
o
 

D
E

F
R

A
, 

s
ig

n
in

g
 o

ff
 b

y
 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 
re

le
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 3

0
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

d
e

a
d

lin
e

 a
n
d

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
B

o
a

rd
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
) 

 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

N
o

n
e

 
  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 

 

Page 92



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

to
 a

llo
w

 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g
 o

n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 

c
o

lu
m

n
s
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 

T
h
e

 l
e

tt
in

g
 o

f 
a
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g
 o

n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 

c
o

lu
m

n
s
 i
n

 
L

e
e
d

s
(e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 

C
e

n
tr

e
) 

2
0

0
7

-2
0

2
2
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

L
e

g
a

l 
a

n
d

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

P
P

U
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
  

  
 

  

R
e

p
o

rt
 t
o

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o
a

rd
 

1
5

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
6

 
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

L
E

E
D

S
/B

R
A

D
F

O
R

D
 

C
o

rr
id

o
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 
B

ra
d
fo

rd
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
L

e
e
d

s
/B

ra
d
fo

rd
 c

o
rr

id
o
r.

  

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
) 

 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

A
lr
e

a
d

y
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

w
it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 e

g
 

M
E

T
R

O
, 
W

N
W

 H
o

m
e

s
 

L
e

e
d

s
 ,

 F
ir
e

b
ir
d

. 
A

ll 
b

o
d

ie
s
 a

re
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 W
o

rk
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p

. 
 

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 

 

L
e

e
d

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 
s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 b

y
 3

1
s
t  

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 M
e
m

b
e

r 
b

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
, 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 P

a
n

e
l 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

Page 93



 
K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o

 w
h

o
m

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 m

a
d
e

) 

L
e

e
d

s
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 -
 W

e
s
t 
L

e
e
d

s
 

G
a

te
w

a
y
 A

re
a

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 O
p

ti
o
n

s
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
p
u

b
lic

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
 

in
 E

a
rl
y
 2

0
0

8
. 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 M
e
m

b
e

r 
B

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
, 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
P

a
n

e
l 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
S

p
a

ti
a

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 -

 
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 C

h
a

n
g
e

s
 -

 L
e

e
d

s
 

C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
p

ri
o

r 
o

t 
fo

rm
a
l 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 

(D
e

a
d

lin
e

 3
1

s
t  D

e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

).
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 
(P

o
rt

fo
lio

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

) 
 

1
9

/1
2

/0
7
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 M
e
m

b
e

r 
b

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
, 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 P

a
n

e
l 

  

T
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

 

Page 94



  N
O

T
E

S
 

 K
e

y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
  
a

re
 t
h

o
s
e

 e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
: 

•
 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

c
u

rr
in

g
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

r 
m

a
k
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
e

r 
a

n
n
u

m
, 
o

r 

•
 

a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 l
iv

in
g
 o

r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 a
n

 a
re

a
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 t

w
o

 o
r 

m
o

re
 w

a
rd

s
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 P
o
rt

fo
li
o
s

 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 
a
n

d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

M
a

rk
 H

a
rr

is
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

A
n
d

re
w

 C
a

rt
e

r 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

S
te

v
e

 S
m

it
h
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 a

n
d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
o

h
n

 L
e

s
lie

 C
a

rt
e

r 

L
e

is
u

re
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
o

h
n

 P
ro

c
te

r 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
  

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

R
ic

h
a

rd
 B

re
tt

 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

R
ic

h
a

rd
 H

a
rk

e
r 

A
d

u
lt
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r 

P
e

te
r 

H
a

rr
a
n

d
 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 L
a

b
o
u

r 
G

ro
u

p
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

K
e

it
h

 W
a
k
e
fi
e

ld
 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 M
o

rl
e

y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 
In

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

R
o

b
e

rt
 F

in
n

ig
a

n
 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
u

d
it
h

 B
la

k
e
 

 In
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 K

e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n

s
 t
o

 b
e
 t

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
, 

5
 d

a
y
s
 n

o
ti
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 s

u
c
h

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 b

y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 f
o

r 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
. 

 

Page 95



   
L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

 
B

U
D

G
E

T
 A

N
D

 P
O

L
IC

Y
 F

R
A

M
E

W
O

R
K

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

 D
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 D

a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 N
O

T
E

S
: 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

o
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
, 

in
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

, 
d

e
fi
n

e
s
 t

h
o

s
e

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
k
e

 u
p

 t
h

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
D

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

re
 p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 a

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
a
n

d
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
 

 F
u

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

( 
a

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 o

f 
a

ll 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il)

 a
re

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

d
o

p
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
a

n
d
 P

o
lic

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

Page 96


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 9th October 2007
	7 Minutes - Executive Board, 17th October 2007
	8 Performance Report - Quarter 2 2007/08
	OSC Qtr2

	9 Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 - 2011
	Strategic Plan OSC Statement

	10 Call-In Arrangements
	GUIDANCE NOTE 3

	11 Work Programme
	Work programme 2007-08 September
	$$Plan


